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AFFIDAVIT OF KURTIS ROBINSON
‘Sworn on January 22, 2015
I, KURTIS ROBINSON, of Airdrie, Alberta, SWEAR AND SAY THAT:
1. I am an Officer of the Applicants and | am authorized by all of the Applicants fo depose
this Affidavit and do so on their behalf. As such, | have personal knowledge of the

matters hereinafter deposed, except where stated to be based on information and be_lief,
and where so stated, | verily believe them to be true.



(h) Such other relief as this Honourable Court may grant.

3. Each of the Applicants: (i) is incorporated in the jurisdiction of Alberta; (ii) has a bank
account, or books and records, or other assets in Alberta; and (jii) has an office located
in Alberta.

OVERVIEW
Background

4, The Lutheran Church — Canada (“L.CC" or the “Synod”), which is not a party to these
proceedings, was founded in 1988 when most of the Canadian congregations of the St.
Louis, Missouri based Lutheran Church —Missouri Synod (“LCMS") formed an
autonomous Canadian Church comprised of an Alberta and British Columbia district, a
Central district and an East district. These districts were successors to earlier LCMS
districts in Canada. The LCC includes 325 congregations across Canada.

5. While the various districts are organized to work with congregations and to advance the
Synod in their designated geographic region, they are not subsidiaries of LCC nor are
they controlled by it. Each district is independently incorporated. |ts leadership is
elected by the members of the District who reside in the designated geographic region.

6. The districts run autonomously from the Synod and in operation, the relationship is
closer to the relationship between the Federal government and the Provinces than to a
traditional parent/subsidiary relationship.

7. Member congregations are self-governing and autonomous. Their relationship is one of
voluntary membership in LCC and the districts.

8. The LCMS established its first congregation in Stoney Plain, Alberta in 1834 and was a
mission of the Missouri Synod {(Minnesota District) until 1921. The congregation
operated in association with a Lutheran school. The congregations in Alberta and British
Columbia first organized as an independent district of the LCMS on June 30, 1921, In
the 1940’s LCMS began developing more of a corporate structure. In 1942, larger
boards of directors were formed which replaced smaller boards and committees.

g, In 1944, Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District (the
“District”) was legally incorporated as the Alberta and British Columbia District of the
Evangelical Lutheran Synod of Missouri, Ohio, and Other States by an Act of the
Legislature of Alberta (SA 1944, c. 82, as amended). It was continued and renamed



10.

11.

12.

13.

pursuant to the Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta British Columbia District
Corporation Act (SA 1991, c. 42).

The purpose of the District is to conserve and promote the Christian faith, as it
understands it, through various means including:

a. strengthening congregations and their members in giving bold witness by word
and by deed to the love and work of God and extending that Gospel witness into
all the world;

b. aiding congregations to establish agencies of Christian education such as
elementary and secondary schools;

c. aiding congregations by providing a variety of resources and opportunities for
recoghizing and expressing their faith; and

d. providing opportunities through which its members express their Christian
concern, love, and compassion in meeting human needs.

STRUCTURE

Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “A” is a diagram depicting the corporate
organization and the interrelationship of the Applicants.

‘Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “B” is a copy of the Lutheran Church — Canada,

The Alberta British Columbia District Corporation Act, SA 1991, c. 42.

Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “C” are the results of a corporate search of
each of the Applicants, other than the District, from the corporate registrar of Alberta.

The District

14.

15.

As noted above, the District was incorporated as the Alberta and British Columbia
District of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod of Missouri, Ohio, and Other States in 1944
and was renamed as part of the organization of LCC in 1991, Ii is extra-provincially
registered in British Columbia and is a registered charity. The District is controlled by a
12 person Board of Directors.

The District provides resources, vision, leadership and encouragement to 127 churches
in Alberta and British Columbia (collectively the “Churches”) through the means of three
internal ministries.



16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

The ministries are the Department of Stewardship and Financial Ministries, the Outreach
Department, and the Parish and School Services Department.

The Department of Stewardship and Financial Ministries is responsible for finances in
general, the Church Extension Fund (“CEF”), communications, public relations and
development. The purpose of CEF is to help congregations, schools and organizations
build centres for ministry, outreach and service and to allow Lutheran Christians, and
others, to invest their money to facilitate the building of such centres. It is an attempt to
create a partnership between investors and these organizations in reaching out to share
the Good News of God's love through both words and deeds.

The Qutreach Department allocates subsidies to parishes, coordinates the
establishment of new congregations and is responsible for mission education and the
development of a variety of external ministries. These external ministries include cross-
cultural ministries, ministries for special needs groups, volunteer ministries, social
ministries, and evangelism.

The Parish and School Services Department supervises work in the areas of Parish
education, worship, youth, young adults, seniors, student aid and recruitment, campus
ministries and Lutheran Schools.

Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “D” are the District’s most recent unaudited
financial statements for the period ending January 31, 2014. The District receives
income from loans and investments held within the CEF; however, the bulk of their
revenue is generated by donations from the Churches, which average $1.3 million on an
annual basis. Of the $1.3 million received by the District, approximately $500,000 is, in
turn, paid up to LCC. Historically 35% of the donations received by the District are paid
to LCC. The total donations to LCC are listed on all financial reporting that is provided to
the members. For the period ended November 30, 2014, approximately $946,356.00 in
donations were received by the District of which $433,333.30 has been paid to L.CC.

In order to carry out its purposes, the District uses the donations that it receives from
members to supervise and support areas of Parish education of worship, missions,
stewardship, evangelism, youth, young adults, as well as seniors. It provides student aid
and funds church worker recruitment as well as supporting campus ministries and
Lutheran schools. It subsidizes parishes, coordinates the establishment of new
congregations and the development of external ministries including cross-cultural
ministries, ministries for special needs groups, volunteer ministries and social ministries.



It handles the administrative operation of assisting congregations with the operation of
their churches. The District supplies the major forms of inter-District communication and
organizes all major District meetings, workshops, seminars and conventions,

Church Extension Fund

22.

23.

24.

The CEF was created as a ministry that offers District members, and others, the
opportunity to invest their money in faith-based developments in the District and beyond,
such as the Churches, schools and ministry facilities, and to earn interest. There are
6,083 accounts in CEF with 2,674 depositors consisting of corporations, Churches and
individuals (the “CEF Depositors”) with:

a. 82% of CEF Depositors (based on dollar value) being individuals and 95% of
these individuals belonging to congregations within the District; and

b. 60% of CEF Depositors (based on dollar value) being over 70 years of age.

As of November 30, 2014, the total value of the deposits in the CEF (the “CEF
Deposits”) was approximately $95.89 million. The CEF Deposits have f]exible
investment terms with the CEF Depositors largely being able to redeem their funds upon
making that request to the CEF. During the period from February 1 to November 30,
2014, approximately $9.29 million of CEF Deposits were redeemed. This is an average
of approximately $929,000.00 per month. These funds have been paid to the CEF
Depositors as redemption requests in the ordinary course of business and in accordance
with the contractual obligations of the District. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit
“E” are blank copies of the deposit form agreements currently in place for the CEF.

The CEF Deposits are invested by CEF in a portfolio of assets (the “CEF Portfolio™),
which was reported to fotal approximately $108.5 million as at November 30, 2014. The
CEF Portfolio is comprised of cash and marketable securities of approximately $7.8
million and other assets totaling approximately $100.7 million. The other assets include
unsecured lines of credit, morigages and debts related to properties owned by the
District, properties that the District has labeled as “trust propetties”, and buildings owned
by member congregations.

District “Trust Properties”

25.

The District "trust properties” are properties that either reverted back to the District when
a mortgagor congregation could no longer service the debt, or were transferred by a
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Portfolio and the Additional Assets is far below the amount due to the CEF Depositors.
As a result, the District is insolvent.

Encharis Community Housing and Services

40.

41.

Encharis Community Housing and Services (“ECHS”) was incorporated in 2005 under
the Companies Act, as a not-for-profit corporation. ECHS is operated by an eight person
board of directors.

ECHS was incorporated in order to take over ownership and complete development of
the POP Development. The POP Development is generally comprised of the following:

(@) The Manor — The Manor is a 159 unit seniors’ complex focused on the delivery of a
variety of independent living alternatives. Within the Manor are 30 residences which
provide government funded care for Designated Assisted Living (“DAL")} services,
and 78 Private Supportive Living (“PSL") residences which are also government
funded. The remaining 51 units are independent living units consisting of studio and
one bedroom suites. The current occupancy rate at the Manor is 87% and the
independent living units are 84% occupied.

(b) The Harbour — The Harbour is a dementia care centre for seniors. There are 32
residences in this facility. The care component is funded by the government. The
current occupancy rate at the Harbour is 98%

(c) The Church and School — The Church and School buiiding houses a Lutheran
congregation, Prince of Peace Lutheran Church of Calgary (the “POP
Congregation”). In addition, the POP Congregation collaborates with the Rocky View
School Division (“Rocky View") to provide an alternate program within Rocky View
pursuant to section 21 of the School Act, RSA 2000, c. S-3 (the “School”). The
program runs from Kindergarten to Grade 9 and the School has an enroliment of 380
children. 50-60% of the student population is non-Christian and only 20% of the
students are children of members of the POP Congregation. The School has added
one additional class each of the last 2 years. ECHS owns the lands upon which the
Church and School are situated. As mentioned previously, the POP Congregation
received loans from the District in order to build the Church and School buildings.

(d) The Condos — The Condos are a series of pius-55 housing complexes, comprised of
174 units in attached buildings consisting of duplexes, triplexes and four-plexes. Itis
also known as the “Village”.



42.

43.

Assets

44,

12

(e) The Expansion Lands — 15 acres of land surrounding the Harbour and Manor which
has been designated for their expansion.

(f) The Development Lands — when the District began the POP Development, they
acquired title to a quarter section of land, which they later subdivided. ECHS retains
title to the balance of those subdivided lands. Included in the Development Lands
are walking paths, a water retention pond and a recreational vehicle storage lot. -

(@) The Chestermere Lands - 101 acres of undeveloped land within the boundaries of
the Town of Chestermere.

Initially, all of the Condos were owned by the District. The District then granted life
leases to the individual residents with the intention of fostering ongoing interaction with
the residents and to enable the District and the POP Congregation to serve the residents
both spiritually and in practical ways. In 2006, the District transferred title to the entire
POP Development to ECHS. In 2008, the residents were given the option of converting
their life lease to a fee simple interest. As of Novemnber 30, 2014, there are only 63
condos that are owned by ECHS and which are subject to life lease intérests.‘ In
addition, there is a single undeveloped lot owned by ECHS which was originally intended
for building a residence for the Pastor who served the POP Congregation.

Attached as Exhibit “F” are ECHS’ most recent unaudited financial statements for the
period ending November 30, 2014. ECHS' main source of revenue is lease paymenis
from EMSS (as defined and described later) related to its use of the Harbour and the
Manor. In addition, ECHS receives revenue from the provision of water and sewer
services to EMSS and to other.residents within the POP Development.

In addition to the ECHS properties described above, ECHS holds the following assets as
at November 30, 2014:

Cash in bank: $186,066.00

Related party receivabies:  $2,063,890.00 (from EMSS)

$2,344,481.00 (from Shepherd's Village

Ministries Ltd.)
The receivable from Shepherd’s Viltage Ministries Lid. is being paid at $5,000.00 per
month and over the last two years has had additional payments made of approximately
$150,000.00 per year.
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Liabilities

45,

ECHS’ most significant liability relates to the District Mortgage and two mortgages
granted to Concentra Trust (the “Concentra Mortgages”), which total approximately
$89.3 million as at November 30, 2014. In addition, ECHS’ financial statements show
obligations under the Life Leases (as further discussed below) in the amount of $22.6
million. Other Iiabiiitigs as.at November 30, 2014 include the following:

(a) Other liabilities: $2,700.00 (water deposits to Village residents)

46. ECHS has a MasterCard with Bank of Montreal, and ECHS has granted security to Bank
of Montreal. There is also security registered against ECHS's office equipment.
Attached hereto and market as Exhibit “G” are copies of the Personal Property Registry
search results report for ECHS as of January 21, 2015.

47. All obligations owing by ECHS to statutory creditors such as Canada Revenue Agency
for payroll source deductions and GST, employees and workers’ compensation are
current . '

Solvency

48. ECHS has been unable to meet its ongoing obligations under the District Mortgage and

its ongoing operating expenses. In addition, based on the appraised value of the POP
Development, in a liquidation scenario, there would be a significant shortfall in repaying
the amounts due pursuant to the District Mortgage. As such, ECHS is currently
insolvent.

Encharis Management and Support Services

49.

50.

51.

Encharis Management and Support Services (‘EMSS”) operates the Manor and Harbour
and was incorporated in 2006 under the Companies Actand is a registered charity.
EMSS is operated by an eight person board of directors. Aﬁached hereto and marked
as Exhibit “H” is confirmation that EMSS is a registered charity.

EMSS and ECHS are collectively referred to as the “Encharis Group”.

Attached as Exhibit “1” are EMSS' most recent draft unaﬁdited financial statements for
the period ending November 30, 2014. EMSS’ main source of revenue is the funding it
receives from Alberta Health Services related to its operation of the Harbour and the

Manor and the suite rental fees it receives from residents of the Harbour and the Manor.
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Solvency

56.  EMSS has been unable to meet its ongoing obligations. The lease payments that are
due to ECHS have been current for the last 3 years, but there is approximately $2.0
million in lease arrears that accumulated before then. [n addition, EMSS has insufficient
assets to satisty its outstanding liabilities in a liquidation scenario. As a result, EMSS is
currently insolvent.

Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Lid.

57. In 1996, LCC incorporated the Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta - British
Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL") under Part 9 of the Companies Act, RSA
2000, c. C-21 (the "Companies Act’). DIL was created to offer investment funds in the
form of Registered Retirement Savings Plans ("RRSPs”), Registered Retirement Income
Funds (“RRIFs"), and Tax Free Savings Accounts (“TFSAs”) (coliectively the
“Accounts”).

58. Concentra Trust (“Concentra”) is the named Trustee for the Accounts. Under the trust
agreements with Concentra and the depositors, DIL acts as the depositors’ and
Concentra’s agent in performing most of the administrative and investment duties.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “K” is a copy of the agency agreements
between Concentra and DIL. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “L” are copies of
the application forms and Declarations of Trust for the Accounts.

50. There are 1,139 accounts with DiL with the depositors being made up entirely of 914
individuals (the “DIL Depositors”, collectively with the CEF Depositors, the “Depositors”).
The total book value of the deposits with DIL as at November 30, 2014 was

approximately $37.1 million. Most of the accounts are RRSP and RRIF accounts (the
“DIL Accounts”).

60. Due to issues that have arisen with respect to some of the motigages, such as the
Strathmore mortgage described above, receipt of payments from ECHS and regarding
the net realizable value estimated by the proposed Monitor with respect to the property
in Kelowna, DIL is in the process of revising the value of the deposits by using a reserve
amount to take these issues into account. In order to be conservative, there will be an
estimated write down of 24% to the value of the deposits in the DIL Accounts,

61. Attached as Exhibit “M” are DIL's most recent unaudited financial statements for the
period ending January 31, 2014.
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ASSETS
Current Assets
Chequing/Savings

10005 - BMO 1167-306

10006 - US Doliar BMO Acent
US BMOD Accnt
US Foreign Exchangs Acct

Total 70006 « US Dollar BMO Acent

10007 - Petty Cash
Total Chequing/Savings

Aceounts Receivable
10010 - Accounts Receivable
10011 . A/R Rev from Revenue

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
Current Fund Assets
10300 . Prepaid
10100 . Intr Comn Hiding & Chargebacks
10030 - Book Inventory
Tatal Current Fund Assets

Total Other Current Assets
Tatal Current Assets

Other Assets
CEF Fund Assets
CEF Ispecirum Assets

10033 - Impaired Loan

CEF Loan to Cong Balances
16015 . CEF-Loans to Congregations
11015 . LoanPl - Accrint

Total CEF Loan to Cong-Balances

CEF ABC Dist Prop Balances
10020 - CEF-ABC District Property Loans
11020 - LABCLOC - Accrint

Total CEF ABC Dist Prop Balances

CEF ABC Dist Trust Balance
10021 - CEF-ABC Distr Trust Prop Loans
11021 - ABCTLOC - Acer Int

Total CEF ABC Dist Trust Balance

CEF - LOC Balance

10016 - CEF-LOC

11016 - LCREDIT - Acer Int
Total CEF - LOC Balance

CEF - Mortgage Balance
10022 . CEF - Mortgage
11022 . MTGPL - Acer Int

Total CEF - Mortgage Balance

10040 - Res-Car Loans
Total CEF Ispectrum Assets

Balance Sheet

As of January 31, 2014

Jan 31,14

514,319

1701
192
1,693

331
518,543

408,619
{97,975)
310,644

331
284,883
958

286,172

286,172

1,113,359

{12,000,543)

2,336,149
5,560
2,241,709

6,022,825
1,437,896
7,460,722

6,457,304
2,146,388
8,603,692

54,199,081
11,523,365
75,722,446

9,165,356
208,875
9,374,231

22,929

91,525,085
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Investment Summary
10030 - CEF-Investment BMO Nesbitt
10032 . CEF- Investment Cash

Total Investment Summary

Accrued Investment (nterest
10031 - CEF-Acerd Int Rec -Invest Port

Total Accrued Investment interest

Total CEF Fund Assets

Plant Fund Assets
District Building
10055 « Plant-ABC Distriet Off 8ldng
10056 - AA-Qffice Building
Total District Building

10068 . Plant Equipment
10070 . Plant-Equipment
10069 - Plant - Equipment AA
Total 10068 - Plant Equipment

10071 - Plant - OHice Improvements
10072 - Plant - Office Improve Cap Cost
10073 - Plant - Office Improve AA

Total 10071 - Plant - Otfice Improvements

10074 - Plant - HVAC
10075 - Plant - HYALC Cap Cost
10076 - Plant - HVAC AA

Total 10074 . Plant - HVAC

Plant-District Contralled Prop
10060 « Plant-ABC District Properties
Strathmore
Dunbow - South Calgary
Richmond Condo
St. Albert Property

Tatal 10060 - Plant-ABC District Properties

10065 - Plant-ABC District Trust Prop
10066 - Plant - Due From Concordia

10012 . Plant-Land Preceeds-Encharis

Faith School ~ Edmonton
Canmore
Elkfard

Total 10065 « Plant-ABC District Trust Prop

Tuotal Plant-District Controlled Prop

Total Plant Fund Assets

Restricted Fund Assets
10050 - Res-Investment in CEF
Res - Vancouver Miss Kehn
Res - Vancouver Missionary Fund
10050 - Res-Investment in CEF - Other
Total 10050 - Res-Investment in CEF

Bsalance Sheet

As of January 31, 2014

Jan 31, 14

9,573,181
288,496
9,851,687

61,346
61,346

101,448,119

BOG,825
(5D5,373)
an1,450

161,413
(110,430
50,023

7,844
{4,430)
3,414

90,826
(39,438}
51,458

5,891,315
1,019,876
200,310
1,673,324
8,784,824

50,238
6,000,000

" 2,500,000
237,225
214,810
9,002,273

17,787,087

18,194,342

57,378

98,031
445,290
600,797
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Total Restricted Fund Assets

Total Other Assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
. Accounts Payable
20005 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payahle

Credit Cards
Current Fund Liablity
20670 - BMO M/C - J Ruf
20630 - BMO WC - D Becker
20640 - BMO M/C - G Schaeffer
20650 - BMO M/C - L Giese
Total Current Fund Liablity

Tota! Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities
25500 « GST/HST Payable
20008 - LCC Waorker Benefits Pay
20009 - Accrued Liability
CEF - Accrued Liabitlty
20009 . Accrued Liability - Othey
Tota! 20008 - Accrued Liability

CEF Fund Liablity
Term Accrued Interest

24008 - YTMB Acer int
24003 - ¥T Accr Int
24001 - YTE Acer Int
24009 - LID Acor Int
24006 - YTM Accr Int
24002 - YTS Acer Int
24004 - YTSB Accr Int

Total Term Accrued Interest

Savings Accrued Int
24024 . Savings Accrint

Total Savings Accrued Int

Savings Accounts
22024 . CEF-Savings Accounts
22026 - Res-Restricted Funds
20028 - CEF-Restricted Funds
20015 . CEF-KIDS Stamps
20100 - Res-Mileage Reserve.
Total Savings Accounts

Term Investments
20020 - CEF-Term Investments
22004 - YTSE - Semi Ann Term Bonus
22008 - YTMB ~ Mnthly Term Bonus

Balance Sheet

As of January 31, 2014

Jan 31, 14

600,797

—————————————————

120,243,258

121,356,617

31,105
31,105

54
1,082
510
(272)
1,378

1373

200,000
35,000
235,000

15,840
420,921
879,892

3,640
1,870
5,442
3,100

1,350,705

1,547
1,547

1,631,423
431,939
13,462
4,125
105,742
2,386,692

287,360
9,133,772
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20030 - CEF-Zero Interest Invests

22003 - YT - YearTerm

22006 - YTM - MonthlyTerm

22009 + L10 - Lifestyle Inv Options

22002 + YTS - Semi-Annual Term

22001 - YTB - Year Term Bonus
Total 20020 - CEF-Term Investments

Total Term Investments
Total CEF Fund Liablity

Plant Fund Liability
District Property in RRSP
20205 « Plant-Mort LN Pay-Invests Lid.
20207 - Acerued Int on RRSP Loan
Total District Property in RRSP

Ristrict Owned Property
District Property Balance
20204 - Plant - District Property
20202 - Concordia District Investment

Total Disirict Property Balance

20203 - Plant - District Prop Acerd Int
Total District Owned Property

Property Held In Trust
District Trust Property Balance
20200 - Plant-Properties held in trust
Total District Trust Property Balance

20206 - Prop Held in Trust Accrued Int
Total Property Held In Trust

Total Plant Fund Liability
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity

29910 - Current Fund Balance

29930 - CEF Fund Balance

28940 - Plant Fund Balance

29920 - Aestricted Fund Balance

Restricted External

Executive Car Fund
Executive Car Loan Insurance
Sub-Plan
Love Lite Conferance
Youth Ministry
Youth Gathering Balance
Vancouver Missionary Ops
Alberta Flood Relief
Interim Ministry Program
Pastor's Wives Commitiee

Balance Sheet

As of January 31, 2014

Jan 31, 14
177,879
35,650,384
1,220,760
848,274
282,795
53,654,028
100,658,280

100,655,200

104,374,224

6,171,726
24,005
5,195,730

5,975,313
47,513
6,022,825

1,487,896
7,510,722

6,457,304
6,457,304

2,146,288
8,603,632

22,310,144

126,926,150

l

126,958,620

f

126,958,628

(314,675}
(834,932}
(2,866,018)

2,726
5,488
31,516
1,526
2,274
33,044
7.912
3,832
25,178
3,555
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20040 - Sustaining Lutheran Schools Int
Vancouver Kehn Estate
Total Restricted External

Restricted Internal
LWML
Vancouver 5yr Mission
Prior Year Donations
Lutherean Free Conferénce '
Deaf Ministry
Misc Unactounted for Balance
20105 . Res-Conventions

Total Restricted Internal

Total 29920 - Restricted Fund Balance
32000 . Unrestricted Net Assets
Met Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

HAlallwe Q1ICCGL

As of January 31, 2014

Jan3, 14
584
57,376
204,021

2,575
88,031
285,878
2,420
10,867
21,778
43,510
465,089

669,111
(131,180)
(2,124,305)

(5,602,011}

121,356,617
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10/14/14 ST
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss

February 2013 through January 2014

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Restricted Income

Restricted Fund Interest

Internally Restricted Donations

30800 . Restricted Fund Income

30015 . Conventions
2014 - LCC Convention

3 2013 - LCC Pastors n Deacons

2012 - District Conver_ltion .

Total 30015 - Conventions

Total Restricted Income

CEF income

30805 - Admin, Fee - Car Loans

30700 - Investments Ltd. - Mngmnt Fee

30465 . Invesiment Portfolio Income

30470 . Investment Portfolio Gains

30460 - Bank Interést Income

Isepctrum Loan Income
30455 . Loan Interest Income
31016 - LCredit Interest Income
31022 - MTGPI Interest Income
31020 - LABCLOC Interest Income
31015 . LoanPI - Interest Income
31021 - ABC TLOC Interest Income
Capitalized Interest on Loans
Reversal of Accrued Interest

Total Isepctrum Loan Income
Total CEF Income

Plant Fund Income
30650 - Equip purchase by Current Fund
30480 - Property Sale

Total Plant Fund Income

District Current Fund [ncome
Wage Recovery
30206 - PSS Income from Fﬁundation
30900 - Miscellaneous
30600 . GST Rebate
36555 + Cell Tower Income

Feb '13 - Jan 14

12,719
196,821
82,751

13,994
96,810
6,384

117,188

409,479

290
284,898
560,663
342,334

3,162

1,097
3,635,643
291,785
130,555
159,336
397,477
53,435
(3,524,897)

1,144,432

2,335,778

22,380
148,786

171,166

1,180
2,478
599
2,661
17,325
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Accrual Basis Profit & Loss

February 2013 through January 2014

30010 - Speical Mission Offerings
30005 « Mission Remittances

Total District Current Fund Income

30475 - General Donations
Restricted External Donations
30475 - General Donations - Other
Total 30475 - General Donations

30550 - Rental Income

Total Income

Cost of Goods Sold
Interfund Transactions

30441 - ABC Grant to Plant Fund
30440 - Plant-CEF Grant - Prop Int
30560 - Rent - ABC Office Bldg
Restricted Fund Income
40190 - Mortgage Payments
40750 - ABC District Trust Prop pymnt
Restricted Fnds Granted to Dist
Restricted Covnention to Distr

Total Interfund Transactions
Total COGS
Gross Profit

Expense
Common Expenses
Mission Commitment
40005 . Mission Commitment to Synod

Total Mission Commitment

Salaries & Benefits
40104 . Health Benefits
40109 - Misc Benefits
40105 - Salary
40106 - Housing
40107 . Worker Benefit Pension
Salaries & Benefits - Other

Total Salaries & Benefits

40115 . Travel

Feb "13 ~Jan 14

20,883
1,242,223
1,287,360

17,178
2,030
18,208

380,435
4,622,426

(17,178)
(108,356)
(30,000)
{180,955)
47,178
108,356
140,955
40,000

4,622,426

500,000
500,000

33,552
4,510
570,681
60,000
118,966
300
788,009

55,434

" Page2o0f6 }q’



10/14/14 —— - ,;7‘ [
Accrual Basis Profit & Loss

February 2013 through January 2014

Feb 13 - Jan 14

40140 - Professional Development ' 1,533
40100 - Meetings/Travel - Department 21,127
40125 - Conferences & Workshops 3,608
40135 - Professional Services 5,018
40130 - Program Resources 1,316
40120 - Publicity & Promotion 8,847
40110 - Telephone & Fax 6,855
40155 . Stationary & Supplies 2,682
Supplies ’ 233
Kitchen Supplies ’ 83
40170 - Postage & Freight 6,357
40177 . Bank Charges 6,103
40150 . Audit 76,250
40145 . Legal 19,223
40165 - Equipment Purchase {1,876}
40160 - Equipment Maintenance . 3,974
Software ' a1
40161 - Computer Services 88,553
40175 « Insurance ' 22,388
40900 . Other 87
Building
40180 - Services . 7,380
40185 - Utilities 16,184
40196 - Recycling Bins 430
40195 - Building Maint & Repairs 33,690
Total Building 57,684
Total Common Expenses 1,673,599

CEF Fund Expense

Loan Write Down 156,243

40705 . Interest to Investors
42001 - YTB Interest Expense 1,916,204
42009 . LIO interest Expense 47,527
42007 - 3MNTH TRM Interest Exp ' -3
42005 - BMNTH TRM Interest Expe 14
42003 - YT Interest Expense 942,008
42006 - YTM Interest Expense 29,800
42004 - YTSB Interest Expense 10,088
42008 - YTMB Interest Exp 407,325
42002 - YTS Interest Exp 12,180
42026 - ABC Rest Int Exp 2521
42025 . Teacher's Sabatical Int exp 437
42024 . Savings Int exp 19,728
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Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss

February 2013 through January 2014

40705 - Interest to Investors - Other
Total 40705 - Interest to Investors

40178 - invest Portfolio fees/taxes
40720 - CEF Conference

40725 - New Wrkr Orient Conf

40760 - Landrex - King of Kings Offset
Kid Stamp Adjustment

Total CEF Fund Expense

Qutreach Expense

40200 - Program Funding
Airdrie Luth Mission
Parksville - Mission Boat
Redeemer - Kitimat
S, Calgary-Cross Pointe-Heldner
Total 40200 - Program Funding

40205 - Intercultural Miss/Min
White Rock Mission
Faith - Surrey
Trinity Chinese DIV, Richmond
40205 » Intercultural Miss/Min - Other
Total 40205 - Intercultural Miss/Min

40215 - Deaf Ministry
Expansion Wrk/Trnin Church Wrkr
Trinity - Vancouver

Total 40215 - Deaf Ministry

40220 - New Outreach Development
Bethany - Campbell River
Edmonton Mission Work

40221 - Vancouver Urban Evagelist

40220 . New Qutreach Development - Other

Total 40220 . New Outreach Development’

40230 - Evangelism Committee
L.ay Evangelism Training/Trips
40230 - Evangelism Committee - Other

Total 40230 - Evangelism Committee

40235 - Mssn Leader Dvipmnt Cmmttee
PLI/T4M

Feb '13 - Jan 14

(20,290)
3,367,674

41,905
5,518
4,998

(33,262)

3,543,077

12,000
25,000
15,000

681
52,681

10,000
25,000
7,500

500
43,000

{492)
15,000
14,508

7,000
5,000
74,657
18,804

105,461

(180}
500

320

5,048
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Accrual Basis . PrOﬁt & LOSS
February 2013 through January 2014

Feb '13 - Jan 14
—————

40235 « Mssn Leader Dvipmnt Cmmttee - Other 8,762
Total 40235 - Mssn Leader Dvipmnt Cmmttee 14,711
Total Outreach Expense ‘ 230,681

Parish School Services Expense

40362 - PAT 2,000
40352 . Pastor's Wives 748
40300 - Grants to Schools 30,000
40305 - School Development 4,729
40310 - Student Aid 4,750
40335 - Youth Ministry * 5,000
40340 - Youth Ministry Institute 11,159
40360 - Seniors Ministry ' 78
40370 - Task Force Initiatives 251
40385 - Leadership Training 1,804
40395 - Church Intervention 2,489
Total Parish School Services Expense 63,006

DSFM Expense

40400 . Stewardship (329)
40405 . Publications - Canadian Luthera 4,000
40415 . Luthrn Fndtn Can-Gift Planner 37,500
40620 - LHI - Grant 20,000

Total DSFM Expense 61,171

President Expense

40520 - Congregation in Transition 8,344
40515 - Discretionary 56
40510 - Circuit Counselors 8,535
Total President Expense 16,935

BOD Expense .
40635 - Board of Directors 1,567

40630 - Awrds & Recgnins-Staff & Board 197
Total BOD Expense 1,764

Restricted Expenses

40800 - Restricted Fund Expense 9,429
40015 . Convention Expense
2015 - ABC District Convention 3,000
2013 - Pastors and Deacon's 84,911
Total 40015 - Convention Expense ' 87,911

Page 5 of 6 ZO



10114114
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss 7

February 2013 through January 2014

Total Restricted Expenses

Plant Fund Expense

PLNT Opertng Exps Pd by CEF

40851 - Property Taxes

40707 « Plant Fund Accrued Interest
40859 - Exps Sale of Property NOT Inter
40858 - Legal Fees on Sale

40852 - Plant Property Insuarance Exp
40857 . Loss on Property Sale

40856 - Realtor Fees - Properties
40855 - Write-off bapital Assets

40850 - Operating Expenses

40706 - Interest Expense

_ Total Plant Fund Expense

65000 - CAD Suspense IN & OUT

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

Feb "13 - Jan 14

97,340

12,165
46,821
435,704
4,247
3,181
16,498
13,864
16,328
38,009
32,792
438,550

1,058,157

6,746,732

(2,124,305)

(2,124,305)

Page 6 of 6
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' CORPORATE ACCESS NUMBER; 5112269286
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COMPANIES ACT
g
CERTIFICATE ’
OF
INCORPORATION

ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICE
WAS INCORPORATED IN ALBERTA ON 2006/02/17 AS A COMPANY L
GUARANTEE.
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CORPORATE ACCESS NUMBER: 5112269286
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COMPANIES ACT

CERTIFICATE
OF
AMENDMENT

ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND SUP?'ORT SERVICES
CHANGED ITS MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION. THE CHANGE WAS
REGISTERED ON 2007/06/06.
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Canada Revenue  Agence du reveniu
Agency du Canada

Your lile Votra sdlrence

Mr, Steve Grande :

President_ . Ourfile Notre rélérence
Encharis Management and Support Services 3032922
Suite 131

285030 Luther Rose Blvd. N.E.
Calgary AB T1X IM9

August 2, 2007

SUBJECT: NOTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION
Encharis Management and Support Services

Dear Mr. Grande:

We are pleased to inform you that, based on the information supplied, and
assuming that the activities will be as stated in the application, we have determined that the
organization qualifies for tax-exempt status as a registered charity under paragraph
149(1X(f) of the Income Tax Act (the Aer),

Reason for Regisfration

Encharis Management and Support Services has been registered as a
charity because it benefits the community by relieving conditions associating with aging
and/or disability by operating homes and specialized programs for the aged.

the charity's Business Number is 80396 8940 RR0001

the charity is registered effective June 6, 2007;

the charity is designated as a Charitable Organization;

the charity’s fiseal year end has been established as January 31;

the charity will have to file its first annual return on or before July 31, 2008, for
the fiscal period ending January 31, 2008,

The following paragraphs and the documents attached fo this letter
will further explain the operational requirements the charity must meet, its-filing
requirements, the issuance of reccipts, ete, ‘Please take a few minutes to look over

TFes0 E (06) Canadﬁ
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Somabztore ws this fo2pnN

o Court
TAX FREE SAVINGS-ACCOUNT (TFSA) AGENCY AGREEMENT (FUNDY Solicitor
BETWEEN:
CONCENTRA TRUST
{the “Trustee™)
ARD:
LUTHERAN. CHURCH ~ CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLUMBIA. DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD. (“ABC
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS™)
- (the.“Company”)
{
ANDy
THE FUND{S)
(the “Farids”)

ABC District. Invéstments Tax Free Savings Accourit




THIS TAX FREE SAVINGS AGCOUNT (TESA) AGENCY AGREEMENT (FUND) {the “Agreement“)
made effective- ttie.f 30 day of & e , 2008,

BETWEEN:

CONCENTRA TRUST, a trust company ifitorpordted under the
laws of Canads, with it$ hedd offite in the City of Saskatoon, in-
the Province of Saskatchewan, Canada

{the “Trustee™)
AND;

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLL[MBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, ETD. (“ABC DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS"), a. gorpofation mcorporated under the faws of
the Province: of Albeita, with.its prljncipal office Iocated in the City
of Edmontor, in the Provirice of Alberta, Catiada

(the “Company”)
AND:

Each flikd that is Tisted in Schediile “A” and that Is & Sigridtory bereto or which
shall become & Signatory hereto by execution of an Instrurmant. of Atcession
substantially in the form attached as Schédule™B” (each a "Fund” and
collectively; the “Funds”), i edch case acting by and through the Company,
“acting on behalf of the Funds either in its capacity &s managel or trustee o both
(as the case may be) of the Funds;, each with its principal officelocated i the
City of Edmonton in the Province of Alberta; Canada

(the “Funds”) -

(Individiially the “Party™; collectively the “Parties”)

WITNESSES THAT WHEREAS!

A, The Trustes: is appomted by the Company to act as Trustee In respect of the

Company's tax free savings account specimen plar (the “TFSA. Bpetimen®) and the. Trustes -

agrees t4 act in that capacity;

B. The Trustee carries oh business as a trust company iR Canada and has agreed to
act as the trustee in respect.of the Company’s TFSA Specien to enable Holders to hold
investments issued by the Funds under TFSA Contracts; and

ol © The Trustee intends to appoint: the Company, as its agent to conduct all

admims‘tratlve functions as may be reasonably and legally delegated by the Trustee under the

1 2608, Concéntra Financial page.d
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TFSA- Contracts in accordance. with the termis and conditions of the TFSA. Spécimer, this
Agreement, and the reguitements of the Laws;

NOW THEREFORE; In eopsideration. of the premises énd other good and ValUablé cérisideration
(the sufficiency of which s hereby acknowledged by the Parties), the. Parties agree as follows;

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.01 Iy this Agreement, including the. preamble and tfhe".vsched‘ul.e& hereto, unless the context
otherwise requires:

(a) “Application’ means the CRA required form, completed by the Halder, requesting a

TFSA, and accepted by the Company on behaif of the Tiustee;
(b) “CRAT means Canada Reveniie Agénty;

() “Dedlaration of Trust” inesns the térmis. and -conditions establishing the TFSA
Spetinien as approved by CRA, and provided to the Holder;

(d) “Effectivé Date” friggns the day dnd year first written above;.

(e) "Electronic Communication® means any-i:ommunicati—on or instruction by telephone,
wire er other method. of telecommunication. or electronic transmission, intluding a
facsimile ar personal computer transmission;

(fy "External Auditor” means. an independ’ent third party engaged to' carry out
cormpliance, regulatory, and/or financial audits i accordance with the Laws;,

{g) "Holder” means a person for whase benefit a TFSA Contract is established and who
has deposited or transferred, or for whose benefit the Trustee has received the
depaosit or transfer of, Investments under that person’s TFSA Contiact;

(h) “Investment” means upits of the Furids as at the Efféctive Date .and any cther
investiients siibsequently held by the Funds which units snd investments are:

)] “gualified investments” for TFSAs ds set forth in.the ITA; and -
(i)}  authorized by the Trustee: and
(iily . assetforth in the list.attached as Schedule “A” hereto;-
() “Leaws” means. the Jicome Tax Ack (Canadaj (the “ITA?),. federal and provincal.
~ pensior and securlties legislation,. the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and
Terrorist” Financlng Ach, thé Personal Information Protection apd Electronic
Documents: Act, aiy. other applicable policies, legisfation and regufations, best

practices; Generally Accepted: Accounting Principles and Standards (‘GAAP and
GAAS” respediively), and the Support Manuals;. =

(M “List of Names” means.lioth the recerit.and the conselidated lists of Hamas published

by the Security Coundl Committee {established pursuant to paragraph 6. of Seeurity -

Council Resolution 1267 (1999)), arid furttier includes the foflowing:

©.2008, Coritentra Findncial Page’®
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€D lists  of names subject:to the regulations establishing a llst of entitles made
under subsection, 83. D5(1¥ef e Crimitial Code; angdyor the: regulatlons
implementing the Unjted Nations Resolutions on tﬁe Suppression of
Terrorism ("RIUNRST") andfor United Nations Al- -Gaida and Tafiban
Regufat;ons ("UNAQTR™);

(i) lists:of fames subjéct to sanctions under the Regulations: Implemefiting tﬁe
United Natidns Résolution oh the Demodcratic. .Peop?e? Republic of Korea and
the:Regulations Imp‘!emen{*mg the United Natioris Résoliition on Frar;

iy st 8f nares established puFsuatit to. Security Counell Resofution 1483
(2003) - Irag/Kuwait;

(i)  list of individuals and entities subject to the meastires containied’ih paragraphi
1 of Securlty Council Resolution. 1532 (2004) Concérning Libetia (the “Assets'
Freeze List”

) list of mdmduals and entities, subject to the measures imposed by
paragraphs 13 and 15 of Security Council Resolution 1596 (2005) -
Pemocratic Republic of the Congo;

(viy  lisk of names established under Security Councit Resolution 1672 (2006)
establlsh!ng a fist of individuais subject to the measures imposed by
Paragraph 3 of Secufity Council Reselution 1501 (20053 ~ Sudait;

(k) “Morigy"” méans such sumis: of cash acceptable to the Trusteég and the Compiny ag
its agefit, as shajl fiom time to. thne be pajd o deINered to the Trastee or the
Corpany by 6f an.behalfof a Holder, for depasm toa Ho]der's‘ TFSA. Contract, and
the-inivestments), proceeds, éarhings and profits thereon;

{1 “OSFI” means the Office of the. Superintehdent of Firfancial Institutiofis Canada;

(m)"Register” iheans a typed/printed list setting forth:
(i) each Holder’s name, addféss, Social Insurance Nimber afid TFSA Contract
nurmber; and
{ii)  the market value of each Holdér's Investirients by type of product and
aggregate,

(n) “Renewal Term” means a period of one year eommenciig on the expiry daté of the
immediately preceding Term-or Renewal Term, as the case may bej

(e} “Support Manuals” means the legislation summary: and suppert manuals prepared
by the Trustee; g5 amended fromy time to time, ard provided to the Company. The

Company agrees to adhere fo the Support Manua]s, whilch rmay iimit some- options

otherwise available under the ITA: The Support Manuals remairi the pmperty of the
Triskeeand arg provided to the Company for use solely dunng the Term or Renewal
Tefm of this Agréenjent; _

o) "‘Térm"’ rhearis the perfod of orie year commencing on the Effective Date;
P Y

{m) “TFSA Coritract” means the contract enferéd into between the Trustee and an Holder

thiat conforms to the TFSA Specimien, the Deglatation of Trust, the Application apd
correspondifg Locked-in AddEndum, if any, that has been reglstered by CRA:.
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(i} “TFSA Specimen” means the-CRA approved format of Application and Detlaration of
Trust for thetex free-savings aceount;

{s) “Third Parties” means any and all third parties to wharm the Company gr the Trustée
(aside: from the Compiny afid the Trustés) may délegaté duties uride wiig
Agreerient, tohsult with abour duties nnder thls Agreement, 6r rely upon for

-~ provisioh~ofihforamation” telated to this Agreenisit, ahy TRSAT Contraet, the TFSA
Spedimen, oFd Holder,

ARTICLE 2 - APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE

2.01

2.02

The Campanif h‘ere'by- appoints the Trustee to perform the duties speclfied herein for the
Term and any Renewal Term, The Tfustee hiereby accepts the sald appointrient and
confirms. that, in performing the duties specified herein, it acts solely in its capacity as

trustee and not in its perspnal capacity,

A signatory hereto by execution of an Instrument of Accession shall not become a party
heretq, and the Trustee shall not be obliged to act as trustee. of of to provide trustee
services. in; respect of a Tax. Free Savings Account {TFSA) specimen of that signatory,
unless and until the Trustee shall have accepted the signatory as a party hefeto by the
Trustee’s execution of the said Instrament of Acecession, '

ARTICIE 3 — TERM & TERMINATION

3.0t

3.02°

3.03

3.05

Upon the expiry of the Term, this Agreement.shall automatically renew for a Renewal
Term and thereafter for successive- Renewal Terms until this Agreement is terminated in
accofdance with Article 3.02 or 3.03;

The Trustee may. terminate this Agreement upon giving at least ninety (50) days prior

written notice: to the Company, unless such notice is waived by the Company. The
Company may terminate this Agreement upon giving at least: ninety (90) days prior

written notice to the Trustee, unless such notice is waived by the Trustee,

Notwithstariding arything to tha contraty heréin; if the Company fails to notify tfa
Trustee of a delegation to Third Parties pursuani to Article 6.03, the Trustee shall have
the right to. terminate this Agreerient by préviding seven (7). days. notice in writing to
the-Company. : _ '

If this Agreement is terminated for aity reason, apart from. the. irisclvéncy, bankruptey,
breach of Agreement, malfeasance, or negligence of the Company. (in which case the
Trustee:shall have thi right to tefminate this Agieement immédiately), the Tiustee shall
deliver to the Company, 6f at the Coiipahy's difection tb'a successor trustee, all of the
Cofripany’s property in the Trusteé’s posséssion,. or iy Its Third Partles’ possession;
provided that the Trustée shall nét be required to.make delivery, untit it has received fifll
payment OF all feés, costs and: expenses payable hereunder, including any costs or
expensés that fiay arise out of such termination.

In accordance with the Laws; the Trustee will remain as trugtee hetsunder until the
appointment of a new trustee In accordance with this Agreement or by order of a court
of competent jurisdiction, The Company agrees to use its. best efforts ta appolnt a
successor trustee within the time [imits in this Artide 3. ' '

'® 2008, Cdricented Finantlaf . Paged
Luthgran Chirch ABE Plstrict Investments. . .

Tax Free:Savings Aceount {TFSA) AbeTichnarebnent (Fundy

{09-1D-26Y EXECUTION,

VA




'3.06

3.07

4,01 The Trustee's duties hereunder shall be limited to:

(#) obtdining approval for and maiftaining a separate TFSA Specimen; in accordance .
with CRA rules and regulatmns, to be known-as the ABE District I“nvestments Tax
Free Savmgs Account for exclusive use of the Company as manager of the
Investments;

{b) ehsuring that each TFSA Contract between tfie Tiustes and & Holder reported to
the Trustée by thie Company is properly repisteted with CRA;

{c) providihg design. gssistarice for the Declaration of Trust;

(d) providing: support. to the Company, including. advice,. instruction and ‘information.
with respect to the geéneral and technical dperations of the TFSA. Spadifnén as
required fiom time to. tire; provided, howgver, that the Trostés. shall have nd
résponsibilify of liability fof any support, in¢iuding advicé, instruction o
informat:on, obtainiéd by the Company from lts own pmfess;ona] advisors ¢f: the
Company’s reliance thereupon;

(e}  providing necessary liaison with CRA to ensure proper operation of the TFSA
Specirmen; and

() reporting any matches in the [ist of Names disclosed to the Trustee by the
Company, pupsuant to Section 7. 04(g) , 88 required b\,fjawn

4.02 Natwitﬁstandmg anything to the contrary hergin, the Triystea shall not be respnnsmle
for ahd shall assume no liabitity for the duties of the Company under this Agreement or
the mannet in Whlt:h the Campany‘shali carry out,the same.

4.03 The Trustee may appoint and retain such counsel, accountants; aud|tors, appfaisers and
gther experts and advisors as it miay requiré for the purposes of dxschargmg its. duties
héreunder. The: Tristée may act and rely arid shall bé protected. frofy ability whien
relying anid -acting 1 geod falth on the opiniofi and advicé of or inforination cbtained
front” the Cornpany and frofd Eounsel, accotifitants, auditors, appra;sers aid other
experts and adwsovs, whethér retaihied by the Trustee or-the Company; i relation te
any matter arising in the perfofinance of its duties under thi§ Agreement.

4.04 The Trustee shailt exercise reasonable care, diligence and skill in the performance iof its
duties hereunder in the best interests of the Holders (“Standard Bf Care IR
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ARTICLE 4 - DUTIES OF THE TRUSTEE

Notwithistanding anything fo the contrary. in this Agreemant ‘dpon terminationy of this
Ag‘reement the Comipany: shall execute. a release of liability. in & form: acceptable to the
Parties:
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Suppert Mahuals and tealding miaterials to tHe Trustée, and shall delete or destroy any
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5.01 The Company will pay the Trusteg a fee for the performance of the Trustee's dufiss
hereunder; i accordance with Sehedule “C; attached hereto, Schedule € 1§ subject t6
amendment from. Hime o time' upon the Trustee giving thirty (30} days pridr written

riotice to the Company, e

5.02 The -Company will alsd reimburse thé Trustée for reasomable and necessary
expenditures, nokincluded in Schedula €, buf whith are. incurred In the performanice of

its 'duties Wersinder as may be agréed in wriing between the Trustee and the.

Coripany..

5.03. If thé Coiripany fails, at any time, to satisfy its dutigs-under this Agreement the. Trustez
Will be entitled to. recelve a ten (10%) pereent manthly surcharge, in addition to the
fees and expenses payable in accordance with Sections: 5:01 and- 5,02, caleylated by
dividing the annual fee payable fo the Trustee by twelve; (12} miontis ahd multiplying
the result by 10%, [{Anhual Fee.« 12) % 10%], fot each rmonth, or part thereof, that the
Company fails: to meet the sajd requirernents. '

5.04 The Trustee shall be exempt from the giving of any hdnd or security in.corinection with
this Agreement or-any contract, duty ot obligation, whether express: or implied-

ARTICLE 6 - APPOINTMENT OF COMPANY. AS AGENT,

6.01 The Company represénts and warrants fo the Trustee that it is duly: incorporated,
validly subsisting and: in goéd standing, under the laws of the Province of Alberta and
the Country of Canada, that it Is duly qualified, licensed ‘and registered: to carry &n its
business as presently constituted and to act as the Trustee’s agent in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement and the Laws, and that the execution;. delivety and
performance by & of this Agreement are within its powers; have been duly authorized
By all necessary corperate action and will niot contravene (i) its conistating docurients,
{iiy any law, or (ifi) any contract to which it is bound,

6.02 The Funds and the Company hereby jointly and severally’ covenant with, and represent
and ‘warrant to, the Trustee that the Company is &nd, at all material tiries during the
term hereof; will continue to be. the'agént of each of the. Funds fully authotized by each.
of the Fands to observe; perforin and keep edch and every of the covenaits,
agreements, opligations; conditions and othér provisions of ‘this Agreement (the
“Obligations") tq be observed, perforied and kept by the Fund at-the timiés and in the
roanner provided i this Agreefment, For the puipeses of interpreting this Agreement
(with the exceptiofr of Article 9), wheré this Agresthent requites the. Company. to
obsebve; Perfori or keep a coVéhant, agreément,. obligatioh;, condition or other

prevision such covenant, agieement, obligation, ondition or other provision shall be:

deemed to be an Obligation of eath. Fund to be performed by-the Company asthe agent
of the Furids.

6.03  Exeept for those duties specifically undertaken by the Trustee as set forth in Artide 4,
the Trustee héreby appoints the Company as its agent to perform the duties set forth in
this Agreement.as at the Effective Date for the Term and each Renewal Term,

6.04: The aforesaid appointment (s for the limited purpeses specifically set out heveirr and far.

no other purpese. The Trustee acknowledges that the. Company thay, fiom 'tine te
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ARTFICLE 7 - DUTIES: OF COMPANY

time; desire fo. delegate certain of its functions under this Agreement to Third Partles.
Such delegation shall be evidenced in writing and any agreement between the-Company
'ahd any’ Third Party wm bind, the Third Partles by the-same terms as; or stricter ferms.
ﬂ‘aan, those provided for the Company In this Agi eement. The Company. wiil provide
prior written. notice of delegation: to the Trustee mcfumng any. information: about the

. Third Parties that the Trustee may require. Any deiegation by the Company. sha!l nob

reliéve; the Cowgiany from #s responsibilities under this Agreement snd the Cotimpany:
shall bear all cpsts and expenses associated. w1t‘n such de,fegation, induding any
misrepresentation, négligence or malfeasance of Third Partiss in any representations;
actions: or ihactons it may- miake. with respett fe Hoiders; TFSA Contracts o the TFSA
Spedimen.

"7.01 The Company shall perform all acts and do all things required te properly ddminister

$ 7,02

7.03

and maintain-the TFSA Contracts and Tnvestments: as may be requited under the Laws,
and there’after shall at all times strictly comply with:the: terms of this Agreement, the
TFSA Specimen,-the TFSA Contract, and the Laws.

The Company shall at all times act:in a manner that does rot detract. from the business
reiptitation of the Trustee or discredif the: goodwill of the Trustee or result in-the Trustee
becoming liabje. to any person for any reason whatsoever, whether for the ameunt of
ahy Investment made by any person or fof any: other'cause whatsoever:

Withoitt lirfilting the gevierality of Article 7.01, the Compariy shall, at its own experse!

(a) at all times, fully, completely and efféctively co-operate with the Trustee to
enable the Trustee to fulfil its duties and responsibilities hereunder, |hcfuding
providing the Trustee with any reguested information pertaining to Holders,
TFSA Eontracts or the TFSA Spécdimen;

{b) provide &l Information. and  accolintifig systems requiréd to satisfy the
reguiremnents of thé Laws and CRA, or that the Tristee may: Yéasopably require
in wntmg,

{¢) provide all personnel required to carry out the Companv 's duties hereunder; all
of whom shall be- fully trained and qualified employees of the Company and/or
its Third Pzg;hes, and the Company shall designate a competent staff member to
lizise: with the Trustee;

(d)  accept applications, contiibutions, Metiey, transfers and administration fees on’

behalf of Holders on terms and conditions copsistent with the TFSA Specimen
and any dmendfivents therete, the TFSA Contracts, the Laws and CRA:

(e]  alntain records of all personal or personally identifying: infarmation required
under the. Laws with respect to each Holdér, includiig obtaining and recording.
satisfactory evidence of client identification as- reqiiired lpder the Procégds of
Crime: (Mérigy Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act;

(A account for afl Money and Investrhents received or miadé by It for Holders in
respect of any TFSA Contracts and any “subseégiiént trafsactions thereunder, and
otherwise in accordance \mth the: prows:ons ofthe TFSA ﬁontracts,
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(g) ensure that all Money received by the Company are held ifi tfust penging
atquisition of Ihvestments or raking of payments, I actordance With
instructions of the: Holder or the tefis of the TFSA Contract. With. the exdeption
of Monhey: received that will be invested dn the next business day, all Mokigy
recelved by-the Coinpany will ba deposited on theé day of their receipt by the
Comipany ¥ Inivestimgnts:

(i) at a fipancial institution approved by the Trustee;

()  registered to clearly identify the Investments as property of the Trustee;
and

{if}  inCanadian currency;

{hy  ensure: that detailed records. of the }-{olders and the carrésponding amotint of
Motiey and Investmients Reld in tiust are maiptained at all tithes by an arni‘s
length Third Partyy

(1) establish Invastients In the name of the Trustee, in tfust for the Holders, andg
keep records of all Investments so established in a sépdrate section of the
accounting records of the Company specifically designated for recording such
Investments onlyy

{($ prior to the execution of this Agreement, pmwde the Trustee with the Ihitial Due
Diligence Checklist In the form provided for in Schedule *D¥;

(k)  Invest and reinvest all Money and other assets deposited under any TFSA
Contract only in Investments;

O] prevent the assignment, hypothecatmn or other aisenatmn in any way of any
Investinient ‘or Maney deposited or held i thast pursuam: to the TFSA Contract,.
except as may be expressly authorized if writing in advance by the Trustee;

(m) pay out or réléase Mo‘ney and othel assets. to the Holder described in the
rélevant TFSA Conbract and no other person, except as the Tristee may
-atherwise authorize ih writing ji advance of as may' bé. otherwise expréssly
provided for in the Support Manuals;

(1) maks all payments: mt‘l’u'chhg, But riot restrictéd to, payments to Holders or to
estates or beneficiaries of Holders and in answer-to propel éxternal démands in
a timely: mannerf .

(o}  attend to:all TFSA Contract de-registrations, partial ar full withdrawals, over-
contributions, refunds and annulments, forfeitures, reallocations, and file ali
appropriate returns that are required under tha. Laws in respect thereof;

{py  prepare, maintain and provide te the Trustes all documents and records that the
Trustee is required to-file with CRA; and file such documents as the Trustee may
‘direct; from time ta time, with CRA on behalf of the Trustee, on a timely basts
including; without limitation:

() activity listings of al new and existing TFSA Contracts;:

® 2608, Concertra Financial : . . Pagea:
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(@)

{r)

{sy

{t

()

(’V}

Ciij TESA Contract reconciliatipns; and

(i) such other doctments and reéports as may be required by CRA ar other
reguiatory authorities having jurisdiction;

on an anfual basls, provide the Trustes with;

(1) within six ionths following the caiéndar yeak end, a copy of the
Company’s annudl report which includes; the Campam,t’ s wiitten arms?
length External Auditors report, compatative audited fihancial statements
and notes to the financial statements;.

(i) a Compliance Certificate, as outlined inthe Support Manuals;

(i) a fully executed Annual Due Difigence Checkifst with all required
attachments, in the form of Schedule “E” heretoy and

(iv) written confitmation on its lefterhead, signed by its duly authorized
reﬁresentatlves, that it catriés a sufflclent amount of indurance to cover
any.and gl of its l1ablht|es hereunder; including (without limitation) losses
by wdy of theft, fraud; defalcation, and bahkruptey, and a copy of said
instrarice policy o pohcues,

provide Wiittén hotice to the Tiustée of any sigriificant changes in- the leve! of
ipsurance coversage of the Company and/or the Fund, as referiéd to i Article
7.G3(q){iv), said hitice t6 be proyided forthwith;,

réespond, in & timely and, effective manner, to all inquiries from Holders veélating:
to their TFSA Contrdacts, and drinually, or mere frequefitly at the diséretion of the
Company, mail to each Heldér a statemént in respect of that Holders TFSA
Contract for the previous year, or shorter, period showing the details of any
transactions. affecting such TFSA Contract: dunng the period and the total assets
of such TFSA Contract held on. the effective date of such statement, and send
additional statements tothe Holder in respect of material transactions velating to
the TESA Contract within the time frames required by the Trustee and: under the
Laws,

provide the Trustee or OSFI, as. applicable; with access te all documents;
informatien. and records reIatmg {o each Holder; angwer all inguiries from the

“Trustee. related’ {o the discharge of the, Company’s. duties’ hereunder, and aliow.

the Trustes. to conduct reasonable verification and audit procedyres dnd tests
(which miay be undetrtaken by the: Comipany's External Auditors or other auditeys
appolritéd by the Trustee at the expense of the Cempany) as fequired by the
Trustee-from time to time;

purchase and malitain in force.such types and Jevels of bénding or business and
errors Arid omissiphs insuranee coverage, issiied on such ferins as the Trustese
may. from time to:time require ahd as may be requited Ghder the Laws: or by
CRA;

promptly netify the Trustee if any Helder ls in material breach of the Laws;
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o

4]

()

adhere te the instructions of the Trustee and the Laws as o the @mount and

type: of parsonal information to be colfected for the putposes of the TFSA

Contract;

comply, with the requiremients of the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering ahd
Terrorist Financing} Act (Canada) as may be applicable to trst companies and
to-the Comipany; R

sbtaln and malitaiy ah adequaté supply .of all fofms necéssary foF the plrposes
of the Company's duties hereunder; and

assume all such additional responsibilities: or carry. out all such undertakings not

I,’denti‘ﬁe:d by this Agreement or that are pravided for in the Support Manuals: or
as. may be subsequently agreed to in writing by the Trustee ahd the Company.

7.04 The Company shall be directly responisible; as the Trustee’s sgent, and assufes liability

for:

(a)

(b)

(©)

{d)

(e)

{
(9}

(i}

astertaining Whether Investments madé pursuant to iivestinent Instructions
received froim Holders are. or remain “gualified irivestments” for TFSAS for the
purposés of the ITA; -

ascertaining if any tax is payable by a TFSA Contract or Holder in respect of any-

non-qualified mvestinent:

ascertaining: whether the Investments to be made pursuant to ir‘westmenf

Instructions received from Holders have satisfied or will satisfy the securities law

requirements of applicable TESA and Securities Legislation;

without limiiting the generality of the foregoing, complying with the Laws and
directives and other requirements of CRA,.

performing. regular and adeguate- financial and business: audits: of any Third
Parties to ensure their competence and copipliance with this Agregment; the
Laws, any TFSA Contract and the TFSA Specimen;

the actions or omissions of its Third Partigs;

reviewing thé TFSA Contracts on an ongoing basis, not léss than weekly, for
potential matclidgs ta the names published in the Lists of Namies; providing
confirmation’ of seéarch fesults to the THistee oft a monthly basis by the tenth
(10"} day 'of the following fiichth; and otherwise repofting 6 the Trustée any
positivé rame matches, alofg with: ahy associated information requested by the
Trustee, Jmmediately following the identification by the Company- of a positive
name- imatch; )

confirming that Investments otherwise comply with the requirements. of the
Laws, the TFSA Contracts, and the TFSA Specimen and any amendments
therato; and ‘

any loss relafing to the Company’s fallure to conduct any trapsaction jn
accordanee with standard industry’ practice and:GAAP; and the sale and/or other
disposition of any Investment made contrary to andfor ip the absence of

& 2008; Cénteatfa Finarial " : Page 10
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instriactions from an Holder and/oF miade on instructions from a Helder that are
riot carried out-in a timely manner.

7.05 The Company shall collect and account for all administratlnﬁ fees, if any, payable, in

7.06

7.07

- 7.08

720

7.11

accordance with any TFSA Confract and this Agreementy The: Part:es agree ‘that the

amount of the administration fees collected by the Company in respect of apy year

whieh exceeds thie ammount payabie by the Company ko the Trizstée i arcordarice with
Article & shaﬂ be retained by the-Company and shall be considered payment by the
Trustee fo the Csompany as compensation for the: performance by the Company of its
duties under th;s Agreement.

The Company ackhowledgés that it will. ollect “personal. information” frorm. individhal
Holdérs eh Behalf of the Trustee, Withoiit limiting" the generality of Article 7.03(2},
untess specifically: authorized in writing by thé Trustée, the Company dnd any Third
Parties shall riof usé ‘or disclose. any personal information so collected ofi behalf of the
Tristée for any purpese ather thain that.for wihich it was collected {exeept as may be
othierwise. réqliifed by law), The Company shall maintain security safeguards
appropriate: to. thé: sensitivity of the pérsonal information to protect same: agaihst loss
and theft and unalthorized aCCess;, disclosure, copying, use and modification,
regardiess of the form. ik which it is held, If the Company recelves any cormplaint
related to its personal Information collection or handling practices; then it shai] riotify
promptly the Trustee of the details of the complaint and a proposed plan of action.

The Company will not permit any advantage, except as may be specifically permitted |

under the Laws; ’ehat is conditional on the existence of & TFSA Contract to be paid or
grar;ted to a Holder or fo a person with whom the Holder is not “deaimg at drms’
fength”, as defined in the ITA, .

Notwithstanding anythiig to the contrary hefein, the Company shall rot. permiit the
delivery to any Holder or other person authorized by the Trustee of any Money or
Investments except in accordance with the TFSA Contract and. this Agréemment anid unti]
such tirne as all filipgs required to be made asa cgndition: of the release of asséts th the
Holder of other person have heen effected and any tax that ls exigible in respect
thereof has béen withheld,

THe Comipany shall not use any advertising,. promotionial and other matetial designed
for solicitation of the TFSA Contracts that confravenes.any Laws or any other regulatory
requirements, The Company shall, at the request of the Trustee, pro\nde the Trustee
with copies of all materials; used or to be used to solicit or advertise for the TFSA
Contracts. If such solicitation or advertising references the Trustee, the .€ompany shalt
not use such solicitation or advertising material without first regelving the prior wiitten
consent of the: Trustee.

The Company. shall not use Money or lnvestments to set-off any claims the Company
may have against an Helder without the prior writter congent of the, Trustee. To the
extent permitted under the TRSA Cohtract and the Laws, the Trostee may use
Invastrnents Yo pay dlalms in respect of admmlstratlon fees or expenses, including
taxes; jnterest and. penialties, directly reJaﬁng to of payable in réspect of the TESA
Coritract. 4nd this Agresment,.

The Trustee hiay, at any time and from time td time, dpoh foticé to the Company,
require the Copipany to report on afid defiver to the Trustee any Maney or Investments
feteived by the Company: under the TESA. Contrack that . may be held by the: Company..
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The: Comipatty. Shiall forthwith deliver afy sueh. Mohey and Thvestiménts to the Tyistes
and-shall-de: all things hecessary to Have stich Money and Investmierits registéred i the
name of the Trustee of' as'the Trustee hiay désignate,

7.12  The Conmipany shiall pérform all acts and do. all thihgs requiired to. preperly administer the
Investiments as may be reduired under the: Laivs, and shall at all times strictly comply
with the terms of the TFSA Contract and.the RSP Specimen,

7.13  The Company shall file with the Trustee a certificate; of incumbency, substentially: ih the
form set out in Schedule™F”, sefting forth: the names: of those Persons who conistitute:
the signing officers: of the Company, together wilh specimen signatures of such. Persons:
(each an “Authorized Officer”). No. written amendment to-this Agreement is réquired h
the event of changes to Schedule F, apart from the provision thereof by the Corigany
to the Trustee: The Trustee shall be: entitled to rely on the latest certificate filed: with It
by the Company of its. Authiorized Officers, The Trustes stiall be fully protected when
acting upon any. instrurient,. certificate or paper beffeved by it to be genuihe and to be
sighed. .or' présented by thé Autlicrized Officdrs tn biehalf of the Company and the
Trustee shall be upder ng duty to make any investigation-or infguiry as £6 any staténmént
contained In any soch writihg, but may dccept the samé &5 conclusive evidehce of the
truth and accuracy of the staternent théreln contalied. The Trustee,.in acting upon the
instructions of the Company, may rely on the direction of any one of the Authorized
Officers set out in the most recent certificate of incumbency.’

7.14 The Company shall provide the Register at least quarterly to the Trustee.

7.15 The Company shall ensure that it has a contingency plan in plage for any gvent which
could affect the Company’s ability to meet its obfigations as-set forth in this Agreement
(e.g. systems breakdown, natutal disaster, etc.y. The Cotnpany shall regularly fest'the
technical/systenis components of its contingency plan and notify. the Trustee.of the tést
resuits, The: Company shall also ngtify the Trusteg of any significant changes to its
contirigericy plan that may seriously impact its ability to carry out its duties harein.

7.16 Thié Company shall ensure that all records and, informiation, required.to be kept by the
Comipariy under this' Agreement, are maliitained and located iri Canada at all times,

ARTICLE 8 ~ OSFI SUPFRVISORY POWERS

8.01 OSFI and its represeéntatives shall at any time havé the right to:
{a}y exercise the contractual rights of the Trustes relating to audit;

(b)  accompany the ']féus;tee (er its Independent auditor) when it exercises its
contractual audit rights;

(cy  access and make copies of any internal audit reports (and’ assoclated warking
papers and recommendations) prepared by-or for the Company in respect of the
serviee being performed for the Trustee, subject to OSFI agreeing to sign
appropriate: confidentiality documentation in form and content satisfactory to the
Company,; gnd '

{d) zceess findings in t[‘:é exterial audit of the Cotnpany (and associated working
papers dhd recommendations) that addrass the setvice being: perforsied o the

‘g 2008, Concertra Phandil _ Page 12
Lutherdn Cliurch ABC District Investmehty .
Tax Free Savings Acconnt (TFSA) Agehoy Agreemsn(fund)

T06-10-28) BXECUTION:




Trusted; subject to ther consent of the Company's Extérnal Augior and .OSEI -

agreeind {o: sign appropriate confidentiality dociimeritation In fojim -aild, content
satisfactory to the Company and the Extefnal Alditor.

9,01

0.02

9.03

Thie Trustee shall hot: inéur Tiability, or be in any. way tesponsible, for any breach on the
part, of the Compaity or Third Parties relating to the Company’s dutles and obligations
under this Agreement. The Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted
by it, or any action suffered by it to be taken or omitted excepting only its own gross
negligence: of wiliul misconduct, In'ro event shall the Trustew be liable for any
consequential or punitive damages or for consequential losses of any kind whatsoever.

Each Fund shail,- to the. extent permitted by law, Indemnify and hald harmless the
Trustee, the: Trustee’s diréctors, officers, employees, agents; succéssors arid assigns
{other than the Company and its Third Parties}. (thie “Ideninitess”), from and agaifst
any- ahtl all losses,; cldims;, damages, liabilities, penaltiés, actipns; suits; demands,

levies, assessments, costs, expenseés, and. disbiirsements, including any -and alt legal

fees and disbirsérents a8 invdiced to the Trustes, of any kifid or natife whatsoever,
which ay at any time be suffefed by, imposéd oh, incurred by or asserted against the
Indeninitees, whether gioundless or othérwise, howsoever arising from, out of, in
connection with, or as a result off

{a)  dty sujt oF clalm. brought or commenced against the Trustee by any Holder, the
CRA or ahy othér perseon arising from the failure of the Company. and/or its Third
Parties: te- perform the dutles and services required of the Company under this

Agreement, any TFSA Contract or the TFSA Specimen;

(b}  any act, omission or-error of the Trustee in conpiection with its acting as. truste
hereunder, including, without limitation;. the duties ant responsibilities of the

Coempany under Article 7, provided the Trustee did not breach its Standard of
Care; and/or

(c)  any other act or thing done or omitted, to be done by, or any error by, the,
Company, its directors, officers; employees, Third Parties, delegites and
assigns, other than for such matters or-things that are the duties of fhe Trustee
pursiant to Article 4 of this Agregment ‘or such matters or thiigs done By the.
Company, Third Parties: oF theit agents and assigns upon, and i complianice
with, the.advice and direction of the Trustea given purstant fo this Agreeinent. -

The Compiany shall be: joiptly and sevetally liatile with each of the Funds-as- a principal
Party hereto for the dug observation, perforihance and keeping of all of the Obfigations
of each Fund hereunder in the mahner provided for i this Agreement. The Company
unconditionally: agrées and covenants with the Trustee te cause the Funds to duly
obiserve, pérform and keep each and every of the Obligations: te: be observed,
performed and kept by the Funds at the times and in the maenner provided in this
Agreement and, in the event of default by a Fund, to duly observe; perform .and keep
such. Obligations. itself. The: Company. will indemnify and: save Barmiess the Trustes
against and from all Losses which the Trustee may sustain; Incur or betome Tiable for
by reason of the failure, for any reasof whatsoever, of & Fund or the Company oh
behalf of @ Furnid, to: observe, perfonm and keep sach and avery of the Obligations to be
ebgerved, performed and kept by that Fund or the Compary hefeunder,
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9.04

The Cérapany and the Funds ackihowledge dnd agreé that, monetary damagés wolld not
beé- a sufficient refnedy-for a breach of any of the térms:of this Agréemient, Th the event
of & bréach by tie Company or ahy one of the Funds of any of the terms of this
Agreement; including the. bankruptey and Inselvency of the Company or any one of the
Funds, the Trustee-shall, in addition to any and all remedies available at law, be entitled
to seek equitable relief, including injunction and specific performance. The Company
gnd the Funds also agree to reimburse the Trustes for all legal fees, o a solicitor and
own client basis; incurred by the Trustes in successfully enforclng the sbligations of the
Company hereunder. ‘

ARTICLE 10, - NOTICE

10.01 Any notice or difection required oF permitted to bé given underthis Agreéement shall be
' i writihg afid may be given by deliveting, sefiding by Elgctrgric Comwmunication
capable of predicing a printed’ copy, or sending by prepaid registéred miail posted in
Canada,.the notice or direction to the folldwing address or number:
If to the Trustee, for directions and other administrative cormunications, to:
Concentra Trust
333 - 3rd Avenug North
Saslkatoon, Saskatthewan S7K 2M2
Attention:  Corporate Trust Department
Facsimiles (306) 956-300%3
Eail:  corpordtetrust@concentrafinancial.ca
If t6 the Trustee, for notices and other hori-admiinistrative communications, to:
Concentra Trust
333 - 3rd Avenué North
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan S7K 2M2
Atfentiolis  Viee-Presideht/Corporate.Secretary
. Facsimile:  (306) 652-7614
Ernall: corporate.séciétary@concentrafinanclal.ca.
If to the Company or a Fund, to:
Lutheran Church of Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia Districk
Investments, Ltd:
7100 Ada Boulevard
Edmonten; Alberta T58 4E4
Attentior;  CGandare Rivet,
Facsimile: (780 477-9829
Emalls finsmees@lccabe,ca
(or to stich other address or nuriiber &s ahy Party may specify by notice in writing to
arigther Party),. Ahy nicticé delivered or sent by electronic. facsimile trafsmission of-cther
feans: of electrohic cofnmupication capablé of producing & phirited Topy Bn a Business day
shall pe deémed conclusively to- have been effectively given on the day the notice.was
delivered, of the transmission wWas sent successfully to the number set ot above, 3s the
case may be, and, if not delivered on a Pusineds day, shall be deemed ‘conclusivély to
have been effectively given on the next Tollowihg busihess. day. Any notice seff. by
& 20DB,.Concantyw Finangial . Page14
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prepa:d reglstered mail shall be deemed conclusively to haye beer effectively giverd on the
fifth business day after pestings. but if at the time of postifg oF batweeh the tithe of
posting dnd- the: third. business day thereafter theré Is a, strike, lockout, or other fabotir
disturbance affecting postal service, then the notice shall not be effectively given until
actually delivered,

10.02. Any Electronie Communication between the. Company and the Trustee will take place
accerdmg o the following provisions;

fa) The Trustee will consider any Electronic Commiunication received from the
) Company or Iri the tiame of the Company to have Heer authotized by the
Company;

()  If the Electronic Communication is by facsimile; the Trustee 1§ ernititied to- dct
upon any signature purporting to be the Company's sighature. If the Trustee-
were to. try to verify the signgture ori. a facsiriile fransifission o the validity of
ahy instruction provided by Electranic Communicatioh (althicugh thé Trustee s
riot otiligated to do s0) and: was unable to da 5o fo jts satisfaction, the Trustes
may delay in acting or réfuse: to act on suth instructions; arid

{c) The Coimpany agrees that the Tristée’s fecords régdaiding any Electronic
Comrhunication will bé admiséible i any !egal, administrative. or other
proceedings. as if slich records were Original written documents. The Trustee’s
records will be conclusive proof of the information contained in such Etec’cromc
Communication.

ARTICLE 11 ~ ' CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVAGCY

11,01 The Parties. agree to-the following terms with respect to any Confidential. Information
{as defined below) and that the ob!igatlons set forth in this Article shall survive the
terminatioh-of this Agreement:

For the purpose of this Article, Confidential Information sha)l incude the following:

(a} “cpntact Information” which means information to enable an individiat at a place
of busiriess. to be contacted and includes the name, position name or title,
business ;elephone number, business address, bUSmess &-mail or business fax
nuinber of the individual; and.

{bj  “personal information” which means recordéd information ‘about -ar identifiable
ipdividual, othér than contact mformat;on, coilected oy chéated by the Company
as a result of this Agreetment or any: prévicus ‘agreement- between the Company,
the Funhds and the Trustee dealing with the same subject matter as this
Agreement,

11.02 The Parfies agree to use and 1o ensure that:each of their respective representatives
uses the Conf;dentia} Inﬂarmatloﬂ solely for the purpose of earying out their respective
duties under this Agreement and the Parties agree to be fully liable for any breach of
the: ob,llgat?qns contained higrein as a rgsult of any acts or omissians of their réspective
representatives,
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11.03

1}.04 The Parties shall adhere to and comply with applicable federal and. provincial laws and

Thé Parties agree to malntaln the Confidential Information IR - secure fadiiity, taking
cbmmereially reasonabli stepg te protect the Infotmation from: unautharized use, aécsss
oF distlosure.

regulations regarding privacy and protection' of personal information (collectively
“Applicable Privacy laws”). Without limiting: their obiigations under Applicable Privaey
Laws, each of the Parties hereto agrees;

(a) to promptly notify one ancther of any -accidental or unauthorlzed access,
disciostire;. copying, use or modification of Coofidential Inforipatiort of third
parties of any nop-complance with, or breach of; the terms of this provision op
obligations under Applicable Privacy Laws, in ‘Which case(s) the. Parties shall
consult Wwith orie ahothdr with respect ‘to siich miatter and co-operte in
impleménting appropriate corréctive #ctighs’

(b)  to promiptly notify dné another régarding anyohe seeking access te, or With, ahy
inquiries or complainté abouf, Confidehtial Information, and 16 co-opérate with
each other Ih connection: with any-.such access request,. inquiry or complaint and
any response thereto; and

(¢)  to retain Confidentfal Information only as long as necessary for fulfiiment of the
' approved purpose for which it was collected, and thereafter to-destroy any. record:
or document containing Confidential Information (taking appropriate care’in the
destruetion_of the information to prevent unauthorized parties from gaining
access to. it), or remove all Confidential Information from such documentation or

other record or document, except, i éach case; to the extent-that applicable law; -

regulatiori or policy, may: require the Party te retain such records or documents;
and; if's0 requited by applicable faw, regulatich or policy; not to use or disclose
such. Confidentfal Information othér than as permitted by an informed cohsent
form or as prescribed by law.

ARTICLE 12 ~ GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.01

12.02

12.03

Améndment. ~ Except as. hereln otheérwise provided, ne subsequept altafation,
amendiment, chande of addition to this Adreéemient shiall. be binding uped the Partieg
héreto unléss reducéd to writing arid sighed by the Parties hereto.

Applicable Laws - This Agreamé-nt, i all events and forall purposes, will be governed
by, and construed In -accorddnce with, the laws of the Province of Alberta and the
federal laws. of Canada applicable therein. _

Assignment: - This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the prior
written consent of the other except as expressly provided herein, This Agreement shall
enure to the benefit of and be binding. upon the Parties and their respective successors;
hejrg and perfiitted assigns; For grreater cerfainty; any body corporate into or with
which the Trusted may merge, conselidate ot amalgamate; of any body corporate
stcteeding to the trust business of the Trustee shall; upon notice thereof to the
Compahy, be-deemed to be the:successor to-the original Trustee hereunder without any
furthier act on the part ofany. of the Parties tereto,. provided that @ny such successor
trustee 1§ a trust corhparny incorporated under the laws of & Provinte of Canada of the
laws of Canada. - ; .
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12,04

12.05

12.08

12,07

12.08

12.09

12.10

12,11

Entire Agreéenient - The provisions hereln contaihed constitute tHe entire agreement
between the Paities and supersede all previous: coffimunications, representations, and
agreements, whether oral or written, between the: Parties with respéct to the subject
matter heréof, theére being He repreSeftations, warranties, terms, conditions,
undertakings, or collateral agreements (express or 4mplied), between. the Parties. other
than as expressly set forth in this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything te the-contrary
herein, the Parties: expressly agree that where there: are any i‘nconsmtencaes between
this Agreement and the TFSA Contract, the terms of the TFSA Contract will govern arid

supersede the terms of this Agreement, but the absern:e from the TFSA Cont‘rac!; of any

terni cantained in this Agteement will not be deemed an inconsistency.

Execution - This Agl‘eement inay. be executed in any pumbger of countefparts. Each

executed counterpart’ shall be deemed 6 be an ongfnal all execiited couhterpaits

taken together shall constitute oné dgreement.

Furthei Ass@ranées - Eacly of thi& Parties will promptly do, exectte, deliver or ¢ause
to, bé dong, executed gnd delivérgd ai} furthér acts, documents and. things I €onnéction
withi this: Agfeemait that another party iay reasonably réquire; for the purpdses of

giving effect to this Agreemént,

‘Language - The Parties hive -expressly: acceépted that this- Agreement and all

docuimehts. ahd fiotices relating hereto be drafted in English. Les parties aux presentes
ant accepté que fa pmsente convention ‘et tous les documents et avis qui y sont
afférents-soiént rédigés en anglals.

Miscellaneous ~ All references to Articles or Sections. will be deemed ta refer to the
Articles and Sections of this. Agreement, and all titles to Artlcles or SECtlens are solely
for convenience and do npot constitute a substantive part of this Agreement. Al
schedules referenced herein-and attached hereto are mc«orporated into this Agreément.
Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa; Words importing ohe
gender include- both genders, and references to petsons mclude bodies corporate or
non-corporate, The term. “including” will be deemed to mean “without limitatiors of any
kind” whenhever used in this Agreemient and the schiedules,

Settlement of Disputes - In the event of any disputes, tontreversies ¢ clalms arising
in connection with this Agresment or the breach: theteof, the Parties shail try to settle
the problem amicably, .Any disputes, controversigs’ o clajmis that are nob réssived
within shxty (60 days shall be séttfed by a eompetent court of taw,

Severability ~ If any covienant or other provision of this Agreement: is invalid; illegal, or
incapable of being enforced by redson of any rule of law .or public: pelicy, then such
covenant or other provision shall be severed from and shafl not affect any other covenant
of other provision of this Agreement; and this Agreement; shall be construed as if such

invalid; lltegaf or unenforceable covenant or provision had never been cantamed in this.

Agreement. Al other covenants and provisions: of this Agreement shall,. neVel‘cheIess,
remain in full force and effect and no covenant or provision shall be deemed dependent
upon any. othér covenarit-or pravision: uniess so expressed hereln,

Survive Ternii’nation = Those provisiong o-f this Agreemeant th“at by their nature, are
mgended to- sufvive any expiration or te:rmmatuon af this Agreement shall so survive,
intludiing Atticles 3.84, 3,05, 3.06; 4.03; 5, 6.04; 7‘04(f); 7.04(ij, 7.06; 8,9, 11, 12.02,
12.04;, 12.06, 12,09, 12.10 and 1243
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12.12. Timé of Essénce - Time shiall bs of the essence in this Agreement:

12,13 Waiver - The. fafltire of the Company, the Funds or the Trustee to exercise any right,
power dr Gption given to it.hereunder er to insist upon the strict compliance with any of
the terms: or conditions hereof shajl not constitute a wajver of any previsioh of tiis
Adreginent with respect to any ofher ot subsequent breach thereof, rigr 2 waiver by the:
Company, the Funds or fhe Trustee of strict compliance by the other with 4l of the
other provisions hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement by their duly autliorized
representatives as of the: date fifst ahove written, .

CONCENTRA TRUST

Naine; _[/al 7 ﬁ-!,r.r/:«l_fé;ﬁ\;@
Title: _( _')&irifafs rebe 7_}%:"5 Y fifﬂaif"‘;)d fist~

Name: . U

Titie: §r Corporate Trust-Officer -

Per!

Per:

LOTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA ~ BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

INVESTMENTS, LTD.

Title: "] @;w'ENT

ﬂ S “RuE

Tite: _Seeceda Ay=Treasuer
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SCHEDULE A
INVESTMENTS

A Collective Investment Fund

Page 19
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SCHEDULE D
ENYTIAL DUE BILIGENCE CHECKLIST FORM
[See-attached]
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SCHEDULE E
ANNUAL DUE DILIGENCE CHECKLIST FORM

[See attachad]

£
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made this_{)__ day of ;4’;,!; J

BETWEEN:

CO-OPERATIVE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, a company with
its Head Office in the City of Saskatoon, in the Province of
Saskatchewan '

(hereinafter referred to as "the Trustee)

AND:

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD. (“ABC DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS"), a company with its principal office located in the City
of Edmonton, in the Province of Alberta, '

(hereinafter referred to as "the Company")

RRSP and RRIF AGENCY
TRUSTEE AGREEMENT

, 2002

e




th
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made this q day of /-l}nr ] ] , 2002

' BETWEEN:

CO-OPERATIVE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA. a company with-
its Head Office in the City of Saskatoon, in the Province of
Saskatchewan ‘ :

(hereinafter referred to as "the Trustee™)
AND:

LUTHERAN CHURCH - GANADA, THE ALBERTA — BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD. (“ABC DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS”), a company with its principal office located in the City
of Edmonton, in the Province of Alberta,

(hereinafter referred to as "the Company®)

WHEREAS the Trustee will develop and maintain a Retirement Savings Plan (RSP)
specimen to enable Annuitants to hold investments issued by the Company under RSP
contracts; :

WHEREAS the Trustee will develop and maintain‘a Retirement Income Fund (RIF)
specimen to enable Annuitarits to hold investments issued by the Company under RIF
contracts;

AND.WHEREAS the Company conducts all administrative functions as may be reasonably
and legally delegated by the Trustee under such RSP and RIF speciments;

NOW THEREFORE, by execution of this Ag;eemen;, the parties agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1-DEFINITIONS

1.01 In this Agreement, including in the preamble hereto, unless the context
otherwise requires: :

a. “Annuitant’ means a person for whose benefit the Trustee has established
a Contract, who has deposited or transferred Investments or for whose
benefit there have been Investments deposited or transferred, as the case
may be, to that person's Contract and who is entitled to the benefits stated
in the Contract, and includes each person included as an Annuitant by the
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1.02

2.01

Income Tax Act (Canada} and the Regulations thereto (hereinafter referred
to as the “Income Tax Act”),

b. "Contract" means a retirement savings plan contract or a retirement
income fund contract between the Trustee and an eligible Annuitant which
has been accepted for registration by CCRA and is governed by a
Declaration of Trust.

c. "Declaration of Trust” means the Declaration of Trust of the Trustee
establishing the "ABC District Investments Retirement Savings Plan”, and
the “ABC District Investments Retirement Income Fund” as approved by
Canada Customs and Revenue Agency (CCRA).

d. “Effective Date" is June 1, 2002,

e. "Investments" means any of the investments distributed by the Company
as at the Effective Date and any other investments subsequently
distributed by the Company, which are qualified investments for RRSPs
and RRIFs in accordance with the Income Tax Act.

f. "RSP specimen” means the retirement savings plan specimen approved by
CCRA and identified by the approval number allocated by CCRA,

g. "RIF specimen” means the retirement income fund specimen approved by
CCRA and identified by the approval number allocated by CCRA.

h. “Term" means, for purposes of articles 2.02, 4.01 and 6.04 only, a period of
one year commencing on the Effective Date,

i. "Renewal Term” means a further period or periods of one year
commencing on the date on which the immediately preceding Term or
Renewal Term, as the case may be, ended and ending on the same date
in the succeeding year.

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws in effect in the
Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable therein, excluding their
rules governing conflicts of laws, and the parties agree fo submit any dispute
arising out of this Agreement to the Courts of Alberta and irevocably attorn to
the jurisdiction of such Courts,

ARTICLE 2 - APPOINTMENT AND TERM
The Company hereby engages' the Trustee fo perform the services specified

herein. The Company shall have the right to approve the terms and conditions
applicable o the RSP and RIF specimens, provided that the RSP and RIF

-specimens shall at all times comply with the requirements of CCRA.
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. 2.02

2.03

- 2.04

2.05

3.01

- The appointment of the Trustee is for the Term. Upon the expiry of this

Agreement by the passing of time, this Agreement shall automatically renew for
a Renewal Term and thereafter in like manner for similar Renewal Terms until
this- Agreement is terminated by 90 days prior written notice given by the
Trustee to the Company or by the Company fo the Trustee.

For the services to be provided by the Trustee, as required by this Agreement,
the Trustee shall be paid fees as agreed from time to time in writing between

- the Trustee and the Company. The schedule of fees agreed to, effective as at

the Effective Date, is attached hereto as Schedule "A”. The Trustee shall also

- be reimbursed for such reasonable and necessary expenditures incurred in the

performance of its duties hereunder as may be agreed in writing between the
Trustee and the Company.

Failure on the part of the Company to satisfy the requirements set forth in ‘
paragraph 5.02 m) will result in a monthly surcharge to the schedule of fees, fo
be calculated as follows: Annual fee/12 x 10%, provided, however, that prior to
any surcharge being imposed, advance notice shall be provided to the
Company. The surcharge will remain in effect for each month, or part thereof,
uniil compliance is achieved.

Either party upon ninety (90) days written notice to either party may ferfninate
this Agreement.

In the event of termination, all property of the Company in the possession of the
Trustee or its Sub-Agents shall be made available by the Trustee or its Sub-
Agents for delivery to the Company, or to such successor Trustee as shall be
designated by the Company in the notice of termination; provided, that, the
Trustee will not be required to make delivery until full payment shall have been
made to the Trustee of all the Trustee’s fees, costs and expenses arising out of
or in connection herewith, including any costs or expenses arising out of such
delivery.

ARTICLE 3 - DUTIES OF THE TRUSTEE
The specific duties of the Trustee with resped to this Agreement shall be to:

a. Maintain separate specimen RSPs to be known as the "ABC District
Investments Retirement Savings Plan" for exclusive use of the Company
as distributor of the Investments;

b. Maintain a separate specimen RIF 1o be known as the "ABC District
. Investments Retirement Income Fund" for exclusive use of the Company
as distributor of the Investments;




4.01

5.01

5.02

c. Ensure all undertakings as set forth in the referenced RSP Declaration of
Trust and RIF Declaration of Trust are satisfled:;

d. Provide to the Company, and maintain, all required and agreed upon
support procedures including to advise, instruct and supply information to
the Company with respect to the general and technical operations of the
RSP and RIF specimens as required from time to time;

e. Provide RSP and RIF specimen plan design assistance, CCRA approvals
and ongoing RSP and RIF specimen plan maintenance assistance:

-1 Provide all necessary liaison with CCRA, to ensure proper operation of the

RSP and RIF specimen plans; and

g. Carry out all responsibilities and fulfil all undertakings given it under this
Agreement or any supplemental matter subsequently agreed to between
the Trustee and the Company.

ARTICLE 4 - APPOINTMENT OF COMPANY AS AGENT

Except for those duties specifically undertaken by the Trustee, as set forth in
the preceding Article 3, the Trustee appoints the Company as its Agent to
perform all agreed upon acts during the Term and any Renewal. Term.

ARTICLE 5 - DUTIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company, as agent of the Trustee, shall perform all required acls to cause
all Contracts fo be propetly issued under the RSP and RIF specimens as may
be required under all applicable laws and in a manner that does not detract
from the business reputation of the Trustee or result in the Trustee being liable
to any person, whether as a result of a claim for damages, for the amount of
any deposit or investment made by any person that resulted from the issue of a
Contract or for any cause whatsoever.

The Company as agent for the Trustee will be responsible, at its own expense,
to:

a. Provide all information and accounting systems, and the operation
thereof, as required to adequately satisfy all requirements of this

program as may be required by CCRA, any other regulatory authority, or

that the Trustee may reasonably require in the fulfilment of its
responsibilities.

b. Accept applications, deposits and frustee administration fees from

annuitants for Confracts on terms and conditions consistent with the RSP -

~and RIF specimens and the requirements of the Income Tax Act. The
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Company will not amend the RSP or RIF Application, Declaration of Trust
or official receipt form without the advance written approval of the Trustee,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed;

Account for all funds received in respect of applications for Contracts and
any subsequent contributions thereto in the name of the Trustee, in trust for
the individual Annuitants and otherwise in accordance with the provisions
of the RSP and RIF specimens:

Ensure that no assignment or hypothecation is permitted in any way of any
funds, or other assets deposited or held in trust pursuant to a Contract
except for such assignment or hypothecation as may be specifically
permitted and authorized in writing by the Trustee and, except as permitted
in writing by the Trustee, the Company will not pay out or release any such
funds to any person but the Annuitant described in the relevant Contract;

Ensure that it shall, as agent of the Trustee, invest all funds deposited fo a
Contract only in those Investments that are qualified investments under the
Income Tax Act;

Prepare and issue, as agent for the Trustee, receipts for all contributions
that properly require the Issuing of official receipts, received from or on
behalf of Annuitants. Receipts so prepared will be delivered to the
Annuitant or mailed, at the fast given address, to the Annuitant within the
time frames as required under the Income Tax Act;

Prepare and provide to the Trustee, and maintain copies thereof, all
documents and records required to be filed by the Trustee with CCRA or fo
file such documents, as may be directed by the Trustee from time to time,
with CCRA on behalf of the Trustee, on a timely basis including, but not
restricted to:

i.  listings of all new Contract applications received during the calendar
year; : .

il T4RSP and T4RIF Summary and Slips;
li. NR4 Summary and Siips;
iv.  Contract reconciliations; and

v.  such other documents and reports as may be required by CCRA or
other regulatory authority; .

Provide and maintain an adequate supply of all forms necessary for the
operation of this program:;
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i. Ensure that all cash is held in trust, pending acquisition of investments or

payments, in accordance with instructions of the Annuitant or the terms of

the applicable Declaration of Trust, in an account:

i ata financial institution approved by the Trustee, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld: .

it.  registered in such a manner so as to adequately identify it as property of
the Trustee;

iii. inCanadian currency.

and that detailed records of the specific registered plans and the

corresponding amount of cash held in the account are maintained at all
times."

Designate a competent staff member to be responsible for all liaison with
the Trustee; :

Withhold such amounts as may be required from time to time to be
withheld pursuant to the Income Tax Act from all paymenis made on
termination of or withdrawal from a Contract. Such tax withheld shall be
forwarded to the taxation authorities .on behalf of the Tiustee and the
Annuitant under the Contract within the time frame required to comply with
the Income Tax Act. The Company shall be responsible. for withholding the
correct amount of tax from all payments made on any termination or
withdrawal. - Any fines, interest, penalties or prosecutions for failure to
withhold or remit the correct amount of tax are the responsibility of the
Company. The Company will keep the Trustee advised of all amounts
withheld and of the manner in which the Company deals with any fines,
interest, penaities or prosecutions levied or proposed to be levied in
respect of withholdings related to, the termination of or withdrawal of funds
or Investments from any Contract in such manner and to the extent
necessary to permit the trustee to fulfilits obligations to CCRA.

Make all payménts including, but hot restricted to, payments fo Annuitants
or to estates or beneficiaries of Annuitants and proper external demands,
in a timely fashion; :

m. On an annual basis, provide:

* a written confirmation by the external auditors of the Company within
six months following each fiscal year end of the Company addressed to
and supplied to the Trustee to the effect they have examined the
Contracts in sufficient detail to confirm, in their opinion, that .

i~ all Investments issued to Contracts and all Contract cash held
under this Agreement are recorded In such a manner so as to
adequately identify the Investments and cash as the property of

W\




n.

the Trustee in its capacity as trustee for the various Annuitants,
and

ii. ~ that the Company has not permitted any hypothecation or other
assignment or attachment of any Investments held in the name
of the Trustee except as may have been expressly agreed to by
the Trustee: and

fii. that there are no contingent liabilities that would impact the
Investments or if such contingent liabilities exist, fo provide
details of same. - :

Compliance Certificate as outlined in the Support Manual;

Copy of Errors and Omissions Insurance Policy, or other insurance
policy obtained by the Company in accordance with prudent industry
standards, covering losses incurred by way of theft, fraud or defalcation:

Copy of insurance policy reiéting to coverage for employee dishonesty,
depositors forgery and loss of funds; and

Annual Audited Financial Statement.

Respond to all inquiries from Annuitants relating to their Contracts and
annually, or more frequently at the discretion of the Company, mail to
Annuitants a statement in respect of the Annuitant's Contract for the
previous annual, or shorter, period showing the details of any transactions
affecting such Contract during the period and the total assets of such
Contract held on the effective date of such statement. The Company, as
agent.of the Trustee, will send additional statements to the Annuitants in
respect of material fransactions relating to the RSP and RIF specimens
within the time frame required by the Trustee and under any applicable
law.

Deal with assets of each Annuitant held under an RSP contract on maturity
of the RSP contract as necessary to comply with. the election of the
Annuitant as to the form of retirement income to be received by the
Annhuitant and with the terms of the RSP Declaration of Trust. [f the
Annuitant fails to elect a form of retirement income in writing at least 90
days prior to the maturity date of the RSP contract, the Company shall so
advise the Trustee and shall, in accordance with the terms of the RSP
Declaration of Trust, transfer the assets to a RIF contract in the name of
the Annuitant under the RIF Declaration of Trust, or, where the assets held
under the RSP contract are not sufficient to produce a retirement income
greater than $250 per year, the Company shall pay the proceeds of the
RSP coniract, less amounts withheld in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, to the Annuitant as a single sum.
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5.03

5.04

6.01

6.02

8

p. Coliect and account for administration fees payable in accordance with the
Declaration of Trust. It is understood and agreed that the amount of such
administration fees collected in respect of any year in excess of the amount
required to be paid by the Company to the Trustee in accordance with
section 2.03 hereof shall be retained by the Company and considered fo be

payment by the Trustee fo the Company of compensation for the
performance by the company of its duties under this Agreement.

q. Assume additional responsibilities or undertakings not identified by this
Agreement as may be subsequently agreed to in writing between the
Trustee and the Company;

The Company will not permit any advantage, except as may be specifically
permitted under the Income Tax Act, that is conditional on the existence of a
Contract to be paid or granted {o the Annuitant or to a person with whom the
Annuitant was not dealing with at arms’ length, as defined in the Income Tax
Act. :

The Company shall admiinister funds locked-in under pension legistation in
jurisdictions authorized by the Trustee, in accordance with the requirements of
the Trustee, the governing legislation, and the terms of the applicable locking-
in addenda.

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL

The Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee and
its directors, officers, employees and agents from and against any and all
losses, claims, damages, liabilites and expenses of any kind or nature
whatsoever in any way -arising out of or based upon any act or thing done or
omitted to be done by the Company, its agents and assigns (other than for
such matters or things which are the responsibility of the Trustee pursuant to
this Agreement or such matters or things done by the Company or its agents
and assigns upon the advice and direction of the Trustee given pursuant to this
Agreement) that in any way relates to the RSP or RIF specimen or any
Contract or Annuitant thereunder save and except any negligent acts or wilful
misconduct on the part of the Trustee or any of its agents or assigns.

Each notice provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
directed fo the party to whom given, made or delivered at such party's address
for service as specified below, unless otherwise advised in writing by such
party and may be served

a. personally by delivering it to the party on whom it is to be served, provided

such delivery shall be during normal business hours. Any - personally
served notice shall be deemed received by the addressee when actually
delivered as aforesaid; or X ' .




6.03

6.04

b. by facsimile (or by other like method by which a written message may be
sent) directed to the party on whom it is to be served, provided that a notice
may not be sent by this method if the sender is aware that the addressee’s
receiving equipment is not functioning properly. Any notice so served shall
be deemed received by the addressee thereof when actually received by it
if received within the normal working hours of a business day, or at the
commencement of the next ensuing business day following transmission
thereof, whichever is the earlier: or

c. by mailing it first class, postage prepaid, to the party on whom it is served,
provided that a notice may not be sent by this method during impending or
actual postal disruptions. Any notice so served shall be deemed to be
received by the addressee at noon, Central Standard Time, on the earlier
of the actual date of receipt or the fourth business day following the mailing
thereof. '

The address for service for each of the parfies, which may be changed from
time to time by notice given as aforesaid, shall initially be as follows:

Trustee Co-operative Trust Company of Canada
333 - 3rd Avenue North
Saskatoon SK S7K 2M2
Attention: Vice-President/Corporate Secretary
Telephone:  (306) 956-1995
Facsimile; (306) 652-7614

Company  Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta — British Columbia
District Investments, Ltd.
7100 ADA Boulevard
Edmonton, AB T5B 4E4
Attention: Secretary/Treasurer
Telephone:  (780) 474-0063
Facsimile: (780) 477-9829

The failure of the Company or the Trustee to exercise any right, power or
option given to it hereunder or to insist upon the strict compliance with any of
the terms or conditions hereof shall not constitute a waiver of any provision of
this Agreement with respect to any other or subsequent breach thereof, nor a
waiver by the Company or the Trustee of strict compliance with all of the other
provisions hereof.

The Company shall be the exclusive owner of all trade marks, copyright and
other intellectual property rights in respect of all logos, documents and forms
created in relation to the RSP or RIF specimens, provided that the Trustee is
hereby granted, without fee, a license during the Term and any Renewal Term
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to use all such trademarks, copyright and intellectual property as may be
reasonably required to perform its duties hereunder.

This Agreement is personal to the Company and the Trustee and shall not be
assigned by either without the consent of the other. This Agreement shall
enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company and the Trustee and
their respective successors and assigns.

The provisions contained herein constitute the entire agreement between the
Company and the Trustee and supersede all previous communications,
representations and agreements, whether verbal or written, between the
Company and the Trustee with respect to the subject matter thereof,

The invalidity of any particular provision in this Agreement shall not affect any
other provision hereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid
provision were omitted. '

Time shall be of the essence in this Agreement, except where special provision
for the abridgement of time is made by the parties hereto in writing.

The Company agrees to provide the Trustee with access to all documents,
information and records relating o each Contract and to answer all ingquiries
from the Trustee related to the discharge of the Company's duties under this
Agreement and to entite the Trustee to conduct reasonable verification
procedures and tests (which may be undertaken by the Company's external
auditors as agreed to in advance between the Company and the Trustee or
other auditors appointed by the Trustee at the expense of the Company) as
required by the Trustee from time to time.

The Company agrees that all advertising, promotional and other material
designed for solicitation of deposits and/or transfers to a Contract shall not
coniravene applicable provincial and/or federal legisiation or any other
regulatory requirement. The Company also agrees, on the request of the
Trustee, to provide to the Trustee copies of alf materials used or 1o be used to
solicit or advertise for deposits to a Contract. If such solicitation or advertising
involves reference to the Trustee, the Company agrees to use such solicitation
or advertising material only with the written approvai of the Trustee.

The Trustee acknowledges and agrees that the Company may, from time to
time, delegate certain of its functions under this Agreement to other parties.
The Company agrees not to delegate any such functions without the prior
consent of the Trustee, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed.

This Agresment shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
herefo and their respective successors and assigns.

4
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The Company agrees that it is collecting personal information from the
Annuitants on behalf of the Trustee and that the Trustee will specify the
amount and type of personal information to be collected for the purposes of the
Confracts. Unless specifically authorized by the Trustee in writing, the personal
information will not be used or disclosed by the Company or its agents for any
reason other than the purpose for which it was collected, except as required by
law or to satisfy regulatory requirements, The Company agrees to maintain
reasonable security safeguards to protect personal information against loss,
theft, unauthorized access, disclosure, copying, use or madification, regardless
of the form in which it is held. The company also agrees to notify the Trustee
immediately on receipt of any written complaint related to personal information
gathered on behalf of the Trustee. '

The parties have expressly accepted that this Agreement and all documents
and notices relating hereto be drafted in English. Les parties aux présentes ont
accept & que la présente convention et tous les documents et avis qui y sont
afférents soient rédigés en anglais.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly
authorized representatives in that regard as of the date first above written. _

CO-OPERATIVE TRUST COMPANY LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
OF CANADA THE ALBERTA ~- BRITISH COLUMBIA

Pe

Pe

DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD.

MANAGER, ESTATER
TRUST ADMINISTRATION Pep

r__fe
W Wathy Weber _
- /U(I\maer, Trusteeship Services , W




a  SCHEDULE “A” TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
. CO-OPERATIVE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
_ AND
ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
Schedule of Fees and Charges

Trustee Functions

Initial set-up fee
$3,500 - for set-up of both RRSP and RRIF
Includes: Development and execution of Agency Agreement

CCRA liaisons, as necessary, to revise specimen plans for RRSP and
RRIF
Locked-in RRSP/LIRA, LIF and LRIF addenda, as applicable, for British
Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and PBSA, 1985 pension
jurisdictions.

Ongoing trustee responsibility fee per registered product:

$1.00 per contract per month on 1 200 contracts

$0.833 per confract per month on next 200 contracts

$0.666 per contract per month on next 200 contracts

$0.500 per contract per month on next 400 contracts

$0.350 per contract per month oh next 4,000 contracts

$0.250 per contract per month on contracts over 5,000

Minimum Annual Fee: $2,400 per registered product

Includes: Trustee responsibility

Maintenance of RRSP and RRIF spec:men plans ‘
CCRA annual information filings, except those delegated to the Company
Supply and update of base requirements manual and legislative support
manuals for RRSP and RRIF
Supply of periodic taxation/legislative update bulletins
Reasonable frequency telephone assistance with legislative and
administrative support staff

Pension lock-in Fee for RRSP and RRiF
$250.00 per jurisdiction per addendum (except as noted above), plus $100 for any amendments
includes: Development of documentation
Approvals of provincial and/or federal pension authorities

Consultation fee
$100/hour or other agreed-upon rate
Includes: Assistance on specific requests from the Company for such matters as:
- supplying system development specifications
- handiing of estate payouts or third parly demands

Fees are.payable as follows:

Set-up fee: concuirent with signing of agency agreement

Trustee fee: quarterly, in advance, with adjustments.factored into next billing period
‘Pension lock-in fee: at time of request for approval in a specific jurisdiction

Consultation fee: as incurred

All necessarily incurred out-of-pocket expenses, including, but not imited to, CCRA or other regulatory
filing or approval fees, are in addition to the fees noted. GST/PST is applied to al} fees and charges as
appropriate.

Ly




REPLACEMENT TRUSTEE AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT made ag-of the 1% day of Jannary, 2003
BETWEEN:

CONCENTRA FINANCIAL, SERVICES ASSOCIATION, an
asseciation continued: ynder the Cooperative Credit Associations Aet
(Caiada), foinierly known as Co-operative Trust Company of Canada

(“Caneentia Financial”)

CONCENTRA TRUST, a trust company incorporated pursuant to
the' Trust and Lian Companies Act (Canada) and registered fo carry
oir the business of @ trust company. in edch of the provindes and.
tettitories of Canada

("Coniceiitra Trust”)
AND:

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD,
{(“ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS") a company-under the Iaws of
Albetta ,
(thﬁ z'zc ,Olqp.any”j

WITNESSES THAT WHEREAS pursuant to the RREP/RRIR Apgency Trustee Agreenient (the
“Agency Agreement?) made. as of April 9, 2002 between Concentra Finaricidl and the Compary,
Concentra Finaneial, s been appointed irtstée of the ABC Retirement Income: Pund (the “ARG
RIF?}yand the ABC Refirement Savings Plan (the “ABCRSP™);

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Agency Agreement, Cpnc.cﬁﬁa Financial holds in trust to dedl
with the sarng; 4]t property of every riatore and kind, forming part of the property of the. ABC RIFs
and. ABC RSPs, which it has acquired in, ifs capaeity as trustee, and all income fherefrom

(collectively, the “Trust Property™), all in accordance: with and: subject to the -provisions of fhe
Agengy Agreement and the oflier related Agféémenty (the “Trust Dotuinerts” fo which Concentra
Financial, in, ity capacity astiusiee of the ABC RIFs and the ABC'RSPs, is 4 paity;

ANDy WHEREAS Conentra Finanial wishes to resign as trustes of the ABC RiFls and ABC REPs,
the Company wishes to appoint Corteentra Trust in its place anid Concentrs ‘Trast hasagfeed to be
apjiointed 1 ifs place; ' |

. AND WHEREAS flie Cotipany hat dgreed to waive the nofiée requirernent set frth in the Trust
Documents in respeet of the vesignation of Cencentra Financia] as tristee of the ABE RIFs and ABC
RSPs; :

Coficehtra Binfnitial Servics Astobinlion
Gongentra Trist

RESH/BRIF Reflacement Trosioe Agreemant
iistbn 1.0

0




AND WHEREAS the Conipany has agreed to do all thingy nevessdry to effect the chainge of trustes
with reéspect fo ABCRIFS and ABC RSPs issued piiorte the Effective Date set-qut heyein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideratityy of fhe prenises, afid. the covensats and agreements of fhie

patties erefii coifaitied, aiid for other goad and valuable consideration, theteceipt and sufficiedey of

which is. hereby acknowledged by each party, thie paities herehy eovenant-and agree-as follgwsy
1.l Resigriation | |

Concentra Fiidncial Iereby resigns as trustee of the ABC: RIFs and ABE RSP efféctive as of.
Jamvary 1, 2005 {the “Effective Date™) and the Coripany hereby: accepts such resignation and waives
cottipliance with the nofice period therefor set forthi in the Agency Agieemgnt,

12 Appeintment

The Company. hereby appoints Concentra Trust as thetrusies of the ABG RIFs and the ABE R8Py in
accordancé With the Agency Agregment and the Trust Documerits; effective as.of the Effective Date,
and Concentrd Tiust hereby accepts such appointment.

1.3 ASSig‘ nrnetit

Effective as of the Bfféctive Date, Concentra Pinaneial hereby. transfers and assigns. to. Contentea
‘Trusf, and Conicentra. Trist heréby accepts atid assnineés from Coricentra, Fihatitial, all of Concentra-
 Financial’s rights, Thterests, estates, propésties, monies, powers, duties, responsibilities as the tiustee
of the, ABC RIFs and- ABC RSPs in and to the Tiust Propéity and iilider-the Agency Agreement and
the related Trist Dostuments, together with a1l related rights and obligations, iu ¢ach ¢ase as of the
Effective Date; For greater cettainty, nothing’ herein contained shall in any way- release Concerifia
Finaricial from or affect any duties, obligations or Habifities of Concetitta Financial arising prior fo
the Effective Date.

14  Assumption

Pursarit fo its accepfance and assuriiption thigtedf, effective as.of the Bffective Date, Concentra Trast
shell now have vested in. it all riglits, interests, estates, properties, monies, powers, dities,
tesponsibilitics of the trustee of the ABG'RIFs and ABC RSPs in and to the Trust Froperty and undet
the. Ageney Agreérnent and the related Trust Doguments; with Tike effect as if Concentra Trust had
otiginally been named the-trustee thereofin the Agency Agreement, .

1.5 Deliveries

Concentfa. Financial shall. deliver to. Congentra: Trust-all dacuments and cepies thereof] af its own

expense, and staternetits hield by Congentrs Pitiancial in- respect of the Trust Property and under fhe

Agenty Agieemment and-the related Trust Doguinents, and each of Concéntia Financial and Concentra
Tayst shall exeoute: and delives sach iristruments agd do spch other things as miny beé reasonably
required {o fully vest and confirur i Contetitrs Trust 411 o the: rights, interests, estates, properties,
ionies; powers, duties, responsibilities of Concentra Finanoial as trugtes of fhe ABC. RIS and ABC
RSPs with-like efféct as if Coneentra Tiust had Gﬁgﬁaﬁjrbeen the trustee of the- ABC RIFs and ABC
RSByin docordiiics with the Trust Documents, :

Concéntth Pinanciy Servicts Assuciation 3

‘Tofgdna Trist s
RRSP/RAIIE Réplncsinent Thistec Agreshisnl
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1.6 Notices

All notfees, demands 4nd other commuriications to be sétit to Coriceritra Financial, fn its capacity as
trustee of the ABE RIFs and ABC RSPy in accordinte with the Agericy Agreefubtt or aily ielated
Trist Diseuinents, ox otherwise, shall continue to'be made inaceordance with'the Agency Agreement
or the-related Trust Docuirient; 4§ the casemay be, except that th addiess for the tristée shall be;

Coreentra Trisst

333~ 3" Avenue North

Saskatoon, Saskatchiewan STK 2M2

Attentiori;  Vilce-President & Corporaté Secrétary
Facsimile:  (306) 6527614

E-thail: wking@eo-operativettist.ca

17  Representations & Watranties

Each of Concentra Financisl and Coricentra Tiust Heteby iépfesents and warfants 1 the other and. to
the Compatiy-that:

(@ it has the full corporate. pawer and authority fo execute and deliver this Agreement
and any related docuimenits. delivered pursuant thereto and: to do all. acts and, things
required or contemplated fereunder or thereunder:

(b) i has takesi-all fiecessary gotion. to authorize the execution and deﬁ‘e‘)éry of this
Agreement and any related documients and thie performance by it of 15 obligations
hereunder and theieunder and 6f the tfansactions contemplated hereby. and thereby:
and.

(e} each of this Agreement and; any- related. documents to which it is a party is a legal,
valid and: binding obiigation. of that parfy and is enforceable agaitist it by the other
parties thereto in accordance with its terms subject to bankruptey, insolvency,

- reorganization, winding-up; moratoriom and othér laws gerietally affecting. the rights
of créditors and: thie fact thaf specific performance and injunetive relief ate equitable
remedies available only the discretion of the éotirt,

1.8°  Binding Effect

This Agteemeht shiall be binding upon and shall enure to the benefit of each of the parties herets and
their respective successors and perinitted assigns,

1.9  Assipnment

No party may assign any of. ifs rights under this Agreement or ajy-interest herein without the prior
written consent of the other parties,

{bidEntra Finsicin Servioss Asibiation 3
Comegritra Trust: .

RRSE/RRIF Replaceiient Trusies Agrestnent

Version 1.0
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This: Agreement shall be govethed and construgd in accoldanc& with ‘the law of the Agency
Agregiient,

{11 Counterpaits

This Agreement may be executed in sotntetpatts aid delivered by facsimile, gach of which when so
executed and delivered shall ¢onstitute an ozigmal and all of whifch. when taken togethm shall
eotistitute one and the same instrument.

1.12  Purther Assurances -

Each party shall do, exécute, acknodwledge and déliver prcanse to ‘bz done, executed; acknowledged

and delivered, such forfher acts; deeds, mortgapes, framsfers and assufanees as. are- reasoniably
required for the purpose of. aucomphshmg and effecting ths intention of this Agreenment.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the partiss have executed this Agreement as of the: date first wittfen
above,

CONGCENTRA FINANCIAL SERVICES
ASSOCIATION : .

| BORGTHCE | o
Per: [93 L A ST Gne s
Nare
Titler Enis Pagin

v st Cfienr
Per: /L/ﬁ )7’044%
Name:
Title:

CONCENTRA TRUST

o ~HORGTHY Do e
¥ O FRIBLON,

/ ' Mzedid Twamiboy
Perq %} A_/a ,ni VBl

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE
ALBERTA BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Eoncontm Fibinstil Servicds Assboialion . , 4
Omcauin “Trdist :
RRSP.'KRH-‘ Réplagenient Trisstes Agreement

Version'1,0,

v DORMUTH
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APPLICATION FORM g et 1 g SteviE o
TAX FREE SAVINGS ACCOUNT - Full e Erlalamn
' A

AR T P
s
W

The Lutheran Church-Canada, The Alberta - St pafors Jﬁ 4
British Columbia District Investments, Ltd. ; Y S hs\f‘éﬂ(g—

(ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.) e
7100 ADA BLVD NW, EDMONTON AB TSE 4B4

CTNL =

(ASSIGNED BY ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.)

i S?na J. COUrt
: : - AITster & Soligiter

{Where the sole beneficlary Is my spouse, this designation alse stands as » Successor Holder appointment, whereby the original TFSA contract
continues in my spouse’s name. )

I hereby designate:
Name: Relatienship:
Address: SIN: Minor (Y/N})

as the person entitled to receive the proceeds of the TFSA In the event of my death, For additional and/er alternate beneficlaries
complete a separate page. : K

The beneficiary(s) designated herein must survive me and accept this designation in arder to receive benefits payable under this TFSA, If
more than one beneficiary Is entitied to recejve beneflts, they shall share the proceeds equally unless otherwise specified,

CAUTION: 1) Your designation of beneficiary by means of a designation form will not be revoked or changed
automatically by any future marriage or divorce. Should you wish to change your beneficiary in the event
of a future marriage or divorce, you will have to do so by means of a new designation.

2} Your estate may be responsible for reporting and paying income tax on proceeds paid to a designated

beneficiary,
Date (DD/MMM/YYYY) Witness (should not be ¥ beneficiary or » reftive of helder) Holder Signature
. Naote: Must be signed and witnessed to be valid.

To: Concentra Trust = Trustes

®  Ihereby apply for participation In The Lutheran Church ~ Canada, The Alberta ~ British Columbia District Investments Ltd, Tax-

Free Savings Account (TFSA) in actordance with the Declaration of Trust supplled to me.

I request the Trustee to file an slection to register my arrangement as a TFSA under the Jncome Tax Act (Canada).

I hereby acknowledge that I am solely respansible for determining the amount of contribition to the TSFA.

I hereby agree to notify the Truster In the event that I am no longer a resident of Canada,

It is my responsibllity to ensure that all investments purchased for the TFSA are qualified as defined in the Income Tax Act.

I hereby acknowledge that 1 am at laast 1B years of age. '

T confirm that the information provided ta Concentra Financia) Services Association, its agents or affiliates {collectively “Concentra *

Financial”) is complete and accurste, I hereby agree and consent to, and accept this as notice of, the terms of the Concentra Finanhcial

Canfidentizlity and Privacy Statement (located at Itp: /fwww.concentrafinanciat.ea). { further agree and consent to Concentra Financial

obtaining and retaining my persenal information in order to ascertain my Identity as required by the Proceeds of Crime {Money Laundering)
and Terrorist Financing Act and as required by law.

e GFRe TFOBRE =
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: DATE:

‘THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA OISTRICT TESA 5’
APPLICATICN FORM Aug-2009 é|



THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, YHE ALBERTA ~ BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS, LTD. TAX-FREE SAV!NGS ACCOUNT
DECLARATION OF TRUST

We, Contentra Trust, hereby declare that we accept the trust ereated batween us and the Holder when the Appiication was signed, upon the following terms:

Definitions

The following definitions apply:

*Contribution” Any amount paid Trto yeur Tax-Frae Savings Atcount (TFSA) by
YOu,

“Holder” Az gefined by the Jacome Tax Act, until your death, Is you, and,

. at and after your death, your Spause who acquites the rights as
successer holder as appointed by you,

“TFSA" The “The Lutheran Church - Canzda, The Alberta - British

Ci bla Oistrict I , Ltd.” Tax-Free Savings Account
consisting of the Appfication and this Declaratinn of Trust,

“Intome Tax Act” The Income Tax Act (Canada), and regulatlnns thereto, both as

amanded frot time to time,

9. Beneficiary Designation .
You may designate » beneficlary, in those provinces whare the law $o permits, to
receive the remaining preceeds of ysur TFSA In the event of your death while your
TFSA continues to exist and where yaur spouse dig not bacome entitted to all future
rights under the TFSA az permitted bnder Clayse B, Details of our raquirements for
making, changing or kIng suzh a d Ton are avail from our offices.

10. Death
Where you have not properly etected to have your spouse becorne the holder of your
TESA as provided for by Clause B, we will, once we have received the documentation
we tequire, pay the TFSA proceeds by a single payment, less requiretl incoms tex
deductiong, to your desighated benefidary ahe netify your estate represantative of
any resulting tax liability. In instances where you have not designated = beneficiary

“Spouse” As recognized In the [nceme Tax Ack as your subviver for th:
purpeses of tax-free savings accounts and, where ap
incorperates the meaning of the term “common-law partner” as
set out in Subsection 248(1) of the Income Yax Act.

“Survivor” Ancther Individual who is, | diately before the Individual's
death, 3 spouse or commen-law pertner of the individual,

“Trustee™ Concentra Trust

2, - Registration

7.

We will file yaur election to register this arrangernent as a TFSA under the fncome
Tox Act,

Cantributions

We will only accept contributions made by you and we will hold 2/l contributions
made to your TFSA, and any Income earned on these contributions, s cutlined in
this Ceclaration of Trust and ag reauired by the Income Tax Act.

Withdrawal of Contributions ’ .
Upon receipt of your written appliction, we will refund to you the amount
determined in aceordance with Parageaph 146.2{2)(d) of the Jncome Tax Act,

¥You are permitted to make withdrawals from the TFSA at any time; however, you
may be restricted due to the conditions imposed by terms of the investments held
in your T#SA. |

Record Keeping

We will record the details af all eentHbutions to your TFSA, their investment, and of

alt pzyments from your TFSA. We will supply yeu with 2 statement of these details

at least annually. We will complete the regulatory reporting as required by the

Income Tax Act. .

Investment

a} Investments In the TFSA will be Invested and reitvested by the Trustes in a
colleetive investment fund, pringlpally In mortgages, on:

) <churches and p of. member s of the Lutheran
CThurch - Canada, The Albarta - British Cnlumhla District (the “Church™);
and

i) other worthwhile projects, constituting real property or interests in real
property lacated In Canada, which further and promote the ohfects and
nterests of the Church, Including:

I} supporting public worshlp;

II) establishing and maintaining hemes for the elderly and disabled;

ItI) promoting ecclesiastical work in the extension of religion by
educatipnal, charitable ahd missionary work; and

Iv} establishing and maintaining parschial schools, eolleges, seminsries
and other Institutions of learning, for the purpose of training full-time
church workers and far graviding general Christian education thereby
preparing students for ministry in whatever vecation they chooee,

(coliectively, the “Projects™), and such other qualified investments as may he

permitted by the Act and by the Trustee.

b) The Trustet will not be restriced by any laws concerning investments
permitted te be made by trustees. Pending investment, property of the TFSA
in the form of cash wil ba held by the Trustee In & segregated account and,
provided that such cash has been deposited with the Trustee, Interest shall be
pald thereon on such terms and at such rate or rates as the Trustee may, in its
sele discretion apd frem time to fime establish, The Trustee's sole obligation
relzating to investment of the TF5A assets will be to;

f} execute the Holder's directions with respect to the investment of menles
contributed by the Holder or the Holder's spouse and the proceeds of any
sales of such investments or reinvestments and any income esrhed
thereon; and

if) maintain legal ownership and possession of the investments whizh from
time to time form part of the property of the TFSA, or mazintzin such
investments In bearer form or in the n2me of a homisee or In such other
name as the Trustee may determine,

c} Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, It is the sole responsitility
of the Holder to choose the investments of the TFSA, to determine whether
any such Investment |s or remains a qualified investment or constitutes
“foreign property” within the meaning yscribed to that term under the Act, and
to determine whether any investment should be purchaged, sold of retained by
the Trustee as part of the TFSA. The ‘Trustee will not be lisble te the Holder
for:

1) Any additional taxes or penalties ralating to suth investment Imposed by
the Act,or

i} Any lasses of any nature whitsoaver with respect to TFSA | b

as provided for by Clause 9, the TFSA proceeds will be paid by a single payment, less

required income tex deductions, to your estate. Wheh we have made the payment of

the fund proceeds to your designated beneficiary or to your estate, we will be

considered as fully discharged from any further lability with respect to your TFSA.

11. Your Responsibifities )
It Is your responsibllity to keep us advised, In writfng, at 21! times of any changes in
your address and/or residency status,

12. Restriction of Trustee {Advantage)
We cahtot give your or any person refated to you any benefit, (zan or adventage if
the benefit, Isan or ather advantage is cenditional upon the existence of your TFSA,

2. Amendments
We may frem time to time amend your TFSA by giving you nobice In writing. Any
amendment cannot, however, be contrary to the provisions of the Jncome Tax Act,

+ In the event af thanges to the Income Tex Act the terms of your TFSA may be
amended without notice to you to ensure that your TFSA cantinues to comply with all
applicable legistation.

14, Notices
Any notlces given Yo us by you under this TFSA shall be sufficiently given if malled,
postage prepald by you, to sny of our offices and shall be deemed o have been
given on the day that such notice is recelved by us, Any notices given by us te yoy
shall be sufficlently glven IF mailed, postage prepsid by us, to you at your last
address supplied by you and shall be deemed to hava been given on the day of
anlling.

15, Limits of Qur Liability
We chal not be regponsible for any loss or damage suffered or incurred by your
‘TFSA, by you or by any beneflciary designated by you, unless caused by or resylting
frem our dishenesty, negligence, wilful misconduct or tack of good faith,

16. TFSA Trust Borrowing Prohibited
This TFSA s a trust atrahgement and Is problblted from borrowing meney or other
preperty far the purpose of this TFSA.

17. Use of TFSA As Security For a Loan

You may nct use your interest or, for civil law, legal right in the TFSA as security for

a loan or other indebtedness unless agreed by us in writing, If agreed ta, then

{2} the terms and ditions of the d must be those which persons
dealing at arin's length with each other would have entered into;

(b} i must be reasonable to conclude that none of the maln purposes for such use
i to enable a person (other than you) or a partnership to beneft from the
exemption frem tax provided by the TFSA; and

{c} tothe =xtent that the provislons of the second paragraph of Section 4, Saetion
7 and the first paragraph of Seetion 18 herenf sre inconsistent with using an
interest or right in the TFSA a5 security for & foan or other Indebtedness, they
will not apply.

1B, Oth#r Conditions
We shall maintain this TFSA for the exelusive benefit of you end while you are the
Holder under your TFSA, no one other than you or us shall have rights to the TFSA
relating to the amount and timing of distributions and the investment of funds,

1f applicable, we shall provide you with a copy of the fae schedule in effect from time
to time, We shall be entitled to such fees and to reimbursement for oMl expenses
reasonably incurred by It in adminlstering the TFSA as may be provided Jor in any
fee schedule in effect at that time. The fees payable to us are subfect to change
provided that you shall be given at least 60 days notice prinr to any change in such
fees becoming effective. Notwith ding any other p | hereln, we
shali be entifed to additional fees for axtraordlnar',r services performed by it from
time to time commensurate with the time and responsibility Involved. We are fully
authorized by you to sell investments of the TFSA In order to realize sufficient
monjes for the payment of the above fees and expenses and te withdraw payment
from the assets of the TFSA without seeking the prior spproval or instruction of you,

'19. Resignation of Trustea
We may resign 2t any time by deliverlng 50 days notice of our resignation to you, In
the event of our resignation, you shall appoint & successor. trustee who shall be
aceepteble to us. We shall deliver the praperty comprised of the investments within
the TFSA and the records relating thereto, and shall execute such deeds and

whether or pat the Trustee has communicated to the Holder any
information the Trustee may have recslved, or any judgment the Trustee
may have formed with respect to the foregolng at any paricular time,
d) The Trustee shall have no obligation to exercise any voting rights In respect of
Investments of the TFSA in the absence of spedfic Instructions.

Transfers

At your direction, we will transfer all investments held In yeur TFSA, or such portion
a5 you direct, together with all inf y for the conti) of the
TFSA, to ancther TFSA registered in your name, or in the name of your spouse, or
former spous#, pursuant to a dectee, order ar judgment of a competent tribunal or
a written separation agreement, relating to a division cof property between yourself
znd your spouse or former spouse in settlement of rights arislng out of your
marriage/common-law pastnership, on or after the breakdewn of your
marriage/common-law partnership.

Successor Holder Election

Yeu may elact to have your surviving spouse become the holder of your TFSA after
your death, This election may be mstricted by provincial leglslztion goverring
designations of benefidary on TF5A.

and da such things as may be requisite in order to ensure the continued
and uninterrupted operation of the TFSA. Should you neglect or refuse to appoint a
successer truster whe shall be arceptable to us, we reserve the right to tramsfar
assets in specle to you as a withdrawal from your TFSA,

20, Ultimate Responsibility
We have entered into an Agehcy Agreement with the "The Lutheran Church =
Canada, The Alberta = British Columbla District Invesiments, Ltd.”, named in the
Application which provides that "The Lutherar Chureh - Canada, The Albsrts ~
Sritish Columbla District Investments, Lt3.”, acts as our Agent for the purposes of
administration of this TFSA. However, we are ulimetely responsibie for the
tdministration of the TFSA.

5D0-047 {04/D9) Lutheran ABC TFSA  @2004, Concentra Financial
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APPLICATION FORM
RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN (the “Plan”)

The Lutheran Church-Canada, Alberta - British Columbia District Investments, Ltd.
ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

CONTRACT NUMBER: TRANSFER FROM:
RRSP RRIF RPP

LOCKED-IN YES LOCKED-IN NO

Jurisdiction (attach addendum)

In accordance with the Declaration of Trust under the Plan, I hereby revoke any previous designation of beneficiary made by me

in respect of the Plan and I hereby designate:

Name:

Relationship:

Address:

SIN: Minor (¥/NY

as the person entitled to receive the proceeds of the Plan in the event of my death. For additional and/or alternate beneficiaries
complete a separate page.

The beneficiary(s) designated herem must survive me and accept this designation in order to receive benefits payable under this

Plan, If more than one beneficiary is entitled to receive benefits, they shall share the proceeds equally unless otherwise
specified.

CAUTION: 1) Your designation of beneficiary by means of a designation form will not be revoked or changed automatically by any future
marriage or divorce. Should you wish to change your beneficiary in the event of a future marriage or divorce, you will have to do
so by means of a new designation,

2) Your estate may be responsible for reporting and paying income tax on proceeds paid to a designated benefi iciary.
3) If funds contained in this contract are subject to a pension lock-in, the locking-in-addendum governing such Pension Lock-in may
override this desighation if a person other than your spouse is designated to receive the proceeds.

Date (DD/MMM/YYYY) Witness (should not e 8 benefictary or a relative of Annultent)  Annuitant Signhature

Note: Must be signed and witnessed to be valid.

LUTHERAN CHURCH CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN APPLICATION FORM Rev. Jul 2009
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DECLARATION TO: CONCENTRA TRUST, TRUSTEE

As a member, adherent or support of the Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta ~ British Columbia District (the “Church™), I hereby
apply for membership in the Plan and request Concentra Trust te act as trustee of the Plan. I agree to comply with the terms and
conditions stated herein and in the Declaration of Trust which I acknowledge having received. I request that the Trustee apply for
registration of my Plan with the proper authorities pursuant to the provisions of Section 146 of the Income Tax Act {Canada) and if
applicable, with income tax legislation of the Province indicated in my home address above.

I appoint the LUTHERAN CHURCH-CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD. to be my Agent for
the administration and record keeping of my Plan for which Concentra Trust acts as trustee and for the ongoing valuation anrd
administration of the Plan as défined in the Declaration of Trust,

I acknowledge that is my sole responsibility to determine the maximum permitted deduction which I may claim under the Income
Tax Act (Canada) with respect to my contributions to the Plan.

I understand and acknowledgment that investments of the Plan will be made principally in mortgages on Church property or other

worthwhile prejects having a significant support base from the members, adherents or supporters of the Church, and as a result the
fair market value and marketability of such investments may be affected.

I'understand that any benefit received under the Plan Is taxable in accordance with Section 146 of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

I understand that Concentra Trust shall give no investment advice in connection with the purchase, retention, or sale of any
investment.

I certify that the information provided herein by me is correct and is the basis for establishing my Plan.

I confirm that the information provided to Concentra Financial Services Association, its agents or affiliates (collectively "Concentra
Financial”) is complete and accurate. I hereby agree and consent to, and accept this as notice of, the terms of the Concentra
Financial Confidentiality and Privacy Statement (located at http://www.concentrafinancial.ca/canfidential privacy.as }. I further
agree and consent to Concentra Financial obtaining and retaining my personal information in order to ascertain my identity as
required by the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act and as required by law,

FOR SPOUSAL OR COMMON-LAW PARTNER

PLAN ONLY:
ANNUITANT'S SIGNATURE DATE CONTRIBUTOR'S SIGNATURE DATE
(WITNESS} DATE {WITNESS) DATE

NOTE: THE WITNESS SHOULD NOT BE A BENEFICIARY OR ANY PERSON RELATED TQ A BENEFICIARY OR RELATED TO THE ANNUITANT,

| AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:

‘LUTHERAN CHURCH CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN APPLICATION FORM Rev. Jul 2009 Page 2
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH-CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
(ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENT)
RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN DECLARATION OF TRUST

We, Concentra Trust, declare that we accept the trust created between us and the Annuitant when the application was signed. The following
are the terms of this trust:

Definitions

The following definitions apply:

“Contributor” The individual, either you or your spouse, who
made a contribution to the Plan.

“Contribution” Any amount paid or qualified investment
deposited in your Plan,

“Income Tax Act” Income Tax Act (Canada), and regulations
thereto, as amended from time to time.

*Plan” The Lutheran Church - Canada, Alberta-British
Columbia District Investments Ltd. (ABC District Investment)
Retirement Savings Plan consisting of the Application and this
Declaration of Trust and the addendum or addenda thereto,
where applicable.

“Plan Maturity” The date you eventually select for
commencement of retirement income from the Plan. (This date
must not be later than the maturity date provided in the Income
Tax Act.}

“Spouse” As recognized in the Incorme Tax Act for the
purposes of registered retirement savings plans and, where
applicablg, incorporates the meaning of the term “common-law
partner” as set out in subsection 248(1) of the Income Tax Act.
“Trustee” Concentra Trust

“Agent” Lutheran Church - Canada, Alberta-British Columbia
District Investments Ltd.

Registration :
We will apply for registration of your Plan as required by the
Income Tax Act.

Contributions-

We will hold all contributions made to your Plan, and any’

income earned on these contributions, as outlined in this
Declaration and as required by the JIncome Tax Act. No
contributions may be made after the Plan Maturity.

Record Keeping

We will record the details of all contributions and transactions
relating to your Plan, We will supply you with a statement of
these details at least anpually,

Income Tax Receipts

We will provide the contributor with a receipt or receipts,

suitable for income tax filing purposes, for all eligible
contributions.

Refund of Contributions

Upon receipt of your written application, and the written
application of your spouse if your spouse was the contributor to
your Plan, we will refund to the taxpayer the amount
determined in accordance with paragraph 146(2)(c.1) of the
Income Tax Act.

Investment

Al contributions and other assets or amounts properly
transferred into your Plan will be deposited and invested as
directed by you. You shall be permitted to hold those assets and
investments which are:

a, authorized under the Income Tax Act; and

b. acceptable to us; and .

c. agreed upon from time to time, between the Trustee and"

you.

We reserve the right to refuse to hojd or accept certain
investments even though they may be qualified investments
under Income Tax Act.

We will not accept investment instructions for the purchase of a
non-qualified investment or a prohibited investment. We may
request additional documentation from you proving the

500-038 (10/14)
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11.

investment to be purchased s neither a non-qualified
investment nor a prohibited investment.

Retirement Income

You must advise us in writing, at least 90 days prior to your

Plan Maturity, of the type of retirement income you elect to

recelve from the proceeds of your Plan. You may choose to

receive income from any one of, or any combination of, a life
annuity, a fixed term annuity providing benefits for a term of
years equal to 90 minus the age in whole years of the annuitant
at the maturity of the plan (or the annuitant’s spouse if the
spouse is younger and the annuitant so elects to use the
spouse’s age), a registered retirement income fund or other
retirement income option that may be provided for in the

Intome Tax Act. If the. retirement income you choose to receive

is an annuity, it must meet the following conditions:

a. It must be paid out in a single lump sum if it becomes
payable to someone other than your spouse upon or after
your death. -

b. It must be paid in equal annual or more frequent periodic
payments until such time as you fully or partially commute
this retirement income and, where such commutation is
partial, equal annual or more frequent periodic payments
thereafter.

c. It must not provide for any increase in the amount of the
periodic payments as a result of your death where
payments are to continue to your spouse following your
death.

d. It may not be assigned in whole or in part.

If you have not advised us in writing, prior to the maturity date
provided in the Income Tax. Act, of your selection of a
retirement income the proceeds of your Plan will be transferred
to a Registered Retirement Income Fund trusteed by us. If the
funds held in your Plan at the Plan Maturity are not sufficient to
produce a retirement income of greater than $250.00 per
annum the funds in your Plan will be paid to you as a single
lump sum in the year following Plan Maturity.

Beneficiary Designation

You may designate a beneficiary, in those provinces where the
law so permits, to receive the proceeds of your Plan in the event
of your death prior to your Plan Maturity. Details of our
requirements for making, changing or revoking such a
designation are available from the office of the Agent, '

Death of Annuitant

In the event of your death prior te the Plan Maturity, we will,
once we have received the documentation we require, pay or
transfer the Plan proceeds, less required income tax deductions,
to your designated beneficiary and notify vour estate
representative of any resulting tax liability. When we have made
the payment to your designated beneficlary, we will be
considered as fully. discharged from any further liability with
respect to your Plan. In instances where you have not
designated a beneficlary, as explained in Clause 9 of this
Declaration, the proceeds of your Plan will be paid or
transferred, less required iricome tax deductions, to your estate.

Your Responsibilities

It is your responsibility to ensure, that:

a. the contributions to the Plan do not exceed the allowable
maximum under the Income Tax Act;

b. due care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person
is exercised to minimize the possibility that the Plan holds a
non-gualified investment;

€. we are advised, in writing, of any changes in your address;

d. your birthdate as recorded on your application is accurate;

b9
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14.

15

16.
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e. You will eventually elect, as spelled out by'CIause 8 of this
Declaration, the type of retirement income you choose to
receive, '

. Restriction on Trustee
Neo advantage, as per subsection 207.01(1) of the Income Tax
Act, that is conditional In any way on the existence of the Plan
may be extended to you or to any persan with whom you do not
deal at arm’s length other than those advantages of benefits
which may be permitted from time to time under the Income
Tax Act,

Amendments

Weé may from time to time amend your Plan by giving you
notice in writing on such change. Any amendment cannot,
however, be contrary to the provisions of the Income Tax Act,

In the event of changes to the Income Tax Act or any pension
legislation gaverning your Plan, your Plan will be considered to
have been amended to conform to such changes effective the
date such chapges come into force.

Notices

Any notices given to us by you under this Plan shall be
sufficiently given if mailed, postage prepald by you, to any of
our offices and shail be deemed to have been given on the day
that such notice is recelved by us. Any notices given by us to
you shall be sufficiently given If mailed, postage prepaid by us,
to you at your last address supplied by you and shall be deemed
to have been given on the day of mailing.

Limits of Our Liability

In the event a qualified investment becomes non-qualified, we
will notify you and the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) of details
of that investment and you will be liable for payment of taxes
owing to the CRA under Part XI.01 of the Income Tax Act. In
the event a qualified investment or a non-quzalified investment
is deemed to be a prohibited investment, you are responsible
for reporting details of that prohibited investment to the CRA
and responsible for the payment of taxes under Part X1.01 of
the Income Tax Act.

We shall not otherwise be liable for the making, retention or
sale of any investment or reinvestment as herein provided or for
any loss or diminution of the assets comprising the Plan except
due to our negligence or wrongful act. You and your heirs,
executors and administrators shall at ali times indemnify us and
save us harmless in respect of any taxes, interest, penalties or
charges levied or imposed upon us in respect of the Plan,
excluding taxes, interest, penalties or charges imposed against
us under the Income Tax Act.

Withdrawals .

¥ou may make withdrawals from your Plan, subject to the
foliowing conditions:

a. we will withhold taxes from any withdrawals .in such

amounts as required by the Income Tax Act from time to .

time;
b. withc'irawals must be declared by you as income for the
taxation year of receipt.

Transfers .
The Plan may be amended to permit the payment or transfer,
on your behalf, of any funds as allowed by the Income Tax Act.
We may, at our discretion, charge a fee for each transfer out of
the Plan. '

Trustee’s Financial Conditions
If applicable, we shall provide you with a copy of the fee
schedule in effect from time to time. We shall be entitled to

500-038 (10/14)
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20.

21.

such fees and to reimbursement for all expenses reasenably
incurred by it in administering the Plan as may be provided for
in any fee schedule in effect at that time. The fees payable to
us are subject to change provided that you shall be given at
least sixty (60) days notice prior to any change in such fees
becoming effective.  Notwithstanding any other provision
contained herein, we shall be entitled to additional fees for
extraordinary services performed by us from time to time
commensurate with the time and responsibility invelved. We
are fully authorized by you to sell investments of the Plan in
order to realize sufficient monies for the payment of the above
fees and expenses and to withdraw payment from the assets of
the Plan without seeking the prior approval or instruction of
you.

We shall not be entitled to recover from your Plan penalties
and/or taxes imposed by the CRA that are attributable to us.

Other Conditions

While this Plan continues to be a Retirement Savings Plan under
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, it shall constitute an inter
vivos trust. Neither the Plan nor the assets of the Plan can be
used as security for a loan.

Resignation or Removal of Trustee

We may resign as trustee under the Plan at any time by
delivering thirty (30) days’ written notice of our resignation to
you. The Agent may aiso remove the Trustee as trustee of the
Plan. If the Trustee is to be removed, the Trustee will deliver
thirty (30) days’ written notice to you. In the event of the
resignation or removal of the Trustee, the Agent shall appoint a
successor trustee or trustees who shall be acceptable to the
Trustee. We shall deliver the property comprised of the
Investments within the Plan and the records rélating thereto,
and shall execute such deeds and assurances and do such
things as may be requisite in order to ensure the continued and
uninterrupted operation of the Plan, We will give the successor
trustee or trustees all the information necessary for the
continued administration of the Plan. Should the Agent neglect
or refuse to appoint a successor trustee or trustees who shall be
acceptable to the Trustee, we reserve the right to appoint a
successor trustee on your behalf, or transfer assets in specie to
you as a withdrawal from your Plan.

Ultimate Responsibility

We have entered into an Agency Agreement, with the Agent, for
the purpose of administration of this Plan. However, we are
uitimately responsibie for the administration of the Plan.

70



APPLICATION FORM .
. RETIREMENT INCOME FUND (the “Fund”)
The Lutheran Church-Canada, Alberta - British Columbia District Investments, Ltd.

e e e e e e L e e e Dy A

(ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.)

‘CONTRACT NUMBER: TRANSFER FROM: . LOCKED-IN YES. LOCKED-IN NO
RRSP RPP .
General RRIF Qualifying RR_IF Jurisdiction (attach addendum)

LAST NAME GIVEN NAME INITIAL SOCIAL INSURANCE NUMBER

HOME ADDRESS DATE OF BIRTH (YY/MM/DD)
( )

cITy PROVINCE POSTAL CODE PHONE NUMBER

CONTRIBUTOR'S LAST NAME GIVEN NAME INITIAL SOCIAL INSURANCE NUMBER

Monthly
PAYMENT AMOUNT: The minimum amount as prescribed by the Incomne Tax Act

PAYMENT FREQUENCY: Quarterly

Semi-Annually Annually

Payments higher than the required minimum amount of $
PAYMENTS COMMENCE ON:

(Where the sole beneficiary is my spouse, this designation also stands as a Successor Apnuitant appolntment, whereby the original RRIF contract

continues in my spouse’s name.)

In accordance with the Declaration of Trust under the Fund, I hereby revoke any pravious designation of beneficiary made by me in respect of the Fund
and I hereby designate:

Name: : _ Relatlonship:

Address: SIN:

Minor (Y/N) .

as the person entitled to receive the proceeds of the Fund in the event of my death, For additional &/or alternate beneficiaries complete a separate
page.

The beneficiary(s) designated herein must survive me and accept this designation in order to receive benefits payable under this Fund. If more than
one beneficiary is entitied to receive benefits, they shall share the proceeds equally unless otherwise specified.

CAUTICN: 1)  Your designation of beneficiary by means of 2 designation form will not be revoked or changed automatically by any future matriage or diverce.
Should you wish te change your beneficiary in the event of a future marriage or divorce, you will have to do 50 by means of a new designation.
2)  Your estate may be responsible for reporting and paying income tax on proceeds paid to a designated beneficlary. )
3) If funds contained in this contract are subject to a pension lock-in, the locking-in addendum governing such Pension Lock-in may override this
designation if a person other than your spouse is designated to recelve the proceeds.

Date (DD/MMM/YYYY) ’ Witness (should hot be a benefictary or a relative of Annuitant)  Annuitant Sighature

Note: Must be signed and witnessed to be valid.

LUTHERAN CHURCH CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT RETIREMENT INCOME FUND APPLICATION FORM Rev. Jul 2009 Page 1
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DECLARATION TO: CONCENTRA TRUST, TRUSTEE

As a member, adherent or supporter of the Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia: District (the “Church”) I
hereby apply for membership in the Fund and request Concentra Trust to act as trustee of the Fund. I agree to comply with the
terms and conditions stated herein and in the Declaration of Trust which I acknowledge having received. I request and instruct that
the Trustee apply for registration of my Fund as a Retirement Income Fund in accordance with the Income Tax Act (Canada), as
amended from time to time. ’

I appoint the Lutheran Church - Canada, the Alberta - British Columbia District Investments Ltd, to be my Agent for the
administration and record keeping of my Fund for which Concentra Trust acts as trustee and for the ongoing valuation and
administration of the Fund as defined In the Declaration of Trust. I understand and acknowledge that investments will be made
principally In mortgages on Church property or other worthwhile projects having a significant support base from the members,
adherents or supporters of the Church and as a result the fair market value and marketability of such investments may be affected.

1 am aware that any retirement income or other payment received in respect of the Fund may be subject to income tax.

I understand that Concentra Trust shall give no investment advice in connection with the purchase, retention or sale of any
investment. ' .

I confirm that the information provided to Concentra Financial Services Association, its agents or affiliates (collectively “Concentra
Financial”) is complete and accurate. I hereby agree and consent to, and accept this as notice of,. the terms of the Concentra
Financial Confidentiality and Privacy Statement (located at http://www.concentrafinancial.ca/confidential privacy.asp), 1 further
agree and consent to Concentra Financial obtaining and retaining my personal information in order to ascertain my identity as
required by the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act and as required by law.

I elect to use: (check one)

——__ My age as a base in the calculation of the annual minitnum amount; or
my spouse’s age as a base in the calculation of the annual minimum amount. My spouse’s date of birth is: f_ 7
yy/mm/dd

I certify that the information provided herein by me Is correct and is the basls for establishing my Fund.

{

ANNUITANT’'S SIGNATURE DATE (WITNESS) DATE

NOTE: THE WITNESS SHOULD NOT BE A BENEFICIARY, 'OR ANY PERSON RELATED TO A BENEFICIARY OR RELATED TO THE ANNUITANT.

ACCEPTANCE: This application is accepted by the Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia District Investments
Ltd. on behalf of the Trustee

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: DATE:

LUTHERAN CHURCH CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT RETIREMENT INCOME FUND APPLICATION FORM Rev. Jul 2009 Page 2
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1.

THE LUTHERAN CHURCH-CANADA, ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
: (ABC DISTRICT INVESTMENT)
RETIREMENT INCOME FUND DECLARATION OF TRUST

Definitions .

The following definitions apply: .

“Contribution” Any amount transferred into your Fund.
“Fund” - The Lutheran Church - Canada, Alberta-British
Columbia District Investments Ltd. (ABC District Investment)
Retirement Income Fund consisting of the Application and this
Declaration of Trust and addendum or addenda thereto, where
applicable. .
“Income Tax Act” The Income Tax Act (Canada),
regulations thereto, both as amended from time to time.
“Spouse” As recognized in the Income Tax Act for the
purposes of registered retirement income funds and, where
applicable, incorporates the meaning of the term “common-law
partner” as set out in subsection 248(1) of the Income Tax Act.
“Trustee” Concentra Trust

“Agent” Lutheran Church - Canada, Alberta-British Columbia
District Investments Ltd,

and

Registration
We will apply for registration of your Fund as required by the
Income Tax Act.

Contributions
Contributions to your Fund can only be in the form of:
i amounts transferred directly from a Registered

Retirement Savings Plan or another Registered Retirement
Income Fund under which you are the annuitant
(applicant), a Deferred Profit Sharing Plan, or amounts
transferred directly from certain registered and prescribed
pension plan funds, as permissible under subparagraphs
146.3(2)(F)(v), (vi), (vil) and (viii) of the Income Tax Act.
fi. amounts you are required to include in your income as a

result of!

a. amounts transferred from your deceased spouse’s
Registered Retirement. Savings Plan

b, amounts transferred from a Registered Retirerment

Savings Plan of a deceased annuitant where you
were dependent, by reason of physical or mental
infirmity, on the annuitant
c. full or partial commutation proceeds transferred
directly from an annuity which originated from a
Registered Retirement Savings Plan belonging to you
d. commutation proceeds, in excess of rminimum
amount for the year, transferred directly from a
Registered Retirement Income Fund belonging to
you.
jii. amounts transferred directly from a Registered
Retirement Savings Plan or from a Registered Retirerment
Income Fund of your spouse, or former spouse, pursuant
to a decree, order or judgement of a competent tribunal
or @ written separation agreement, relating to a division of
property between yourself and your spouse or former
spouse in settlement of rights arising out of your
marriage/common-law partnership, on or after the
breakdown of your marriage/common-law partnership, or
iv, such other amounts as may be authorized by any future
amendment to the Income Tax Act. ‘

We wili hold all contributions made to your Fund, and any
income earned on these contributions, as outlined in this
Declaration.

Record Keeping

We will record the details of all contributions to your Fund, their
investment, and of all payments from your Fund. We will
supply you with a statement of these details at least annually.

500-042 (10/14)
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%, Concentra Trust, declare that we accept the trust created between us and the Annuitant when the application was signed. The following
2 the terms of this trust:

Investments of the Fund

All assets or amounts property transferred into your Fund will
be deposited and invested as directed by you. You shall be
permitted to hold those assets and investments which are:

. authorized under the Income Tax Act; and

a
-b. acceptable to us; and )
" ¢. agreed upon from time to time, between the Trustee and

you,

We reserve the right to refuse to hold or accept certain
investments even though they may be qualified investments
under the Income Tax Act.

We will not accept investment instructions for the purchase of a
non-quafified investment or a prohibited investment. We may
request additional documentation from you proving the
investment to be purchased is neither a non-qualified
investment nor a prohibited investment.

Valuation of the Fund

We shall determine the valuez of the property held in connection

with the Fund as of the first day of Jarivary as follows:

i interest bearing certificates shall be vajued at their
principal balance plus accrued interest to date of
valuation, and

il. . other investments shall be valued at their fair market
value as we determine on the date of valuation.

Payments

We will make payments from the Fund to you and where you
have so efected, to your surviving spouse after your death
should you die while your Fund continues to exist, in which
case your surviving spouse has become the annuitant of the
Fund, in each year, commencing not later than the calendar
year following the year in which this retirement income fund is
entered into, in accordance with the requirements as set forth
by subsection 146.3(1) of the Income Tax Act.

Transfers

At your direction, in the form and manner prescribed by the
Incame Tax Act, we will transfer all investments held in your
Fund, or such portion as you direct, together with all
information necessary. for the continuance of the Fund, to
another Retirement Income Fund registered in your name, orin

the name of your spouse, or former spouse, pursuant to a

decree, order or judgment of a competent tribunal or a written
separation agreement, relating to a division of property
between yourself and your spouse or former spouse in

" settlement of rights arising out of your marriage/common-law

partnership, on or after the breakdown of vyour
marriage/common-law partnership. If you have directed
transfer of all investments-and we have not paid the minimum
amount required for the year, we will withhold adequate funds
to satisfy this minimum amount.

" Election

The ejection to have your surviving spouse continue to receive
payments from the Fund and to become the annuitant of the
Fund after your death, as described in Clause 7, may not be
available in all provinces. Detail of the availability of this
election is obtainable from the Agent.

10. Beneficiary Designation

You may designate a beneficiary, in those provinces where the
law 50 permits, to receive the remaining proceeds of your Fund
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12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

in the event of your death while your Fund continues to exist
and where your spouse did not become entitled to all future
rights under the Fund as permitted under Clause 7. Details of
our requirements for making, changing or revoking such a
designation are available from the office of the Agent.

Death of Annuitant

Where you have not properly elected to have your spouse
become the annuitant of your Fund as provided for by Clause 7
or as provided for by your Will, we will, once we have received
the documentation we require, pay the Fund proceeds by a
single payment, less required income tax deductions, to your
designated beneficiary and notify your estate representative of
any resulting tax liability. When we have made the payment of
the Fund proceeds to your designated beneficiary or to your
estate, we will be considered as fully discharged from any
further liability with respect to your Fund. In instances where
you have not designated a beneficiary as provided for by
Clause 10, the Fund proceeds will be paid by a single payment,
less required income tax deductions, to your estate,

Your Responsibilities

It is your responsibility to ensure that:

a. you keep us advised, in writing, at all times of any changes
in your address;

b. your birthdate as recorded on your Application is accurate;
and

€. due care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent
person is exercised to minimize the possibility that the
Fund holds a non-qualified investment.

Restriction on Trustee

No advantage, as per subsection 207.01(1) of the Income Tax
Act, that is conditional in any way on the existence of the Fund
may be extended to you or to any person with whom you do
not deal at arm’s [ength other than those advantages or
benefits which may be permitted from time to time under the
Income Tax Acl.

Amendments

We may from time to time armend your Fund and will advise
you of such amendment in writing. Any amendment cannot,
however, be contrary to the provisions of the Income Tax Act.
In the event of changes to the Income Tax Act or pension
legislation governing your Fund, the terms of your Fund and
any addendum thereto may be amended without notice to you
to ensure that your Fund continues to comply with all
applicable legislation.

Notices

Any notices given to us by you under this Fund shall be
sufficiently given if mailed, postage prepald by you, to any of
our offices and shall be deemed to have been given on the day
that such notice is received by us. Any notices given by us to
you shall be sufficiently given if mailed, postage prepaid by us,
to you at your last address supplied by you and shall be
deemed to have been given an the day of mailing.

Limits of Our Liability

In the event a qualified investment becomes non-qualified, we
will notify you and the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) of details
of that investment and you will be lable for payment of taxes
owing to the CRA under Part X1.01 of the Income Tax Act. In
the event a qualified investment or a non-qualified investment
is deemed to be a prohibited investment, you are responsible
for reporting details of that prohibited-investment to the CRA
and responsible for the payment of taxes under Part XI.01 of
the Income Tax Act.

We wilt not otherwise be liable for the making, retention or sale
of any investment or reinvestment as herein provided or for
any loss, damage or diminution of assets comprised in the Fund
except due to our negligence or wrongful act. You and your
heirs, executors and administrators shall at all times indemnify
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17.

18.

i9

20.

us and save us harmless In respect of any taxes, interest,
penalties or charges levied or imposed upon us in respect of
the Fund, excluding taxes, interest, penalties or charges
imposed against us under the Income Tax Act.

Trustee’s Financial Conditions

If applicable, we shall provide you with a copy of the fee
schedule in effect from time to time. We shall be entitled to
such fees and to reimbursement for all expenses reasonably
incurred by us in administering the Fund as may be provided
for in any fee schedule in effect at that time. The fees payable
to us are subject to change provided that you shall be given at
least 60 days notice prior to any change in such fees becoming
effective.  Notwithstanding any other provision contained
herein, we shall be entitled to additional feés for extraordinary
services performed by it from time to time commensurate with
the time and responsibility involved. We are fully authorized by
you to sell investments of the Fund in order to realize sufficient
monies for the payment of the above fees and expenses and to
withdraw payment from the assets of the Fund without seeking
the prior approval or instruction from you.

We shall not be entitled to recover from your Fund penalties
and/or taxes imposed by the CRA that are attributable to us.

Other Conditions

You cannot use any of the assets held in your Fund as security
for a loan and you cannot assign in whole or in part or
otherwise encumber payments from your Fund.

Your ability to take payments in excess of minimum or to
transfer funds to ancther Retirement Income Fund may be
restricted due to the conditions imposed by the investments
held by your Fund.

Resignation or Removal of Trustee

We may resign as trustee under the Fund at any time by
delivering thirty (30) days’ written notice of our resignation to
you. The Agent may also remove the Trustee as trustee of the
Fund. If the Trustee is to be removed, the Trustee will deliver
thirty (30) days’ written notice to you. In the event of the
resignation or removal of the Trustee, the Agent shall appoint a
successor trustee or trustees who shall be acceptable to the
Trustee. We shall deliver the property comptised of the
investments within the Fund and the records relating thereto,
and shall execute such deeds and assurances and do such
things as may be requisite in order to ensure the continued and
uninterrupted operation of the Fund. We will give the successor
trustee or trustees all the information necessary for the
continued administration of the Fund. Should the Agent
neglect or refuse to appoint a successor trustee or trustees who
shall be acceptable to the Trustee, we reserve the right to
appeint a successor trustee on your behalf, or transfer assets in
‘specie to you as a withdrawal from your Fund.

Uktimate Responsibility

We have entered into an Agency Agreement, with the Agent,
for the purposes of administration of this Fund. However, we
are ultimately responsible for the administration of the Fund.

74



Tab 2



Y

COURT FILE NUMBER

COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE

APPLICANTS

DOCUMENT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND
CONTACT INFORMATION OF
PARTY FILING THIS
DOCUMENT

Form 49
[Rule 13.19]
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COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
OF ALBERTA

IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY
CALGARY

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended

LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS
COMMUNITY HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND
LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

AFFIDAVIT

Bishop & McKenzie LLP

Barristers & Solicitors

1700, 530 - 8" Avenue SW

Calgary, Alberta T2P 358

Attention: Francis N. J. Taman /Ksena J. Court

Telephone: 403-237-5550
Fax: 403-243-3623

File No.: 103,007-003

AFFIDAVIT OF CAMERON SHERBAN

Sworn on February 18, 2016

|, CAMERON SHERBAN, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR AND SAY THAT:

1. | am the Chief Restructuring Officer of the Applicants. | have personal knowledge of the

matters hereinafter deposed, except where stated to be based on information and belief,
and where so stated, | verily believe them to be true.

2, All capitalized terms used in this Affidavit shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the
prior Affidavits filed in these proceedings unless otherwise indicated in this Affidavit.



RELIEF REQUESTED

3. I make this Affidavit in support of the Application for the following relief:

(a) an Order sanctioning the Amended Amended Plans of Compromise and
Arrangement of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia
District iInvestments Lid. (“DIL");

(b) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may allow.
BACKGROUND

4. | am advised by representatives of the Applicants that there are DIL Depositors residing
in 8 Canadian provinces and territories and 3 U.S. states.

5. | am further advised by representatives of the Applicants that there are District
Depositors residing in 8 Canadian provinces and territories and 11 U.S, states.

DIL RESTRUCTURING PLAN

6. On November 30, 2015, the Court granted authorization for DIL its Creditors’ Meeting.
Information respecting the DIL Creditors’ Meeting was sent out by the Moniior. An
Amended Amended Plan of Compromise and Arrangement for DIL was finalized and
was filed with the Court on January 11, 2016 (the “DIL Plan”). This amended plan was
also posted to the Monitor's website.

7. On January 23, 20186, the DIL Creditors’ Meeting was held. The Required Majority of the
Eligible Affected Creditors (as those terms are defined in the DIL Plan} was achieved for
the DIL Plan.

8. | believe that the DIL Plan is fair and reasonable in the circumstances for the following
reasons:

(a) The Affected Creditors of DIL were classified into one class and are treated the
same. The DIL Plan contemplates that new registered accounts will be set up for
the DI Depositors and administered by the Replacement Fund Manager, which
is Great-West Life Assurance Company. The establishment of the new
registered accounts received Court approval by Order granted November 5,
2015. The assets administered by DIL will be transferred to these new registered
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accounts with the DIL Depositors receiving amounts proportionate to their proven
claims.

(b) | am advised by the Monitor that it is supportive of the DIL Plan.
(c) The DIL Plan has been approved by the Affected Creditors of DIL.

(d) The approval of the DIL Plan is in the public interest as it will facilitate and
streamline possible future legal proceedings through the establishment of the
Representative Action.

9. Throughout the CCAA proceedings, | believe that the Applicants have been complying
with all statutory requirements and have adhered to all previous Orders granted by the
Court. | am not aware of any actions taken in these proceedings that were not
authorized by the CCAA or that are in contravention of any Court Orders.

10. If the DIL Plan is sanctioned by the Court, DIL anticipates implementing the DIL Plan
upon all conditions precedent having been met.
11. 1 make this Affidavit in support of an Application for the relief described above.

SWORN BEFORE ME at Calgary, Alberta,
this 18th day of February, 2016.

)
)
)
Commijssiorar ths ip.and-for Alberta ) Cameron Sherban
W )
JONATHAN A, LANG )
W&Sﬂﬁatﬁf
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DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
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Calgary, Alberta T2P 3588
403-237-5550 (phone)
403-243-3623 (fax)

Attention: Francis N. J. Taman
File No.: 103007-003

SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT OF KURTIS ROBINSON

Sworn on January 23, 2015

|, KURTIS ROBINSON, of Airdrie, Alberta, SWEAR AND SAY THAT:

1. 1 am an Officer of the Applicants and | am authorized by all of the Applicants to depose
this Affidavit and do so on their behalf. As such, | have personal knowledge of the

matters hereinafter deposed, except where stated to be based on information and beiief

and where so stated, | verily believe them to be true.
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2. This Affidavit is supplemental to the Affidavit sworn by me on January 22, 2015 in order
to provide the Court with further information respecting the Critical Suppliers of ECHS
and EMSS.

3. Following is a description of the goods and services provided by the Critical Suppliers:

Alsco — supplier of linen and towel services (je. sheets and bedding) for all of the
Alberta Health Care residents;

ATCO Gas - supplier of natural gas;

Birkby Foods — food supplier to the Manor and Harbour,;

Canada Bread Company Limited — bread supplier to the Manor and Harbour,;
County of RockyView — waste water removal;

Direct Energy — supplier of natural gas;

Enmax — electricity supplier;

Norica Nursing Agency ~ supplier of contracted staff to meet health care hours when
EMSS is short staffed,;

PC eSolutions Corporation — IT supplier for medical reasons;
Praits Food Service - meat supplier to the Manor and Harbour;

Shannon’s Services Management Corp. — hauls water to the Prince of Peace
Development;

Sysco Foods Calgary ~ general food supplier to the Manor and Harbour.
4. Upon further review of my Affidavit sworn January 22, 2015:

(a) 1 noted that Manulife Financial Group Benefits was included in the list of critical
suppliers. This was included inadvertently and a Critical Suppliers’ Charge is not
sought in this regard; and

(b) In paragraph 57, it was the District, not LCC that incorporated DIL.
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5. I make this Affidavit in support of an application by the Applicants under the provisions of
the CCAA for an order substantially in the form of the draft Order which is submitted with
this application, declaring the Applicants are corporations to which the CCAA applies,
appointing Deloitte Restructuring Inc. as monitor, granting a stay of proceedings on the
terms set out in the draft order, and granting such other relief as is set out in the draft
form of order sought.

SWORN BEFORE ME at Calgary, Alberta, this

)
23rd day}fJan?y, 2015. )
(Commissiéner for Qaths in and for the ) 4
Province of Alberta) ) Kurtis Robinson
)
)
)
)
)

FRANGIS N.J. TAMAN
BARRISTER & SOLICITOR

PRINT NAME AND EXPIRY/LAWYER
/STUDENT-AT-LAW
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WHEREAS:

Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta British Columbia District (defined herein as the “District”),
Encharis Community Housing and Services (defined herein as “ECHS"), Encharis Management
and Support Services (defined herein as “EMSS”) and Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta —
British Columbia District Investments Ltd. {defined herein as “District Investments” or “DIL?,
collectively, the “Applicants” or the “District Group”) are debtor companies under the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended (defined herein as the “CCAA")
pursuant to the Initial Order (defined herein as the “Initial Order”) granted by the Honourable
Justice K. D. Yamauchi of the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta (the “Court") on January 23,
2015 (defined herein as the “Filing Date").

Pursuant to the Initial Order, Deloitte Restructuring Inc. was appoeinted as Monitor (defined herein
as the "“Monitor”) of the Applicants.

Pursuant to an Order granted on February 20, 2015, the Court approved a process to select
creditors’ committees for each of the District and District Investments (respectively the “District
Committee” and the “DIL Committee”). The District Committee was fully formed on Aprif 22, 2015.
The DI Committee was fully formed on April 20, 2015. Pursuant to an Order granted on March
27, 2015, Kluane Financial Services Inc. was appointed as the Chief Restructuring Officer
(defined herein as the “CRQ") of the Applicants.

Under the supervision of the Monitor and the Court, and in consultation with the DIL Committee
and the CRO, the Applicants have formulated a plan of arrangement (defined herein as the
“Plan”) for Affected Creditors (as defined below) of District Investments.
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ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

In this Plan, unless otherwise stated or unless the subject matter or context otherwise requires, the
following terms are defined as follows:

A

"Administration Charge" means the charge granted pursuant to the Initial Order, and subsequently
amended in the Order granted on June 26, 2015, in favour of the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor, the
Applicants’ Counsel and legal counsel for the District Committee and the DIL Committee as security for
the professional fees and disbursements incurred both before and after the granting of the [nitial Order,
which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $300,000.

"Affected Claims" means the Claim(s) of Affected Creditors.
"Affected Creditors” means the DIL Depositors.
“Agreements” means agreements to which DIL is a Party.

“Applicable Law" means, with respect to any Person, property, transaction, event or other matter, any
law, rule, statute, regulation, order, judgment, decree, treaty or other requirement having the force of law
relating or applicable to such Person, property, transacting event or other matter, Applicable Law also
includes, where appropriate, any interpretation of the law (or any part) by any Person having jurisdiction
over it or charged with its administration or interpretation.

"Applicants" means the District, ECHS, EMSS and District Investments.

"Applicants’ Counsel” means Bishop & McKenzie LLP, and such other solicitors as Bishop & McKenzie
LLP may directly engage to assist in the CCAA Proceedings.

“BIA” means the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. B-3, as amended.
“Borrowers” mean those Persons who have borrowed funds from the Registered Plans.

"Business Day" means a day on which banks are generally open for the transaction of commercial
business in Calgary, Alberta, but does not in any event include a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday
under Applicable Law.
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"CCAA" means Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.5.C. 19885, ¢. C-36, as amended.

“CCAA Proceedings” mean the proceedings commenced by the Applicants under the CCAA in the
Court as Action No. 1501-00955,

“CEF” means the Church Extension Fund, a fund that was created and administered by the District for
the purpose of allowing Persons to loan money to the District and earn interest in support-of faith-based
developments.

“Chair” means the chair of the Creditors’ Meeting.

“Charge" means a valid and enforceable security interest (including a lease which creates a security
interest as contemplated by the Personal Property Security Act, R.S.A. 2000 c. P-7, as amended), lien,
charge, pledge, encumbrance, mortgage, hypothec, adverse claim, title retention agreement or trust
agreement of any nature or kind {(but excluding any statutory deemed or implied charge, condition, claim,
trust or lien for or with respect to any taxes or levies), on any assets, property or proceeds of sale of DIL.

"Claim(s)” means any right or claim of any Person that may be asserted or made in whole or in part
against DIL at the Claims Bar Date, whether or not asserted or made, in connection with any
indebtedness, liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever, and any interest accrued thereon or costs
payable in respect thereof, including without limitation, by reason of the commission of a tort (intentional
or unintentional), by reason of any breach of contract or other agreement (oral or written), by reason of
any breach of duty (including, without limitation, any legal, statutory, equitable or fiduciary duty) or by
reason of any right of ownership or title to property or assets or right to a trust or deemed trust (statutory,
express, implied, resulting, constructive or otherwise), including without limitation any claim based on
adverse possession, and whether or not any indebtedness, liability or obligation is reduced to judgment,
liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed, undisputed, legal, equitable,
secured, unsecured, present or future, known or unknown, by guarantee, surety or otherwise, and
whether or not any right or claim is executory or anticipatory in nature including, without limitation, any
right or ability of any Person fo advance a claim for contribution or indemnity or otherwise with respect to
any matter, action, cause or chose in action whether existing at present or commenced in the future
based in whole or in part on facts or events which exist prior to or at the Filing Date, together with any
other rights or claims of any kind that, is a debt provable within the meaning of Section 2 of the BIA.

“Claims Bar Date” means 4:00 p.m. Mountain Time on April 20, 2015, or such later date on which a
Proof of Claim may be accepted for filing by the Applicants and the Monitor or the Court prior to the
granting of the Sanction Order.

"Claims Process" means the process for determining the Claims of the Affected Creditors as at the

Filing Date, as established in the Claims Process Order.
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"Claims Process Order" means the Order of the Court, granted on February 20, 2015, as may be
subsecquently amended, establishing the Claims Process.

“Completion Date” means the date on which all of the actions required to satisfy the obligations under
this Plan have been completed and the Monitor delivers to DIL a certificate confirming the same.

“Concentra” means Concentra Trust, who acts as the trustee for the DIL Depositors.
"Court" means the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta.

"Creditors' Meeting(s)" means the meeting of the Eligible Affected Creditors with Proven Claims, which
meetings shall be scheduled and pursuant to the terms of the Meeting Order and shall be conducted for
the purpose of considering and voting upon this Plan, and includes any adjournment of such meeting.

“Creditors’ Meeting Order” or “Meeting Order” means the Order in the CCAA Proceedings which,
among other things, approves the filing of the Plan and establishes the date, time and location of the
Creditors’ Meetings, prescribing the process by which Eligible Affected Creditors shall be notified of the
Creditors’ Meetings and the conduct of such Creditors’ Meetings.

“Critical Supplier Charge” means a Charge of up to a maximum of $100,000 to secure the goods,
services and professional fees and disbursements incurred before and after the Filing Date for those
Persons designated as critical suppliers under the Initial Order or any subsequent Orders,

“CRO” means the Chief Restructuring Officer, Kluane Financial Services Inc.

"Crown Claims" means Claims of Her Majesty in right of Canada or a province, for all amounts that were
outstanding at the Effective Date and are of a kind that couid be subject to a demand under:

a. Subsection 224(1.2) of the /ncome Tax Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. 1 (5™ Supp), as amended.

b. Any provision of the Canada Pension Plan, R.S.C. 1985, c, C-8, as amended or of the
Employment Insurance Act, S.C. 1996, c. 23, as amended, that refers to subsection 224(1.2) of
the Income Tax Act and provides for the collection of a contribution, as defined in the Canada
Pension Plan, or an employee's premium, or employer's premium, as defined in the Employment
Insurance Actf and of any related interest, penalties or other amounts.

c. Any provision of provincial legisfation that has a similar purpose to subsection 224(1.2) of the
Income Tax Act, or that refers to that subsection, to the extent that it provides for the collection of
a sum, and of any related interest, penalties or other amounts, where the sum has been withheld
or deducted by a Person from a payment to another Person and is:

i.  Inrespectof a tax similar in nature to the income tax imposed on individuals under the
Income Tax Act.
ii. Of the same nature as a contribution under the Canada Pension Plan, if the province is a

"province providing a comprehensive pension plan" as defined in subsection 3(1) of the
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Canada Pension Plan and the provincial legislation establishes a "provincial pension
plan" as defined in that subsection,

D

“DIL Assets” means the registered mortgages, loans and personal property which FI Capital, DIL,
Concentra, or the Applicants’ Counsel is holding on behalf of the DIL Depositors and, for greater clarity,
shall include all cash or other proceeds received or to be received by DIL

a. from the sale or repayment of any of the registered morigages or loans;
b. -pursuant to the plans of compromise and arrangement filed by the other Applicants; and
c. pursuant to the Seftlements.

“DIL Committee” means the creditors’ committee established for the DIL Depositors.
“DIL Depositor(s)” means those Persons having accounts in the Registered Plans.

"DIL — ECHS Mortgages" means two mortgages granted by ECHS to Concentra, on behalf of the DIL
Depositors, which are secured against the Prince of Peace Development,

“Director(s)” mean the past and present directors of DiL.

"Directors’ Charge" means the provision of the Initial Order providing for a Chafge up to a maximum of
$5.0 million for the purpose of indemnifying the Directors of the Applicants against obligations and
liabilities that they may incur as Directors of the Applicants after the commencement of the CCAA
Proceedings except to the extent that, with respect to any Director, the obligation was incurred as a result
of the Director's gross negligence or wilful misconduct. For greater certainty but without limiting the

generality of the foregeing, the Directors’ Charge shall not be used to indemnify any Directors with

respect fo any D&O Claim.

"Disputed Claim" means the Claim of an Affected Creditor that is subject to a Dispute Notice and is not
yet a Praven Claim.

“Disputed Claim Reserve” means funds held by DIL in a designated trust account in an amount
sufficient to pay those Affected Creditors whose Claims are still subject 1o a Dispute Notice which has not
- yet been settled or fully adjudicated.

"Dispute Notice" means a written notice delivered to the Monitor by a DIL Depositor who intends to
dispute the amount of their Claim.

“Distribution” means a transfer or transfers of the Net Balance of the Transfer Fund to the New
Registered Pian to be distributed to the DIL Depositors on a Pro Rata basis by way of deposits to the
New Registered Accounts. For greater clarity, if a DIL Depositor has a New Registered Account in more
than one New Registered Plan, the Distribution shail be allocated between the New Registered Accounts
for such DIL Depositor on a Pro Rata basis.
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“District” means Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta ~ British Columbia District,

“District Claim” means the Proven Claim held by the District against DIL pursuant to the Claims Process
in the amount of $863,022.24.

“District Committee” means the creditors’ committee established for those creditors of the District who
have provided loans to the District through CEF,

“District — ECHS Mortgage" means the mortgage held by District, which is secured against properties
within the Prince of Peace Development.

“District Investments” or “DIL” means Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia
District Investments Ltd.

“D&0 Claim” means (i) any right or claim of any Person that may be asserted or made in whole or in part
against one or more of the D&O Parties that relates to a Claim which such D&O Party(ies) is by law liable
to pay, whether or not asserted or made, in connection with any indebtedness, liability or obligation of any
kind whatsoever, and any interest accrued thereon or costs payable in respect thereof, including by
reason of the commission of a tort (intentional or unintentional), by reason of any breach of contract or
other agreement (oral or written), by reason of any breach of duty (including any legal, statutory, equitable
or fiduciary duty and including, for greater certainty, any right to a trust or deemed trust (statutory,
express, implied, resulting, constructive or otherwise)), and whether or not any indebtedness, liability or
obligation, and any interest accrued thereon or costs payable in respect thereof, is reduced to judgment,
liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed, undisputed, legal, equitable,
secured, unsecured, present or future, known or unknown, by guarantee, surety or otherwise, and
whether or not any right or claim is executory or anticiipétory in nature, including any right or ability of any
Person to advance a claim for contribution or indemnity from any such D&O Party(ies) or otherwise with
respect to any matter, action, cause or chose in action, whether existing at present or commenced in the
future, which indebtedness, liability or obligation, and any interest accrued thereon or costs payable in
respect thereof (A} is based in whole or in part on facts prior to the Filing Date, or (B) relates to a time
period prior to the Filing Date. For clarity, the Directors’ Charge shall not be used to pay any D&0
Claims.

“D&0 Insurance” means that policy of insurance issued by the D&O Insurers, namely policy number NP-
428530, as extended from time to time, by Encon Group Inc., and policy number CBC 1928469 04, as
extended from time to time, by Northridge Financial Corporation.

“D&O0 Insured Claim” means all or that portion of any D&O Claim against any D&O Party that is insured
by the D&O Insurer{s) pursuant to the D&O Insurance. '

“D&O0 Insurer(s)” means Encon Group Inc. and Northridge Financial Corporation.
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“D&O Party(ies)” means current or former Directors, officers, trustees, employees, volunteers of DIL, or
members of any duly constituted committee of DIL, being parties who are insured parties under the D&QO
Insurance.

E

“ECHS” means Encharis Community Housing Services.

"Effective Date" subject to the satisfaction of the conditions precedent outlined in Article 7.1 means the
date the Plan takes effect and shall be the day following the expiry of the appeal period of all Sanction
Orders granted in the CCAA Proceedings or such other date as may be agreed upon in writing between
the Monitor and DIL.

“Election Letter” means the letter attached hereto as Schedule “1" provided to the Eligible Affected
Creditors pursuant to the Meeting Order, whereby they can vote on the Plan.

“Eligible Affected Creditors” means Affected Creditors with Proven Claims and Affected Creditors with
Disputed Claims which have not been settled or adjudicated.

“Emergency Fund™ means the fund approved in the Initial Order to allow eligible DIL Depositors to

access sufficient funds to cover their basic necessities.
“EMSS” means Encharis Management and Support Setvices.

F

“FlI Capital” means Fl Capital Ltd. .

“Filing Date” means January 23, 2015, the date on which the Initial Order was granted.

"Initial Order" means the Initial Order granted by the Court in the CCAA Proceedings on January 23,
2015.

“Initial Payment” means the payment made pursuant to an Order granted by the Court of Queen’s
Bench of Alberta on August 28, 2015, as amended by the Order granted November 5, 2015 whereby
funds held by DIL are in the process of being transferred to the Replacement Fund Manager or an

alternative fund manager for holders of accounts in selected Registered Plans to be distributed to the DIL
Depositors.
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“Monitor" means Deloitte Restructuring inc., in its capacity as proposed CCAA Monitor and as CCAA
Monitor.

“Monitor’s Legal Counsel” means Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP.

“Net Balance” means the balance of the Transfer Fund less such reasonable reserves as the Monitor, in
its sole discretion, may deem appropriate for the purposes of ensuring that this Plan is successfully
implemented and carried out to conclusion, including, without limitation, the Restructuring Holdback .

“New Registered Accounts” means account(s) set up for DIL Depositors in the New Registered Plans,
which will be held in the same type of registered plan (i.e. Tax Free Savings Accounts, Registered
Retirement Savings Plans, Registered Retirement Income Funds, or Locked-In Income Funds) as the
Registered Accounts,

“New Registered Plans” means those Registered Retirement Savings Plans, Registered Retirement
Income Funds, Tax Free Savings Accounts, and Locked-In_Income Funds (as those terms are defined in
the Income Tax Act (Canada)) which are held by the Replacement Fund Manager as trustee for the DIL
Depositors and which will be the same type as the Registered Plans (i.e. Tax Free Savings Accounts,
Registered Retirement Savings Plans, Registered Retirement Income Funds, or Locked-In Income
Funds).

"Notice of Revision or Disallowance” means the notice referenced in paragraph 19 of the Claims
Process Order advising an Affected Creditor that the Monitor disputes the amount of their Claim as set
out in a Proot of Claim.

0

"Order" means any order of the Court in the CCAA Proceedings.

P

“Partially Released Parties” means DIL, the D&0O Party(ies). the directors and officers, volunteers and

employees of the District, DIL, ECHS, and EMSS, any independent contractors of DIL who are individuals

and who were employed three days or more a week on a regular basis.

"Person(s)" is to be broadly interpreted and inciudes an individual, a corporation, a partnership, a trust,
and an unincorporated organization, the government of a country or any political subdivision thereof, or
any agency or department of any such government, and the executors, administrators or other legal
representatives of an individual in such capacity.
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""Plan(s)” means this plan of arrangement and any other plans of arrangement filed by DIl pursuant to
the CCAA Proceedings.

“Plan Payments” means those payments to be made by DIL pursuant to this Plan,

“Post-Filing Claim({s)” means any Claim(s) that may be asserted or made in whole or in part against DIL
in connection with any indebtedness, liability or obligation of any kind which arose in respect of
obligations first incurred on or after the Filing Date, other than the Restructuring Claims, and any interest
thereon, including any obligations of DIL towards Persons, who have supplied or shall supply services,
utilities, goods or materials or who have or shall have advanced funds to DIL on or after the Filing Date.

“Prince of Peace Development” means the properties located in Rocky View County, Alberta as set out
in Schedule “3” fo this Plan.

“Pro Rata” means that fraction which has as its numerator the amount of a particular DIL Depositor's
Proven Claim and as its denominator the sum of all of the Proven Claims of all of the DIL Depositors. For
greater clarity, the calculation shall be as foliows: ‘

((DIL Depositor’s Proven Claim / total Proven Claims) x (DIL Transfer Fund + total amount received by all
DIL Depositors from the Emergency Fund + total amount received by all DIL Depositors as RRIF or LIF
Minimum Payments_+ the total amount of the Initial Payment)) — any amount the DIL Depositor has

received from the Emergency Fund — any amount the DIL Depositor has received as a RRIF or LIF
Minimum Payment — any amount the DIL Depositor has received from the initial Payment.

“Proportionate Share of Costs” means a DIL Depositor's proportionate share of the out-of-pocket costs
associated with the Representative Action, including any costs that may be incurred by the
Representative Counsel, the Monitor or the Monitor's Counsel in relation to the Representative Action
together with such additional amount as the Monitor, acting reasonably, determines represents a
reasonabie reserve for the indemnity granted in Article 5.8._For greater clarity, but without otherwise
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the proportionate share of the out-of-pocket costs shall be

calculated based upon the number of members of the Representative Action Class.

“Proven Claim(s}" means a Claim of an Affected Creditor proven in accordance with the Claims Process
Order, which is not the subject of a Dispute Notice or a Notice of Revision or Disallowance, or was the
subject of a Dispute Notice or Notice of Revision or Disallowance, which has been resolved, either before
or after the Sanction Order, in accordance with the terms of the Claims Process Order, the Meeting Order
and this Pian.

“Proxy” means the form attached hereto as Schedule “4” authorizing a Person to vote on behalf of an
Eligible Affected Creditor.
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“Registered Accounts” means those accounts held by DIL Depositors in the Registered Plans.

“Registered Plans” means those Registered Retirement Savings Plans, Registered Retirement Income
Funds, Locked-In Income Funds, and Tax Free Savings Accounts (as those terms are defined in the
Income Tax Act (Canada))} which were administered by DIL on behalf of Concentra.

“Related Creditor(s)” means Persons who mest the definition of Related Person(s) set out in Section
4(2) of the BIA.

“Released Representatives” means the Monitor, the Monitor's Counsel, the Applicants’ Counsel, the

CRO, BlL-legal counsel for the DIL Committee, and the DIL Committee members.

“Replacement Fund Manager” means Great-West Life Assurance Company or such other fund
manager as may be designated by a DIL Depositor pursuant to the Order granted on November 5, 2015.

“Representative Action” means that legal action or actions undertaken in respect of the Representative
Action Claims, which action may be advanced as a class proceeding for the benefit of the Representative

Action Class pursuant to the terms of the Plan. and-which-shall-netinelude-any-legal action-against-the

¥ifalalida At=Mi¥, Falaliin aYRlatada ha A

“Representative Action Claim(s)” means any and all potential claims of DIiL Depositors, whether such

claims are pursued as part of thé Representative Action or not, that seek or could seek, directly or
indirectly, to recovery-of the amounts of their Claims not paid under this Plan and are not released by this
Plan under Articles 8.1 and 8.3. For greater cerainty, such potential claims includes those claims or

potential claims specifically mentioned in Articles 8.2 and 8.4, and also includes the following claims:

a. claim(s) related to a contractual right of one or more of the DIL Depositors entered into personally
by a Representative Action Defendant;

b. claim(s) based cn allegations of misrepresentations made by a Representative Action Defendant
to DIL Depositors or of wrongful or oppressive conduct by a Representative Action Defendant;

c. claim(s) of DIL against a Representative Action Defendant, including but not limited to claims for
breach of any legal, equitabie, contractual or other duty;

d. claim(s) that are a D&O Claim, including a D&O Insured Claim; and

e. any claim(s) which one or more of the DIL Depositors could have pursued in the name of DIL,
including without limitation, any derivative action (whether statutory or otherwise) or any Claim(s)
which could be assigned to a creditor pursuant to s. 38 of the BIA, if such legislation were

applicable.
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“Representative Action Class” shall mean those DIL Depositors who elect to participate in the
Representative Action by completing and returning the Representative Action Letter or who are deemed
to participate in the Representative Action in accordance with the terms of this Plan.

“Representative Action Defendants” means the Partially Released Parties and any other parties

against whom Representative Action Claim(s) may be brought, but excludes the Released

Representatives except to the extent permitted pursuant to Article 8.2.

“Representative Action Holdback” means an amount withheld from the amounts payable to members
of the Representative Action Class pursuant to the Plan to fund the out-of-pocket costs associated with
the Representative Action, including any costs that may be incurred by the Monitor or the Monitor's
Counsel in relation to the Representative Action, together with a reasonable reserve to cover the
indemnity granted in Article 5.8, the amount of which is to be determined by the Subcommittee once
appointed.

“Representative Action Letter” means the letter attached hereto as Schedule “2" provided to the DIL
Depositors pursuant to the Meeting Order, whereby they can choose whether to participate in the
Representative Action,

“Representative Action Pool” means any pool of funds that is generated by the Representative Action,
which will be payable to members of the Representative Action Class and shall be deemed to inciude any
unused portion of the Representative Action Holdback upon the conclusion of the Representative Action.

“Representative Counsel” means legal counsel selected by the Subcommittee to pursue the

Representative Action, which shall not be the same lawver(s) or law. firm{s) as the counsel chosen to act

for the District Depositors in the representative action under the District plan of compromise or
arrangement.

“Representative Plaintiff(s)” means that DIL Depositor(s), chosen by the Subcommittee, who agrees to
act as representative plaintiff(s) in the Representative Action, provided always that should all or a portion
of the causes of action which make up the Representative Action require DIL to be a plaintiff in the
Representative Action, then the Representative Plaintiff shall be deemed to include DIL.

“Required Majority" means an affirmative vote of two-thirds in value and a majority in number of all
Proven Claim(s) of Eligible Affected Creditors, who voted in accordance with the voting procedures
established under the Meeting Order (whether in person or by Proxy at the Creditors’ Meeting, or by
Election Letter).
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“Restructuring Claim(s)” means any claims with respect to reasonable fees and disbursements of the
Monitor, the Monitor's Counsel, the Applicants’ Counsel and legal counsel for the DIL Committee,

“Restructuring Holdback” means the amount to be held by DIL in an amount sufficient to satisfy the
Restructuring Claims.

“RRIF Minimum Payment” means a statutory annual minimum payment made after January 234, 2015
from a Registered Plan which was a Registered Retirement Income Fund (as that term is defined in the
Income Tax Act (Canada)).

"Sanction Order” means an crder or orders of the Court which, among other things, shall approve and
sanction this Plan and the plans of compromise and arrangement filed by the other Applicants under the
CCAA and shall include provisions as may be necessary or appropriate to give effect to this Plan and the
plans of compromise and arrangement filed by the other Applicants, including provisions in substance
similar to those set out in Article 9.

“Settiements” means the settlement of all matters between the District Committee and the DIL
Committee, including regarding the District ~ ECHS Mortgage and the DIL — ECHS Mortgages (as further _
set out in paragraph 27.3.2 of the First Report of the Monitor dated February 7, 2018), the Strathmore
Mortgage (as further set out in paragraph 24.6.3 of the First Report of the Monitor dated February 17,
2015} and the District Claim.

“Strathmore Mortgage" means a morigage held by Concentra on the Strathmore Property.

“Strathmore Property” means a property, of which the District is the registered owner, located in
Strathmore, Alberta, which is legally described as Plan 8010862, Block 10, Excepting thereout all mines

and minerals.

“Subcommittee” means a subcommittee established by the Sanction Order of between three and five
individuals, including initially at least one member of the DIL Committee, all of whom are elected by the
DIL Committee, which will be esfablished to choose a Representative Counsel and provide direction and
instructions to Representative Counsel in the Representative Action, and for greater certainty shall
include a member of the DIL Committee appointed pursuant to Article 5.2 of this Plan.

T

“Transfer Fund” means the pool of funds used to make Distributions to the DIL Depositors established
pursuant to Article 4.3 of this Plan.
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"Unaffected Creditor(s)" includes Persons with the following Claims:
Crown Claims;

Post- Filing Claims;

Restructuring Claims;

a o o p

All Claims of current employees, officers and directors for all amounts owing to them in their

capacity as such, by statute or otherwise for, or in connection with accrued salary, accrued

wages, accrued bonuses, accrued retention payments, fees and expenses, reimbursement

obligations, accrued vacation leave and accrued vacation pay, as applicable, which obligations

are prescribed by the Empfloyment Standards Code, R.S.A. 2000, c. E-9, and any similar

provincial or federal legislation;

e. Amounts due to Person(s) classified as critical suppliers in the Initial Order or any subsequent
Orders;

f.  Claims against Directors excluded from being compromised pursuant to section 5.1(2) of the
CCAA;

g. Claims related to Agreements that have not been disclaimed or resiliated by DIL pursuant to this
Plan; |

h. Claims against Representative Action Defendants in the Representative Action; and

i. The District Claim.

1.2 Article and Section Reference

The terms “this Plan”, “hereof” and “hereunder”, “herein” and similar expressions refer té this Plan,
amendments to this Plan and not to any particular article, section, subsection, paragraph or clause of this
Plan and include any instrument supplemental hereto. In this Plan, a reference to an article, section,
subsection, clause or paragraph shall, unless otherwise stated, refer to an article, section, subsection,
paragraph or clause of this Plan.

1.3 Extended Meanings

In this Plan, where the context so requires, anj word importing the singular number shall include the
plural and vice-versa; and any word or words importing gender shall include all genders.

1.4 Interpretation Not Affected by'Headings

The division of this Plan into articles, sections, subsections, paragraphs and clauses and the insertion of
a table of contents and headings are for convenience of reference and shall not affect the construction or
intérpretation of the Plan.
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1.5 Date of any Action

In the event that any date on which any action is required to be taken hereunder by any Person is not a
Business Day, such action shall be required to be taken on the next succeeding day that is a Business
Day.

16 Currency

Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to currency in this Plan are to Canadian currency. For the
purposes of voting or distribution(s) pursuant to this Plan, a Claim shall be denominated in Canadian
Dollars. Any Claim in a currency other than Canadian Dollars must be converted to Canadian Dollars, and
such amount shall be regarded as having been converted at the exchange rate quoted by the Bank of
Canada for exchanging such currency to Canac_iian dollars at noon on the Filing Date.

1.7 Statutory References

Any reference in this Plan fo a statute includes all regulations made thereunder, all amendments to such
statute or regulations in force from time to time and any statute or regulation that supplements or
supersedes such statute or regulation.

1.8 Successors and Assigns

This Plan shall be binding upon and shall ensure to the benefit of the heirs, administrators, executors,
legal and personal representatives, successors and assigns, as the case may be, of any Person named
or referred to in this Plan.

1.9 Governing' Law

This Plan shall be govemed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of Alberta and the federal
laws of Canada applicable therein. All questions as to the interpretation or application of this Plan and all
proceedings taken in connection with this Plan and its revisions shall be subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Court.

ARTICLE 2
PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

21 Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to affect a compromise and settlement of Affected Claims in order to enable
the Applicants to liquidate the DIL Assets in an orderly manner to maximize the recovery to the Affected
Creditors compared to that, which would result from the bankruptcy of one or more of the Applicants and
to provide a streamlined process for the DIL Depositors to participate in the Representative Action.
Affected Creditors should review this Plan and the Report of the Monitor before voting to accept or reject
the Plan. The transactions contemplated by the Plan are to be implemented pursuant to the CCAA
Proceedings.
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2.2 Affected Creditors

This Plan provides for the comprdmise and settlement of the Claims of the Affected Creditors. If this Plén
is accepted by the Eligible Affected Creditors and approved by the Court, and the transactions set out in
this Plan occur, this Plan shall be binding upon each Affected Creditor and its heirs, executors,
administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

2.3 Unaffected Creditors

This Plan does not compromise the Claims of Unaffected Creditors.

ARTICLE 3
CLASSIFICATION OF AFFECTED CREDITORS

3.1 Classes of Affected Creditors

For the purpose of considering and voting upon the Plan, Eligible Affected Creditors shall constitute a
single class.

ARTICLE 4
STRUCTURE OF THE PLAN

41 Overview

This Plan contemplates an orderly transition of the value of the Registered Plans to the Replacement
Fund Manager the proceeds of which shall be paid into the New Registered Accounts on a Pro-Rata
basis as-well-as-the+reselution-ei-Glaims-of Related-Parties. The ‘successful implementation of this Plan
should provide a more timely recovery to all Persons with an economic interest in District Investments
than would result from the bankruptcy of DIL. Fhe-Rlan-wilHurther allow-forthe-resolution of the-matters
deseribed-in-Article 7-1-of-the-Rlan- The operations of DIL will cease immediately following the
Completion Date.

4.2 Non-Renewal of Mortgages

That portion of the DIL Assets consisting of cash and short-term investments held by DIL on the Effective
Date shall be paid into the Transfer Fund, distributed to the Replacement Fund Manager and paid into the
New Registered Accounts as set out herein. That portion of the DIL Assets consisting of loans and
registered mortgages shall be converted to cash over time through the repayment or sale of these loans
and registered mortgages. Borrowers are being encouraged to refinance their existing loans and as the
loans mature, they will not be renewed. To the extent that some loans are demand loans, the CRO will
work with the Borrowers to find alternative financing with a third party lender before demanding on the
loan. The CRO may, in its sole and unfettered discretion and on behalf of DIL, demand repayment of any
foan or proceed with enforcement steps against any Borrower.,
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4.3 Transfer Fund
As the DIL Assets are converted to cash, they-willbe-paid-fo-the-Monitorand held in trust in the Transfer

Fund, which will be administered and distributed to DIL Depositors, through the Replacement Fund
Manager, in accordance with the Plan. The Transfer Fund will maintained in a separate, interest bearing
trust account-te-hold-theFransferFund. For areater clarity, but without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Transfer Fund or any portion thereof may be held by Applicants’ Counse! and when so held
shall be deemed to be held by DIL for all purposes including, without limitation, the /ncome Tax Act, RSC
1985, c.1 (5" Supp) and any reference to funds being held by DIL in the Plan shall be deemed to include
held by Applicants Counsel. Any authorization or requirement in the Plan or the Sanction Order for DIL to
hold funds shall include and may be fulfilled by the Applicants’ Counsel holding such funds..

4.4 Treatment of Affected Creditors

Affected Creditors shall receive distributions as set forth below only to the extent that such Claims are
Proven Claims and have not been paid, released or otherwise satisfied prior to the Effective Date. Each
Affected Creditor will have their Proven Claim compromised as follows:

a. Prior to or as soon as possible following the Effective Date, the Replacement Fund Manager will
establish one or more New Registered Plans and New Registered Accounts for each DIL
Depositor.

b. Upon the Effective D'ate or at such later date as may be determined by the Monitor, acting
reasonably, DIL will make a Distribution of the Net Balance of the Transfer Fund.

c. From time to time thereafter, upon the Monitor making a determination that it is appropriate to
make a Distribution of the Net Balance of the Transfer Fund or upon the Net Balance of the .
Transfer Fund reaching $3.0 million, DIL shail make a Distribution of the Net Balance of the
Transfer Fund to the Replacement Plan Manager to be distributed to the DIL Depositors, subject
to the New Registered Accounts having been established, by way of Pro-Rata payments to the
New Registered Accounts. ,

d. Payments to Affected Creditors will be net of the Representative Action Holdback, which will only
be applied to distributions to the Representative Action Class.

4.5 Timing of Payments to Affected Creditors

Provided that the Net Balance of the Transfer Fund is at least $3.0 million, net of the Representative
Action Holdback, all DIL Depositors will receive an initial Distribution of the Net Balance, subject to the
Representative Action Holdback, which will only be applied to distributions to the Representative Action
Class, from the Transfer Fund immediately following the Effective Date. Each time after the Initial
Distribution that the Net Balance of the Transfer Fund reaches $3.0 million, net of any Representative
Action Holdback still to be paid, DIL, as directed by the Monitor, will make a further Distribution of the Net
Balance, subject to any Representative Action Holdback still to be paid, which will only be applied to
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distributions to the Representative Action Class, from the Transfer Fund to the Replacement Fund
Manager.

46 Interest

No interest or penalties shall accrue or be paid on the Proven Claims of Affected Creditors from and after
the Filing Date but shall be released in accordance with the Plan.

ARTICLE 5
REPRESENTATIVE ACTION

5.1 Representative Action

Pursuant to the Plan and the Sanction Order, the Subcommittee shall‘be authorized and enabled to take
any and all such steps as they deem necessary and desirable to commence and prosecute the
Representative Action on behalf of the Representative Action Class. The Representative Action shall be
governed by the terms of the Plan and any subsequent Order within the CCAA Proceedings. Except as
subsequently ordered by this Court within the CCAA Proceedings and only to the extent so ordered, the
Representative Action shall not be governed by the Class Proceedings Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 50 (British
Columbia) and Class Proceedings Act, S.A. 2003, c. C-16.5, as amended by the Class Proceedings
Amendment Act, 2010, c. 15, (Alberta), or any legislation of similar purpose or intent in any Canadian
Province or Territory, or State of the United States_provided always that should the Representative
Action, or in the case that more than one Representative Action is filed by the Representative Counsel,

one of the Representative Actions be commenced by the Representative Counsel on behalf of the DIL
Depositors participating in the Representative Action under the Class Proceedings Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.
50 (British Columbia) and Cfass Proceedings Act, S.A. 2003, c. C-186.5, as amended by the Class
Proceedings Amendment Act, 2010, ¢. 15. (Alberta), such leaislation shall be deemed to govern such

Represeniative Action except to the extent such legislation is inconsistent with or modified by this Plan or
the Sanction Order.

5.2 Establishment of Subcommitiee

The Subcommitiee shall have between three and five members, of which at least one member will initially
be from the DIL Committee and the other members shall be appointed by the DIL Committee. One or
more member(s) of the Subcommittee shall be the Representative Plaintiff(s). Persons who are not
currently members of the DIL. Committee may be added to the Subcommitiee upon being voted on to the
Subcommittee by representatives of the DIL Committee.

5.3 Responsibilities of Subcommittee

The duties and responsibilities of the Subcommittee shall include but are not limited to the following:
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a. The Subcommittee shall review the qualifications of at least three lawyers who will be considered
to act as Representative Counsel, and shall select Representative Counsel on behalf of the
RAepresentative Action Class;

b. The Subcommitiee shall, in conjunction with Representative Counsel, identify a Representative
Plaintiff willing to serve in such capacity;

c. The Subcommittee shall remain in place throughout the Representative Action and shall have the:
mandate, powers and duties described in the Sanction Order, including but not fimited to:

i.  Assisting in maximizing the amount that is ultimately available for distribution to the
Representative Class pursuant to the Representative Action;

it.  Consulting with and instructing the Representative Counse! on behalf of the
Representative Class, including but not limited to the power to settle all or a portion of the
Representative Action pursuant to the Sanction Order:

iii. Replacing Representative Counsal;
iv.  Serving in a fiduciary capacity in representing the Representative Class;

v.  Establishing the amount of the Representative Action Holdback and directing that the
amount of the Representative Action Holdback be paid to the Representative Counsel;
and

vi.  Bringing any matter before the Court by way of application for advice and direction.

5.4 Electing Not to Participate in Representative Action in Representative Action Letter

Those DIL Depositors who elect to not participate in the Representative Action or who opt out of the
Representative Action pursuant to Article 5.7:

a. are forever barred from pérticipating in the Representative Action;

b. are not entitled to receive any recovery of any kind, including but not limited tc a dividend or
distribution under the Plan, that is payable out of proceeds recovered pursuant to the
Representative Action;
shall have no liability for any costs in the Representative Action; and
are not eligible to be members of any “class” pursuant to the Class Proceedings Act, R.S.B.C.
1996, c. 50 (British Columbia) and Class Proceedings Act, S.A. 2003, c C-16.5, as amended by
the Class Proceedings Amendment Act, 2010, c. 15. (Alberta), or any legislation of similar
purpose or intent in any Canadian Province or Territory, or State of the United States with respect
to any claim which was or could have been a Representative Action Claim in any other leqal

proceeding(s) other than the Representative Action except for any representative action
commenced pursuant to the District plan of compromise and arrangement, i applicable.
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5.5 Electing to Participate or Deemed Election to Participate in Representative Acton in
Representative Action Letter

DIL Depositors may elect to participate or elect not to participate in the Representative Action by marking
the appropriate box on the Representative Action Letter attached hereto as Schedule “2” and delivering
the Representative Action Letter to the Monitor on or before 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business
Day preceding the date of the commencement of the Representative Action. Alternatively, DIL

Depositors who fail to mark any box with respect to the Representative Action on the Representative
Action Letter attached hereto as Schedule “2” and deliver it to the Monitor in accordance with this Article
5.5, shall be deemed to have elected to participate in the Representative Action. Following the selection
of Representative Counse! by the Subcommittee, the Monitor will provide to all the DIL Depositors who
have elected or are deemed to have elected to participate in the Representative Action with an estimate
of the amount of the Representative Action Holdback together with information regarding opting out of the
Representative Action.

5.6 No Claims Other than Representative Action

The Representative Action shall represent the sole recourse of any DIL Depositor with respect to a
Representative Action Claim gxcept if such DIL Depositor is also a District Depositor, in which case he or

she may participate in any representative action commenced pursuant to the District plan of compromise

and arrangement. No legal proceedings shall be commenced by any DIL Depositor or any other Person
for a claim that is an actual or potential Representative Action Claim_except for any representative action
commenced pursuant to the District plan of compromise and arrangement, if applicable. Without fimiting

the generality of the foregoing, but for greater clarity, those DIL Depositors who elect or are deemed to
have elected to participate in the Representative Action, or those DIL Depositors who have elected to opt

out of the Representative Action. either in the Representative Action Letter or pursuant to Article 5.7, are
not eligible to be members of any “class” for purposes of the Class Proceedings Act, R.8.B.C. 1996, ¢. 50
{British Columbia) and Class Proceedings Act, S.A. 2003, ¢ C-16.5, as amended by the Class
Proceedings Amendment Act, 2010, c. 15. (Alberta), or any legislation of similar purpose or intent in any

Canadian Province or Territory, or State of the United States_in any other legal proceedina(s) other than

the Representative Action except for any representative action commenced pursuant to the District plan

of compromise and arrangement, if applicable.

57 Opting Out of Representative Action

A DIL Depositor who has elected or is deemed to have elected to participate in the Representative Action
may, at any time prior to the commencement of any Representative Action, opt out of the Representative

Action by providing notice to the Representative Counsel, or in the event that Representative Counsel
has not been retained, to the Monitor. Notice of opting out of thé Representative Action must be written,
dated, and signed on the Notice of Opting Out form attached hereto as Schedule “5”. Upon receipt of the
Notice of Opting Out form by the Representative Counsel or the Monitor, the DIL Depositor shall have
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their status changed from participating in the Representative Action to not participating in the
Representative Action. Within a reasonable period of time of receiving the Notice of Opting Out, the
Representative Counsel or the Monitor, as the case may be, shall calculate such DIL Depositor's

Proportionate Share of Costs_incurred until the Sunday of the week in which the Notice of Opting Out was
received by the Representative Counsel or the Monitor, as the case may be. The Representative

Counsel or the Monitor, as the case may be, shall deduct the Proportionate Share of Costs from the
amount which was contributed by such DIL Depositor as his or her share of the Representative Action
Holdback and shall remit the balance to the DIL Depositor.

538 Indemnity for Representative Plaintiff

The Representative Plaintiff is entitled to be indemnified for any liability for any costs award issued in any
Representative Action from the Representative Action Holdback, up to the maximum amount of funds
remaining in the Representative Action Holdback at the time of such costs award.

ARTICLE 6

PROCEDURAL MATTERS

6.1 Creditors’ Meeting

The following procedure will be followed at the Creditors’ Meeting:

a. Following the filing of the Plan with the Court, DIL will seek the Creditors’ Meeting Qrder
authorizing DIL to hold the Creditors’ Meeting on the date set by the Creditors’ Meeting Order at
which Eligible Affected Creditors shall consider and vote upon the Plan. The Creditors’ Meeting
shall be held in accordance with this Plan, the Creditors’ Meeting Order and any other applicable
Order in respect of the process governing the Creditors’ Meeting.

b. The Monitor or its designee shall preside as the Chair of the Creditors’ Meeting and shall decide
all matters related to the conduct of the Creditors’ Meeting. The only Persons entitled to attend
the Creditors’ Meeting are Eligible Affected Creditors (including the holders of Proxies), their legal
counsel and financial advisors, the Directors, members of the DIL Committee, the Applicants’
Counsel, the Monitor's Counsel and legal counsel for the District Committee and the DIL
Committee. Any other Person may be admitted on invitation of the Chair.

¢. The guorum required at any Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof shall be two Eligible
Affected Creditors present in person or by Proxy. If the requisite quorum is not present at the
Creditors’ Meeting or if the Chair determines that the Creditor's Meeting has to be postponed for
any reason, then the Creditors’ Meeting shall be adjourned by the Chair to such date, time and
place as determined by the Chair.
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d. The Monitor may designate Person(s) of their choosing to supervise and tabulate attendance and
votes cast at the Creditors’ Meeting or to act as the secretary of the Creditors’ Meeting.

e. The entittement of an Affected Creditor with a Disputed Claim to vote at the Creditors’ Meeting
shall not be construed as an admission that its Claim is a Proven Claim.

f.  The Monitor shall have the right to seek the assistance of the Court in valuing any Claim for
voting purposes in accordance with the Plan and the Meeting Order, if required, and to ascertain
the resuit of any vote on the Plan.

6.2 Voting Procedures

Each Eligible Affected Creditor may vote their Claim in person by attending the Creditors’ Meeting, by
submitting an Election Letter in the form set out in the Creditors' Meeting Order, or by Proxy by submitting
their duly completed Proxy in accordance with the provisions included herein and in the Creditors’
Meeting Order. Each Eligible Affected Creditor is entitled to one vote, which vote shall have the value of
such Eligible Affected Creditors’ Proven Claim as determined in accordance with the Claims Process
Order or this Plan. The results of any and all votes conducted at the Creditors’ Meeting shall be binding
on all Affected Creditors, whether or not any such Affected Creditor is present or voting at the Creditors’
Meeting.

6.3 Voting by Letter

An Eligible Affected Creditor may vote by fiIIihg out the Election Letter attached hereto as Scheduie “17,
which must be delivered to the Monitor at the address set out in Article 11.8 below. An Election Letter
shall be voted in accordance with the instructions stated in the Election Letter notwithstanding any
maodification of or amendment to the Plan that may be made in accordance with Article 11.7. An Election
Letter must be delivered to the Monitor on or before 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) before the last Business
Day preceding the date of the commencement of the Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Failure to deliver such Election Letter as set out herein shall result in the invalidation of such Election
Letter.

The Election Letter must be executed by an Eligible Affected Creditor or their duly authorized legal
counsel. If the Eligible Affected Creditor is not an individual, the Election Letter must be signed in its
name by an authorized officer or director whose title should be indicated. If a Person is acting in a
representative capacity for the Eligible Affected Creditor, the Election Letter must be accompanied by the
appropriate instrument evidencing qualification and authority to act unless such instrument had previously
been filed with the Monitor. Failure to sign the Election Letter and provide evidence of qualification and
authority to act in accordance with this Article shall invalidate such Election Letter.

6.4 Appointment and Revocation of Proxies
An Eligible Affected Creditor may vote in person by attending the Creditors’ Meeting. Eligible Affected
Creditors may also vote by indicating such Person’s name in the blank space provided in the form of
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Proxy, attached hereto as Schedule “4”, which must be delivered to the Monitor at the address set out in
Article 11.8 below.

A Proxy must be delivered to the Monitor by email, mail, facsimile transmission or courier on or before
5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business Day prior to the date of the Creditors’ Meeting or any
adjournment thereof, or by hand to the Chair of the Creditors’ Meeting prior to the commencement of the
Creditors' Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Failure to sign and deliver the Proxy as set out herein shall result in the invalidation of such Proxy.

An Eligible Affected Creditor who has signed and delivered a Proxy may revoke it (as to any matter on
which a vote has not already been cast pursuant to its authority) by an instrument in writing executed by
such Eligible Affected Creditor or by its legal counsel, duly authorized in writing, or if an Eligible Affected
Creditor is not an individual, by a director, officer or legal counsel thereof duly authorized, and deposited
either at the offices of the Monitor above mentioned on or before the last Business Day preceding the
date of the meeting or any adjournment thereof, or with the Chair of the Creditors’ Meeting prior to the
time of commencement of the Creditors’ Meeting, or any adjournment thereof. Failure to complete and
deliver a revocation of Proxy and provide evidence of qualification and authority as set out herein shall
result in the invalidation of such revocation of Proxy.

6.5 Signature on Proxy .

The Proxy must be executed by an Eligible Affected Creditor or their duly authorized legal counsel. If the
Eligible Affected Creditor is not an individual, the Proxy must be signed in its name by an authorized
officer or director whose title should be indicated. If a Person is acting in a representative capacity for the
Eligible Affected Creditor, the Proxy must be accompanied by the appropriate instrument evidencing
qualification and authority to act unless such instrument had previously been filed with the Monitor.
Failure to sign the Proxy in accordance with this Article shall invalidate such Proxy.

6.6 Voting of Proxy

The Person named in the Proxy shall vote on the Claim(s) of the Eligible Affected Creditor(s) in
accordance with the direction of the Eligible Affected Creditor appointing them on any ballot that may be
called for and where the Eligible Affected Creditor giving the Proxy specifies a choice with respect to any
matter to be voted upon, the Claim shall be voted in accordance with the direction of the Eligible Affected
Creditor.

6.7 Exercise and Discretion of Proxy

The Proxy confers a discretionary authority upon the Persons named therein with respect to amendments
or variations of the matters that are identified at the Creditors’ Meeting and in this Plan and with respect to
any other matters that may properly come before the Creditors’ Meeting.
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6.8 Disputed Claims

The Monitor shall keep separate records and tabulations of votes cast in respect of: (i} Proven Claims,
and (ii) Disputed Claims. If approval or non-approval of this Pian by the Eligible Affected Creditors shall
prove to be determined by the votes cast in respect of Disputed Claims, such result shall be reported to
the Court as soon as reasonably possible with a request to the Court for directions regarding an .
expedited determination of any material Disputed Claims and an appropriate deferral of the application for
the Sanction Order and any other applicable dates. The fact that a Ctaim is allowed for voting purposes
shall not preclude the Monitor from disputing the Claim for distribution purposes. The Disputed Claims
Reserve will be held pending settlement or final determination of the Disputed Claim. To the extent that a
final determination or settlement is made in respect of a Disputed Claim in an amount less than the
Disputed Claims Reserve, such surplus funds shall be paid into the Transfer Fund.

6.9 Acceptance of Plan

Votes cast by Eligible Affected Creditors with Proven Claims or with Disputed Claims which are eventually
allowed as Proven Claims shall be binding upon the Affected Creditors and shall be recorded at the time
of the Creditors’ Meeting. If the Required Majority is achieved, this Plan shall be approved and shall be,
subject to Court approval, deemed to have been agreed to, accepted and approved by the Affected
Creditors.

6.10 Confirmation of Plan

in the event that this Plan is agreed to, accepted and approved by the Required Majority pursuant to the
terms of the Plan, DIL shall, within a reasonable period of time, apply to the Court for the Sanction Order.

Subject to the Sanction Order being granted and the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions of this Plan
set forth in Article 7.2, this Plan will be implemented in accordance with the terms hereof.

In the event that the Plan is not agreed to, accepted and approved as set out herein, the Sanction Order
is not granted or the conditions set forth in Article 7.2 are not satisfied or waived in accordance with the
terms of this Plan, this Plan shall automatically terminate and in which case DIL shall not be under any
further obligaticn to implement this Plan.

6.11 Court Assistance

DIL reserves the right to seek the assistance and/or direction of the Court regarding any matters relating
to this Plan, including the resolution of any disputes arising between the Monitor and any other parties.

ARTICLE 7
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT AND PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

7.1 Sequence of Events
Following the Effective Date, the following events will occur in substantially the following sequence:
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7.2

if they have not already been established, the New Registered Plans and the New Registered
Accounts will be set up by the Replacement Fund Manager.

All cash and short-term investments will be liquidated and transferred to the Transfer Fund.
The Settlements will have been completed.

The DIL Assets will be converted to cash by sale, demand, enforcement or non-renewal and such
cash will be transferred to the Transfer Fund.

From time to time, Distributions will be made by DIL from the Transfer Fund in accordance with
Article 4 of the Plan.

The Replacement Fund Manager will be responsible for all required reporting related to the
Distributions, including all reporting required by Canada Revenue Agency.

DIL will cease to operate. '

Conditions to Implementation of Plan

The implementation of the Plan shall be conditional upon the fulfillment of the foliowing conditions on or

prior to the Completion Date, as the case may be:

a.

All applicable governmental, regulatory and judicial consents, orders and any and all filings with
all governmental and regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, in each case to the effect deemed
necessary or desirable for the completion of the transactions contemplated by the Plan or any
aspect thereof shall have been obtained.

The Restructuring Holdback shall have been funded in an amount sufficient to satisfy the
Restructuring Costs.

The Representative Action Holdback shall have been established in an amount sufficient to
satisfy the anticipated out-of-pocket costs associated with the Representative Action.
Arrangements for payment of the Unaffected Creditors, excluding any claims against Directors
which are excluded from being compromised pursuant to section 5.1(2) of the CCAA, shall have
been made in a manner satisfactory, to the Courts.

DIL shall have taken all necessary corporate actions and proceedings to approve this Plan to
enable DiL to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Plan and any agreements,
indentures, documents and other instruments to be executed or delivered pursuant to, or required
to give effect to, the terms of this Plan.

This Plan shall have been approved by the Required Majority,

The Sanction Order, in form and substance satisfactory to DIL and the Monitor, acting
reasonably, shall have been granted by the Court and the Sanction Order as at the Completion
Date shall be in full force and effect, not stayed or amended.

The stay of proceedings under the Initial Order shall have been extended to at least the
Completion Date and the Initial Order shall, as at the Completion Date, be in full force and effect,
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not stayed or amended after the date hereof {except with the consent of DIL and the Monitor
acting reasonably).

7.3 Centificate

Immediately following the satisfaction of the conditions set out in Article 7.1 and the occurrence of the
events set out in Article 7.2, the Monitor shall deliver to DIL a cerlificate stating that the Completion Date
has occurred. Following the Completion Date, the Monitor shall file such certificate with the Court,

ARTICLE 8
RELEASES

8.1 General Releases to Released Representatives

Subject to Article 8.2 below, on the Completion Date the Released Representatives (and only the
Released_Representatives) shall be released and discharged from any and all demands, claims, actions,

causes of action, counterclaims, suits, debts, sums of money, accounts, covenants, damages, judgments,
orders, including for injunctive relief or specific performance and compliance orders, expenses,
executions, liens and other recoveries on account of any liability, obligation, demand or cause of action of
whatever nature which any Affected Creditor or other Person may be entitled to assert (other than for any
Unaffected Creditors), including any and alt Claims in respect of any alleged fiduciary or other duty,
whether known or unknown, matured or unmatured, foreseen or unforeseen, existing or hereafter arising,
based in whole or in part on any act or omission, transaction, duty, responsibility, indebtedness, liability,

. obligation, dealing or other occurrence existing or taking place prior to the Completion Date in any way
relating to, arising out of or in connection with the Claims, the arrangement and restructuring provided for
herein or otherwise, the business and affairs of DIL (whenever and however conducted) and in
connection with the arrangement and restructuring provided for herein, the administration and/or
management of this Plan, the CCAA Proceedings, any Claim that has been barred or extinguished by the
Claims Procedure Order and all Claims arising out of such actions or omissions shall be forever waived
and released, all to the full extent permitted by law. For greater clarity, but without otherwise limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the release set out in this Article 8.1 is not intended to release and shall not

have the effect of releasing any co-obligator or any Person who is not a Released Representative or

Partially Released Party and specifically shall not release any joint obligator or any Person who is jointly
or jointly and severally liable with a Released Representative or Partially Beleased Party (a “Non-
Released Person”) and the Affected Creditor or other Person bound by this release (a “Releasing
Person”) shall retain the right to sue such Non-Released Person for any and all demands, claims, actions,
causes of action, counterclaims, suits, debts, sums of money, accounts, covenants, damages, judgments,
orders, including for injunctive relief or specific performance and compliance orders, expenses,
executions, liens and other recoveries on account of any liability, obligation, demand or cause of action of

whatever nature which the Releasing Person may have had against a Released Representative or
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Partially Released Party but for this Atticle 8.1 PROVIDED ALWAYS that this Article 8.1 may be relied
upon and raised or pled by a Released Representative in defence or estoppel of or to enjoin any claim,
action or proceeding brought by a Non-Released Person respecting any action relating to the Claims
released by this Article 8.1.

8.2 Exceptions o Release of Released Representatives

Notwithstanding Article 8.1 of this Plan, the following matters are not released by this Plan as against

RBeleased Representatives:

a. any liability arising out of any fraud, aross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the

Released Representatives; and
b. any actions or omissions of the Released Representatives which are not directly or indiractly

related to the CCAA Proceedings or their commencement.,

For greater certainty, the release of Released Representatives pursuant to Aticle 8.1 of this Plan shall

release the Released Representatives from any and all matters that may or could be alleged as against

the Released Representatives in the Representative Action Claims advanced pursuant to any

Representative Action, save and except for any matters referenced within Article 8.2,

8.3 Releases to Partially Released Parties

Subject to Article 8.4 below, the Partially Released Parties shall be released and discharged from any

and all demands, claiins, actions, causes of action, counterclaims, suits, debts, sums of money, accounts,

covenants, damages, judgments, orders, including for injunctive relief or specific performance and
compliance orders, expenses, executions, liens and other recoveries on account of any liability,

obligation, demand or cause of action of whatever nature which any Affected Creditor or other Person

may be entitled to assert (other than for any Unaffected Creditors), including any and all Claims in respect

of any alleged fiduciary or other duty, whether known or unknown, matured or unmatured, foreseen or

unforeseen, existing or hereafter arising, based in whole or in part on any act or omission, transaction,

duty, responsibility, indebtedness, liability, obligation, dealing or other occurrence existing or taking place

prior to the Completion Date in any way relating to, arising out of or in connection with the Claims. the

arrangement and restructuring provided for herein or otherwise. the business and affairs of DIL
{whenever and however conducted) and in connection with the arrangement and restructuring provided

for herein, the administration and/or management of this Plan, the CCAA Proceedings, any Claim that

has been barred or extinguished by the Claims Procedure Order and all Claims arising out of such
actions or omissions shall be forever waived and released, all to the full extent permitted by law. For

greater clarity, but without otherwise limiting the generaiity of the foregoing, the release set out in this

Article 8.3 is not intended fo release and shall not have the effect of releasing any co-obligator or any
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Person who is not a Released Representative or Partially Beleased Party and specifically shall not

release a Non-Released Person and a Releasing Person shall retain the right to sue such Non-Released

Person for any and all demands, claims, actions, causes of action, counterclaims, suits, debts. sums of

money, accounts, covenants, damages, judgments, orders, including for iniunctive relief or specific

performance and compliance orders, expenses, executions, liens and other recoveries on account of any

liability, obligation, demand or cause of action of whatever nature which the Releasing Person may have
had against a Partially Released Party or Released Representative but for this Article 8.3 PROVIDED

ALWAYS that this Article 8.3 may be relied upon and raised or pled by a Partially Released Party in

detence or estoppel of or to enjoin any claim, action or proceeding brought by a Non-Released Person

respecting any action relating to the Claims released by this Article 8.3.

8.4 Limitations on Releases_to Partially Released Parties

Notwithstanding Article 8.3 of this Plan, the following claims as against Partially Released Parties are not

released by this Plan:

claims against the Directors set out in Section 5,1(2) of the CCAA;

b. claims prosecuted by the Alberta Securities Commission or the British Columbia Securities
Commission arising from compliance requirements of the Securities Act of Alberta and the
Financial Institutions Act of British Columbia;

¢. claims made by the Superintendent of Financial Institutions arising from compliance requirements
of the Loan and Trust Corporations Acts of Alberta and British Columbia;

d. any Representative Action Claims that are advanced solely as part of the Representative Action;

e. any D&O Insured Claim that is advanced solely as part of the Representative Action, subject to
the following:

i.  nothing in this Plan shall prejudice, compromise, release or otherwise affect any right or
defence of any such insurer in respect of the D&O Insurance; and

i.  DIL and the D&O Party(ies) shall make all reasonable efforts to meet all obligations under
the D&O Insurance. The D&O Insurers shall be obliged to pay any loss payable pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the D&O Insurance notwithstanding the releases granted
to the Released Representatives and Partially Released Partigs (including DIL and the

D&O Party(ies)) under this Plan, and the D&Q Insurers shall not rely on any provisions of
the D&O Insurance to argue, or otherwise assert, that such releases excuse them from,
or relieve them of, the obligation to pay any loss that otherwise wouid be payable under
the terms of the D&O Insurance.

8.5 Sections That Do Not Apply
Pursuant to section 36.1 of the CCAA, sections 38 and 95 to 101 of the BIA shall not apply to DIL,
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ARTICLE 9
PLAN SANCTION ORDER

If the Required Majority approves the Plan, DIL shall apply for the Plan Sanction Order. The Application
for the Plan Sanction Order may, among other things request that the Cour:

Declare that the Plan is fair and reasonable.
Declare that as of the Effective Date, the Plan and all associated steps, compromises,
transactions, arrangements, assignments, releases and reorganizations effected thereby are
approved, binding and effective as set out herein upon DIL, all Affected Creditors and all other
Persons affected by the Plan.

¢. Declare that the steps to be taken and the compromises and releases to be effected prior to the
Completion Date are deemed to occur and be effected in the sequential order contemplated by
Article 7.1 of the Plan on the Effective Date.

d. Declare that, as of the Completion Date, the releases referred to in Article 8.1 and 8.3 and the
other provisions of this Plan shall become effective in accordance with the Plan.

e. Terminate and discharge the Administration Charge, the Critical Supplier Charge and the

Directors’ Charge beterminated-and-discharged-on the Completion Date.

f.  Declare that as of the Completion Date DIL has been discharged and released from any and all

Affected Claims of any nature in accordance with the Plan, and declare that the ability of any
Person to proceed against DIL in respect of or relating to any Affected Claims shall be forever
discharged and restrained, and all proceedings with respect to, in connection with or relating to
such Affected Claims be permanently stayed, subject only to the right of Affected Creditors to
receive distributions pursuant to the Plan in respect of their Affected Claims.

g. Discharge and extinguish all liens, mortgages, charges, security interests and other
encumbrances including all security registrations against DIL, in favour of any Affected Creditor in

respect of an Affected Claim-are-discharged-and-extinguished.

h. Discharge and extinguish all liens, including all security registrations against DIL, in favour of any

Affected Creditor in respect of a Disputed Claim-are-discharged-and-extinguished.

i. Declare that any Affected Claims, in respect of which a proof of claim has not been filed by the
Claims Bar Date shall be forever barred and extinguished.

j- Declare that the stay of proceedings under the Initial Order is extended in respect of DIL to and
including the Completion Date.

k. Authorize the Monitor be-autherized-to perform its functions and fulfil its obligations under the
Plan to facilitate the implementation of the Plan.

l.  Declare that, subject to the performance by DIL of its obligations under the Plan, all obligations,
or agreements to which DIL is a party shall be and remain in full force and effect, unamended, as
at the Effective Date, unless repudiated or deemed to be repudiated by DIL pursuant to the Initia}

Order, and no party to any such obligation or agreement shall on or following the Completion
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Date, accelerate, terminate, refuse to renew, rescind, refuse to perform or to otherwise repudiate
its obligations thereunder, or enforce or exercise (or purport to enforce or exercise) any right or
remedy under or in respect of any such obligation or agreement, by reason:

i.  Of any event which occurred prior to, and not continuing after, the Effective Date or which
is or continues to be suspended or waived under the Plan, which would have entitled any
other party thereto to enforce those rights or remedies.

ii.  That DIL has sought or obtained relief or have taken steps as part of the Plan or under
the CCAA.

iii.  Of any default or event of default arising as a result of the financial condition or
insolvency of DIL.

iv.  Of the effect upon DIL of the completion of any of the transactions contemplated under
the Plan.

v. Of any compromises, settlements, restructurings or reorganizations effected pursuant to
the Plan.

m. Declare that upon completion by the Monitor of its duties in respect of DIL pursuant to the CCAA
and the Orders, including, without limitation, the Monitor's duties in respect of the Claims Process
and the distributions made by DIL in accordance with this Plan, the Monitor may file with the
Court following the Completion Date a certificate of f’lan termination stating that all of its duties in
respect of DIL have been completed and thereupon the Monitor shall be deemed to be
discharged from its duties as Monitor of DIL.

n. Declare that DIL and the Monitor may apply to the Court for advice and direction in respect of any
matter arising from or under the Plan.

ARTICLE 10
PROCEDURE FOR RESOLVING DISTRIBUTIONS TO
AFFECTED CREDITORS WITH DISPUTED CLAIMS

10.1 No Distributions Pending Allowance

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, no payments or distributions shall be made with respect
to all or any portion of a Disputed Claim unless and to the extent it has become a Proven Claim.

10.2 Disputed Claims Reserve

On the Eftective Date, DIL will_hold those funds required to establish the Disputed Claims Reservein a
separate trust account until the Disputed Claims have either been admitted or finally disatllowed.

10.3 Distributions After Disputed Claims Resolved

Affected Creditors with Disputed Claims shall complete Election Letters and deliver such Election Letters
to the Monitor (as required) prior to the Creditors’ Meeting, or attend the Creditors’ Meeting and vote in
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person or by Proxy, and upon resolution of the Disputed Claims, DIL shall make distributions from the
Disputed Claim Reserve to each holder of a Disputed Claim which has become a Proven Claim in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan. DIL or the Monitor shall not be reguired, however, to make or
authorize, as the case may be, distributions more frequently than as required under the terms of this Plan.

10.4 Balance of Reserves and Holdbacks

Any halance of the Disputed Claim Reserve after the resolution of the Disputed Claims will be paid to and
form part of the Transfer Fund. Any balance of the Restructuring Holdback after payment of the
Restructuring Claims will be paid to and form part of the Transfer Fund.

ARTICLE 11
GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1 Further Assurances

Notwithstanding that the transactions and events set out in this Plan may be deemed to occur without any
additional act of formality other than as may be expressly set out herein, each of the Persons affected
hereto shall make, do, execute or cause to be made, all such further acts, deeds, agreements,
assignments, transfers, conveyances, discharges, discontinuances of any suit or proceeding, assurances,
instruments, documenits, elections, consents or filings as may be reasonably required by DIL to
impiement the Plan.

11.2 Paramountcy

Without limiting any other provision hereof, from and after the Effective Date, in the event of any conflict
between this Plan and the covenants, warranties, representations, terms, conditions, provisions or
obligations, expressed or implied, of any contract, mortgage, security agreement, indenture, trust
indenture, loan agreement, commitment letter, agreement for sale, lease or other agreement, written or
oral and any and all amendments or suppiements thereto existing between any Affected Creditor or other
Persons affected by the Plan, and DIL as at the Effective Date, the terms, conditions and provisions of
this Plan shall govern and take precedence and priority.

11.3 Waiver of Defaults

From and after the Effective Date, all Persons shall be deemed to have waived any and all defaults by
DIL arising on or prior to the Effective Date in respect of any covenant, warranty, representation, term,
provision, condition or obligation, express or implied, in every contract, agreement, mortgage, security
agreement, indenture, trust indenture, loan agreement, commitment letter, agreement for sale, lease or
other agreement, written or oral (except any defaults comprising or related to those Claims that are not
released described in Article 8.2 and 8.4 of this Plan). Any and all notices of default, acceleration of

payments and demands for payment under any instrument, or notices given under the CCAA, including
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without limitation, any notices of intention to proceed to enforce security, shall be deemed to have been
rescinded and withdrawn.

11.4 Binding Effect

On the Effective Date, this Plan will become effective and be binding on and enure to the bensfit of DIL,
all Affected Creditors, the Directors and all other Persons named or referred to in, or subject to, this Plan
and their respective heirs, executors, administrators and other legal representatives, successors and
assigns. Each Affected Creditor will be deemed to have consented and agreed to all of the provisions of
this Plan, in its entirety.

11.5 Compromise Effective for all Purposes
The payment, compromise or satisfaction of any Claim under this Plan, if sanctioned and approved by the
Court, shall be binding upon the Affected Creditors and each of their heirs, executors, administrators,

legal and personal representatives, successors and assigns, as the case may be, for all purposes.

11.6 Payment of Taxes

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Plan, each Affected Creditor that is to receive a distribution
pursuant to the Plan shall have sole and exclusive responsibility for the satisfaction and payment of any
tax obligations imposed by any governmental authority, including, without limitation of the foregoing,
income, withholding and cther tax obligations, on account of such distribution.

11.7 Modification of the Plan

Subject to the consent of the Monitor, DIL reserves the right to file any modification of or amendment to
this Plan by way of a supplementary plan or pians of compromise or arrangement, or both, filed with the
Court at any time or from time to time prior to the Creditors' Meeting, in which case any such
supplementary plan or plans of compromise or arrangement, or both, shall, for all purposes, be and be
deemed to be a pant of and incorporated into this Plan provided no such amendment or modification that
materially and adversely affects the rights or treatment hereunder of the Affected Creditors shall be so
filed without first obtaining the approval of the Court. DIL shall give notice by publication on the Monitor's
website, or otherwise, to all Affected Creditors with details of any modifications or amendments prior to
the vote being taken to approve this Plan, as modified or amended. Subject to the foregoing proviso, DIL
may propose an alteration or modification to the Plan at the Creditors’ Meeting. After the Creditors'
Meeting, DIL may at any time and from time to time vary, amend, modify or supplement the Plan if the
Court determines that such variation, amendment, modification or supplement is of a minor, immaterial or
technical nature that would not be materially prejudicial to the interest of any of the Affected Creditors and
is necessary in order to give effect to the substance of the Plan or the Sanction Order.
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11.8 Notices

Any notice of other communication to be delivered hereunder must be in writing and reference this Plan

and may, subject as hereinafter provided, be made or given by personal delivery, ordinary mail, facsimile

or email addressed to the respective parties as follows:

a.

If to DIL:

Bishop & McKenzie LLP
1700, 530 8" Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 358

Attention: Francis Taman/Ksena Court

Fax: 403-263-3423

Email: Francis Taman FTaman@bmiip.ca
Ksena Court KCourt@bmiip.ca

If to an Affected Creditor, to the last known address (including fax number or email address) for

such Affected Creditor specified in the Proof of Claim filed by such Affected Creditor, or in the

absence of such Proof of Claim, to the last known address for such Affected Creditor set out in

the books and records of DIL or such other address as the Affected Creditor may from time to

time provide to the Monitor in accordance with this Article.

If to the Monitor:

Deloitte Restructuring lnc.
700 Bankers Court

850 2™ Street SW
Caigary, AB T2P OR8
Attention: Vanessa Allen
Fax: 403-718-3681

Email; vanalien @deloitte.ca

Copy to:

Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP
1600 421 7" Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K9
Attention: Jeffrey Oliver

Fax: 403-695-3558

Email: jeffrey.oliver@ gowlings.com

A135752\CAL_LAWN\ 2392433\5
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or to such other address as any party may from time to time notify the others in accordance with this
Article. All such notices and communications which are delivered will be deemed to have been received
on the date of delivery. All such notices and communications which are faxed or emailed will be deemed
to be received on the date faxed or emailed if sent before 5:00 p.m. Calgary time on a Business Day and
otherwise will be deemed to be received on the Business Day next following the day upon which such fax
or email was sent. Any notice or other communication sent by mail will be deemed to have been received
on the third Business Day after the date of mailing.

11.9 Severability of Plan Provisions

If, prior to the date of the Sanction Order, any term or provision of the Plan is held by the Court to be
invalid, void or unenforceable, the Court, shall have the power to alter and interpret such term or provision
to make it valid or enforceable to the maximum extent practicable, consistent with the original purpose of
the term or provision held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, and such term-or provision shall then be
applicable as altered or interpreted, In the event that any term or provision of the Plan is held by the
Court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, then at the election of DIL, notwithstanding any such holding,
alteration or interpretation, the remainder of the terms and provisions of the Plan shall remain in full force
and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated by such holding, alteration or
interpretation.

11.10 Non-Consummation

If the Sanction Order is not issued in respect of this Plan erthe-plans-of arrangement filed by the-other

Applicants, this Plan shall be null and void in all respects, including (i) any settlement or compromise
embodied in the Plan including the fixing or limiting of an amount and any document or agreement
executed pursuant to the Plan shall be deemed nuil and void, and (ii) nothing contained in the Plan, and
no acts taken in preparation for consummation of the Plan, shall (a) constitute or be deemed to constitute
a waiver or release of any Claims by or against DIL or any other Person; (b) prejudice in any manner the
rights of DIL in any further proceedings involving DIL, including without limitation the right to assert any
facts or defences it might otherwise have; or (c} constitute an admission of any sort by DIL or any other
Person.

11.11 Different Capacities

Persons who are affected by this Plan may be affected in more than one capacity. Unless expressly
provided herein to the contrary, a Person will be entitled to participate hereunder in each such capacity.
Any action taken by a Person in one capacity will not affect such Person in any other capacity, unless
expressly agreed by the Person in writing or unless their Claims overlap or are otherwise duplicative.

[The Balance of This Page is Left Intentionally Blank]
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ARTICLE 12
EXECUTION

12.1 Execution

This Plan has been executed by DIL in the Hamlet of Beach Corner in the Province of Alberta effective
dJanuary 11, 2016 and is binding and effective on DIL.

Kluane Financial Services Inc.

Tl

—_—

Cameron Sherban, Chief Restructuring Officer for Lutheran Church —
Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Ltd.
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Schedule “1” — Election Letter

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955

COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

DOCUMENT ELECTION LETTER

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA -

BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH -
CANADA, THE AL.BERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

THIS ELECTION LETTER SHALL BE VOTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS STATED
BEL.OW EVEN THOUGH THE PLAN PRESENTED BY DISTRICT INVESTMENTS MAY BE MODIFIED
OR AMENDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE DISTRICT INVESTMENTS PLAN
BEFORE OR AT THE CREDITORS’ MEETING, OR AFTER THE CREDITORS’ MEETING WITH THE
APPROVAL CF THE COURT.

Voting

I, a creditor {or | , representative of
-, a creditor), in the above matter for the sum of $

hereby request the Monitor to record my vote respecting the District Investments Plan as made on the
November 21, 2015 as follows:

(mark one only):

I:l Vote FOR approval of the resolution to accept the Plan; or

D Vote AGAINST approval of the resolution to accept the Plan.

IF A BOX IS NOT MARKED AS A VOTE FOR OR AGAINST APPROVAL OF THE PLAN,
YOUR VOTE SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE A VOTE FOR APPROVAL OF THE PLAN.

Dated at this day of
201
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Witness

Witness

Return to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor

700 Bankers Court, 850 — 2™ Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681
Email: CalgaryRestructuring @deloitte.ca

A135752\CAL_LAW\ 2392433\5

Individua! Creditor

Name of Corporate Creditor

Name and Title of Signing Officer
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Schedule “2” — Representative Action Letter

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955

- COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
DOCUMENT REPRESENTATIVE ACTION LETTER
APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA -

BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH -
CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

Representative Action Election (For District Investment Depositors Only)

l, a creditor (or | , representative of

, @ creditor), hereby request the Monitor to record my election respecting the
Representative Action as follows:

{mark one only):
Record my election TO PARTICIPATE in the Representative Action: or
Record my election NOT TO PARTICIPATE in the Representative Action.

IF A BOX 1S NOT MARKED FOR AN ELECTION, YOUR ELECTION SHALL BE RECORDED AS AN
ELECTION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION.

iF YOU ELECT NOT TO PAHTICIPATE IN THE HEPF{ESENTATIVE ACTION YOU ARE OR THE
CRED!TOR IS .

a. WAIVING ALL RIGHTS AS A PARTICIPANT WITHIN THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION
CLAIM(SY;

b. NOT ENTITLED TO ANY FURTHER NOTICE OF OR INFORMATION REGARDING THE
REPRESENTATIVE ACTION, SAVE WHAT IS AVAILABLE ON THE PUBLIC RECORD;

c. FOREVER BARRED FROM PARTICIPATING IN THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION;
NOT ENTITLED TO RECEIVE ANY RECOVERY OF ANY KIND, INGLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO A DIVIDEND OR DISTRIBUTION UNDER THE PLAN, THAT 1S PAYABLE OUT OF
PROCEEDS RECOVERED PURSUANT TO THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION; AND

e. NOTELIGIBLE TO BE A MEMBER OF ANY “CLASS” PURSUANT TO THE CLASS
PROCEEDINGS ACT. R.8.B.C. 1996, C. 50 (BRITISH COLUMBIA) AND CLASS

Page 36

A135752\CAL_LAW\ 2392433\5

™~



PROCEEDINGS ACT, 8.A. 2003, C C-16.5, AS AMENDED BY THE CLASS PROCEEDINGS

AMENDMENT ACT, 2010, C. 15. (ALBERTA), OR ANY L EGISLATION OF SIMiLAR PURPOSE

OR INTENT IN ANY CANADIAN PROVINCE OR TERRITORY, OR STATE OF THE UNITED

STATES.

IF YOU ELECT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION, ANY PAYMENTS YOU ARE
UNTITLED TO UNDER THE PLAN WILL BE SUBJECT TO THE REPRESENTATIVE ACTION

HOLDBACK.

THIS ELECTION LETTER, ONCE DULY COMPLETED, DATED AND SIGNED, MUST BE SENT TO
THE MONITOR BY EMAIL, MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR COURIER, AND RECEIVED BY
THE MONITOR BY NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. (CALGARY TIME) ON ,201__OR
SUCH LATER DATE AS MAY BE THE LAST BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE DATE THE CREDITORS'
MEETING HAS BEEN ADJOURNED TO. AFTER SUCH TIME, NO ELECTION LETTER CAN BE

ACCEPTED BY THE MONITCR.

Dated at this

day of

201 .

Witness

Witness

Return to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor

700 Bankers Court, 850 — 2nd Strest SW
Calgary, AB TZP OR8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681

Email: CalgaryRestructuring @deloitte.ca

A135752\CAL_LAW\ 2392433\5

Individual Creditor

Name of Corporate Creditor

Name and Title of Signing Officer
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Schedule “3” — Legal Description of Prince of Peace Development

Development, Harbour and Expansion Lands

PLAN 9712096
BLOCK 1

CONTAINING 22.29 HECTARES (55.08 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT: SUBDIVISION 0311251

AREA: 1.90 HECTARES (4.70 ACRES)

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
Manor

PLAN 0311251

BLOCK 4.

LOT 1

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AREA: 1.9 HECTARES (4.7 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

Lake and Green Space

PLAN 8712096

BLOCK 2

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AREA: 12.88 HECTARES (31.83 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

A135752\CAL_LAW\ 2392433\5
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Schedule “4” — Form of Proxy

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955

COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

DOCUMENT PROXY

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -

BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH -
CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

I, of , & creditor in the above matter, hereby appoint

of , {person you want to appoint) to be my proxyholder
in the above matter, except as to the receipt of any distributions pursuant to this Plan {with or without)

power to appoint another proxyhoider in his or her place.

The above named proxyholder shall attend on behalf of and act for me at the Creditors’ Meeting to be
held in connection with the DIL Plan and at any and all adjournments, postponements or other
rescheduling of the Creditors' Meeting, and vote the amount of my Claim(s) as follows:

1. (mark one only):

D Vote FOR approval of the resolution to accept the Plan; or

D Vote AGAINST approva! of the resolution to accept the Plan.

IF A BOX IS NOT MARKED AS A VOTE FOR OR AGAINST APPROVAL OF THE PLAN,
THEN THE PROXYHOLDER SHALL VOTE AT HIS/HER DISCRETION.

and

2. Vote at histher discretion and otherwise act for and on behalf of me with respect to any
amendments or variations to the matters identified in the notice of the Creditors' Meeting and in
this Plan, and with respect to other matters that may properly come before the Creditors’ Meeting.

THIS PROXY, ONCE DULY COMPLETED, DATED AND SIGNED, MUST BE SENT TO THE MONITOR
BY EMAIL, MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR COURIER, AND RECEIVED BY THE MONITOR
BY NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. (CALGARY TIME) ON »201__ OR SUCH LATER
DATE AS MAY BE THE LAST BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE DATE THE CREDITORS’ MEETING
HAS BEEN ADJOURNED TO, OR DELIVERED BY HAND TO THE CHAIR OF THE CREDITORS’
MEETING PRIOR THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE CREDITORS’ MEETING. AFTER
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COMMENCEMENT OF THE CREDITORS’ MEETING (OR ANY ADJOURNMENT THEREOF), NO
PROXIES CAN BE ACCEPTED BY THE MONITOR.

Dated at this day of

201__

Witness Individual Creditor

Witness Name of Corporate Creditor

Name and Title of Signing Officer

Return to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor

700 Bankers Court, 850 — 2™ Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681
Email; CalgaryRestructuring@deloitte.ca '
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Schedule “5” - Notice of Opting Out

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955

COURT COURT OF QUEEN’'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

DOCUMENT NOTICE OF OPTING OUT

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA —

I,

BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH -
CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

a creditor (or | , representative of

» & creditor), in the above matter hereby request Representative Counsel (or in

the event that Representative Counsel is not retained, the Monitor) take notice that | shall no longer
participate in the Representative Action.

| acknowledge that by signing this document, | am or the creditor is:

f.

g.
h.

waiving all rights as a participant within the Representative Action Claim(s);

to be removed from the members of the Representative Action Class;

not entitled to any further notice of or information regarding the Representative Action, save what
is available on the public record; '

forever barred from participating in the Representative Action;

not entitled to receive any recovery of any kind, including but not limited to a dividend or
distribution under the Plan, that is payable out of proceeds recovered pursuant to the
Representative Action; and

not eligible to be a member of any “class” pursuant to the Class Proceedings Act, R.S.B.C. 1996,
¢. 50 (British Columbia) and Class Proceedings Act, S.A. 2003, ¢ C-186.5, as amended by the
Class Proceedings Amendment Act, 2010, ¢. 15. (Alberta), or any legislation of similar purpose or
intent in any Canadian Province or Territory, or State of the United States.

THIS NOTICE, ONCE DULY COMPLETED, DATED AND SIGNED, MUST BE SENT TO THE
REPRESENTATIVE COUNSEL, OR IF THERE IS NO REPRESENTATIVE COUNSEL THEN TO
THE MONITOR, BY MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR COURIER, AND UPON THE DATE
OF RECEIPT SHALL BE DEEMED ACCEPTED AND ENFORCEABLE.
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Dated at this day of

20__,
Witness Individual Creditor
Witness Name of Corporate Creditor
Name and Title of Signing Officer
Return to:

Representative Counsel

OCr:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor

700 Bankers Court, 850 — 2™ Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681
Email: CalgaryRestructuring@deloitte.ca
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Deloitte.

COURT FILE NUMBER
COURT
JUDICIAL CENTRE

DOCUMENT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND
CONTACT INFORMATION OF
PARTY FILING THIS DOCUMENT

o |
JAN 27 2016

JUDICIAL CENTRE
OF CALGARY .

1501-00955

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CALGARY

TWELFTH REPORT OF THE MONITOR

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES CREDITORS?
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.$.C. 1985 ¢. C-36 AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR
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The DIL Plan

15. The DIL Plan was originally dated November 21, 2015 and filed on November 23, 2015. As previously
reported, on December 1, 2015, the Court granted an Order authorizing and directing DIL to present
the DIL Plan o its creditors for approval (the “DIL Meeting Order"). An amended version of the DIL
Plan was dated December 5, 2015 and filed on December 8, 2015. A further amended version of the
DIL Plan was dated and filed on January 11, 2016 (the definition of “DIL Plan” includes all subsequent
amendments except where otherwise noted)

16. The DIL Meeting occurred on January 23, 20186,

Notice of the DI Mesting

17. The DIL Plan includes only one class of affected creditors consisting of DIL Depositors.

18. The DIL Meeting Order prescribed how the DIl. Depositors were to receive notice of the DIL Meeting.
The Monitor confirms that the notice requirements set out in the DIL Meeting Order were complied with
and that the DIL Depositors were nofified of the DIL Meeting as follows:

18.1. The information package for DIL included the address for the Monitor's Website where DIL
Depositors could access the DIL Report including the DIL Plan (as dated December 5, 2015
and filed on December 8, 2015), the DIL. Meeting Order, Notice of the DIL Meeting, a form of
proxy, a form of election letter, a form of representative action letter and a form of notice of
opting out (the “DIL Package"). A copy of the cover letter to DIL Depositors and the DIL Report
(without schedules) is attached hereto as “Schedule 1”. A hand-out for DIL. Depositors entitled
Further information for DIL Depositors — The basics and what you need to do", also dated
December 8, 2015, was also provided with the DIL Package and is attached hereto as
“Schedule 27;

18.2. The Monitor posted a copy of the DIL Package on the Monitor's Website on December 8, 2015;

18.3. The Monitor placed the Notice of the DIL Meeting in the Globe and Mall National Edition on
December 10, 2015. Proof of advertising for the DIL Meeting is attached hereto as "Schedule
3" and

18.4. The Monitor caused a cdpy of the DIL Package to be sent o the DIL Depositors by regular mail
with all DIL Packages being maiied to the DIL Depositors by December 11, 2015.

19. Following the release of the DIL Package, based on discussions with DIL Depositors, the Monitor
prepared two documents entitled “Answers to frequently asked questions” (the “FAQs"), one of which
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was dated December 24, 2015 and one of which was dated January 18, 2016 (as amended on January
20, 2016). Copies of the FAQs are attached hereto as “Schedule 4" and “Schedule 5" respectively.

Amendments to the DIL Plan
20. Following the DIL Packages being provided to the DIL Depositors but prior to the DIL Meeting, DIL

made further amendments to the DIL Plan, which appear in the version dated and filed on January 11,

2016. The changes reflected in this version of the DIL Plan as compared to the version dated December
5, 2015, filed on December 8, 2015 and included in the DIL Package are as follows:

20.1.

20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

Minor revisions to clarify the intent and purpose of the DIL Plan, including the following:

20.1.1. To clarify that the legal counsel chosen to act in any legal action or actions undertaken
on behalf of DIL Depositors (the “Representative Action”) will not be the same legal
counse! as would be retained to act in any legal action or actions undertaken on behalf
of District Depositors; and

20.1.2. To clarify that the charge granted in the Initial Order to indemnify the past and present
directors of the Applicants (the “Directors”) against obligations that they may incur in
that capacity after the commencement of the CCAA proceedings would not be used
to indemnify the Directors against any claims that may be pursued in the
Representative Action,

The addition of wording to clarify that the Class Proceedings Act, R.S.B.C. 1996. C. 60 (Brifish
Columbia) and the Class Proceedings Act S.A. 2003, ¢. C-16.5, as amended by the Class
Proceedings Amendment Act, 2010, c.15 (Alberta) may apply to the Representative Action,
except to the extent that such legislation is inconsistent with or modified by the DIL Plan or the
DIL Sanction Order;

The addition of wording to clarify that DIL Depositors who are participating in the
Representative Action for DIL Depositors are not precluded from participating in any legal
action or actions undertaken on behalf of District Depositors; and

The addition of wording to clarify that the proportionate share of costs payable from a holdback
to fund the Representative Action (the “Representative Action Holdback™) far a DIL Depositor
who opts-out of the Representative Action will be calculated as at the Sunday of the week on
which the respective Notice of Opting Out is received.

B Depositors
21. At the Filing Date and as subsequently confirmed by a claims process approved by the Court on

February 20, 2015, there were 896 DIL Depositors who had claims totaling approximately $38.0

million.
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22,

Pursuant to the Order granted on August 28, 2015 and amended on November 5, 2015, DIL was
authorized to distribute $15.0 million to DIL Depositors (the “Interim Distribution”). In addition to the
Interim Distribution, and as set out in the Initial Order, statutory annual minimum payments to RRIF
holders have been made for 2015 {the “Minimum Payments"). Selected DIL Depaositors have also
received payments pursuant to an emergency fund that was implemented prior o the Filing Date and
approved by the Court as part of the Initial Order (the "Emergency Payments”). Taking inte account
the Interim Distribution, the Minimum Payments and the Emergency Payments, distributions to DIL
Depositors total approximately $15.6 million (the “DIL Distributions”) and represent 41% of the original
investment by DIL Depositors, as at the Filing Date, without taking into account any estimated write-
downs on the value of the assets held by DIL. Fellowing the DiL Distributions, DIL Depositors had
total claims of approximately $22.4 million.

Outcome of the DHL Meeling

23.

24,

25.

28,

The DIL Meeting was conducted in compliance with the terms of the DIL Meeting Order and was held
on January 23, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the Prince of Peace Church and School, located at 243209
Garden Road NE, in Calgary. There were 87 aitendees at the DIL Meeting.

The Minutes of the DIL Meeting are attached hereto as “Schedule 6" (the "Minutes").

The Monitor received a total of 472 votes from DIL Depositors with claims totaling approximately $14.5
million. Of these votes, 410 were received via election letters submitted in advance of the DIL Meeting
and 62 were received via election letters or via wriiten ballots submitted in person or by proxy at the
DIL Meeting. In total, 53% of DIl Depositors voted and the claims of those DIL Depositors who voted
represented 65% of the total proven claims of DIL Depositors.

Of the 472 DIL Depositors who voted, 434, or approximately 92%, voted in favour of the DIL Plan and
38 DIL Depositors, or approximately 8%, voted against the DIL Plan. Those BIL Depositors who voted
in favour of the DIL Plan had claims totalling approximately $12.7 million, or approximately 87% of the
claims, and those DIL Depositors who voted against the DIL Plan had claims totalling approximately
$1.8 million, or approximately 13% of the ciaims. As such, the DIL Plan was approved by the required
majority, being two-thirds in dollar value and a majority in number of voting DIL Depoesitors. Pursuant
fo the resolution that was passed, the DIL Depositors agreed to and accepted the DIL Plan and
requesied that the Court sanction the DIL Plan.
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COURT FILE NUMBER

COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE

APPLICANTS

DOCUMENT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND
CONTACT INFORMATION OF

1501-00955 CLERKQhed biEOURT
COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH FILED
OF ALBERTA DEC - 1 2015

K
IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY JUDICIAL GENTRE
CALGARY OF CALGARY

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’
CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE
ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT,
ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOUSING AND
SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND
SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN
CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA ~ BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

ORDER
(DIL Creditors’ Meeting)

Bishop & McKenzie LLP
Barristers & Solicitors

PARTY FILING THIS 1700, 530 - 8" Avenue SW
DOCUMENT Calgary, Alberta T2P 388

Attention: Francis N. J. Taman / Ksena J. Court

Telephone: 403-237-5550

Fax:- 403-243-3623

File No.: 103,007-003
DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: MONDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2015
LOCATION WHERE ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: CALGARY, ALBERTA
NAME OF JUSTICE WHO MADE THIS ORDER: JUSTICE B.E.C. ROMAINE

UPON THE APPLICATION of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British
Columbia District '(the “District’), EnCharis Community Housing and Services (“ECHS"),
EnCharis Management and Support Services (“EMSS”), and Lutheran Church — Canada, the
Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL") (collectively the "Applicants"); AND
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UPON HAVING READ the Application, the Affidavit of Cameron Sherban; AND UPON
READING the Reports of the Monitor; AND UPON HAVING READ the terms and provisions of
the Plan of Compromise and Arrangement, dated November 21, 2015, as attached as Exhibit
“J” 10 the Affidavit of Cameron Sherban sworn November 23, 2015 (the “DiL Plan”); AND
UPON BEING ADVISED that DIL intends to file an Amended DIL Plan (the “Amended DIL
Plan™); AND UPON HEARING counsel for the Applicants, counsel for the Monitor, counsel for
the CEF Creditors’ Committee, counsel for the DIL Creditors’ Committee, and other interested
parties;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECLARED THAT:

SERVICE

1. Service of notice of the application for this Order, and all supporting materials, as set out
in the Affidavit of Charlene Everett respecting the Application filed November 23, 2015 is good
and sufficient, and the time for notice hereof is shortened to the time actually given.

2. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Order shall have the meaning ascribed
to them in the Initial Order granted by the Honourabie Justice K.D. Yamauchi in this Action
dated January 23, 2015 (the “Initial Order”) or in the Amended DIL Plan. If a term appears in
this Order which is defined in both the Initial Order and the Amended DIL Plan, the definition in
the Amended DIL Plan shall govern.

FILING OF THE PLAN

3. DIL is hereby authorized and directed to file the Amended DIL Plan, to present the
Amended DIL Plan to the Eligible Affected Creditors (the “DIL Eligible Affected Creditors”) for
their consideration in accordance with the terms of this Order (the “DIL Meeting Order”) and to
seek approval of the Amended DIL Plan in the manner set forth herein.

4. DIL is hereby authorized, with the consent of the Monitor or as otherwise ordered by the
Court, to vary, amend, modify or supplement the Amended DIL Plan by way of a supplementary
or amended and restated plan or plans of compromise or arrangement (an “Amended Plan”):

(a) at any time prior to the meeting of the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors (the “DIL
Creditors’ Meeting”), provided that DIL or the Monitor, as applicable, (i) files the
Amended Plan with this Court, (ii) posts the Amended Plan on the Monitor's
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website, and (jii} serves the Amended Plan on the Service List attached to this
Order;

{b) at any time during the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, provided that oral notice of any
such variation; amendment, modification or supplement is given to all DIL Eligible
Affected Creditors present in person or by Proxy (and in such case, notice given
to the DIL Eligible Affected Creditor's proxyholder shall be sufficient) at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting prior to the vote being taken at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, in
which case any such variation, amendment, modification or supplement shall be
deemed to be part of and incorporated into the Amended DIL Plan, and such
Amended Plan shall be promptly posted on the Monitor's website and filed with
the Court as soon as practicable following the DIL Creditors’ Meeting; and

(c) at any time and from time to time after the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (both prior to
and subsequent to the Sanction Order, if granted), with approval of this Court
and any DIL Eligible Affected Creditors adversely affected by such amendment,

provided that, however, any such amendment, modification or supplement may be made
unilaterally by DIL, before or after the Sanction Order, with the approval of the Monitor, if such
amendment, modification or supplement is of an administrative nature that is not adverse to the
financial or economic interests of any of the DIL Affected Creditors under the Amended DIL Plan
and is necessary in order to give better effect to the substance or implementation of the
Amended DIL Plan or the Sanction Order.

CLASSIFICATION OF CREDITORS

5. For the purposes of considering and voting on the Amended DIL Plan and receiving
distributions thereunder, the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors shall constitute a single class under
the Amended DIL Plan.

NOTICE OF CREDITORS’ MEETING AND INFORMATION PACKAGE

6. The form of notice to Creditors of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (the “DIL Notice of
Creditors’ Meeting”) and the form of Proxy to be used by Eligible Affected Creditors (the “Proxy”)
in substantially the forms attached to this DIL Meeting Order as Schedule “1” and “2”,
respectively, are hereby approved.
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7. The DIL Notice of Creditors’ Meeting shall include a specification of the website address
where each DIL Eligible Affected Creditor will be able to access and retrieve copies of the
following documents (collectively, the “Information Package”):

(a) the Amended DIL Plan;

(b) this DIL Meeting Order;

(©) a copy of the Monitor's Report;

(d)  the DIL Notice of Creditors’ Meeting;
(e) the Proxy;

(f) the Election Letter;

{(9) the Representative Action Letter;

(h) the Notice of Opting Out.

8. The Monitor shall send a copy of the Information Package as soon as practicable, and in
any event not later than December 14, 2015, to each DIL Eligible Affected Creditor by regular
mail, facsimile, courier or email to the last known address {including the last known fax number
or email address) for such DIL Eligible Affected Creditor specified by such DIL Eligible Affected
Creditor in their proof of claim or otherwise provided to the Monitor.

9. The Chair (as defined in paragraph 14 of this DIL Meeting Order) be and is hereby
authorized to accept and rely upon Proxies substantially in the form attached as Schedule “2”
and Election Letters substantially in the form attached as Schedule “3” hereto.
Notwithstanding paragraphs 6 to 8 hereof, the Monitor may from time to time, make such minor
changes to the Information Package as the Monitor, in consultation with DIL, considers
necessary or desirable to conform the content thereof to the terms of the Amended DIL Plan or
this DIL Meeting Order, or to describe the Amended DIL Plan.

10. The Monitor shall cause a copy of the Information Package to be posted on the Monitor's
website at www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca no later than December 10, 2015 and in the case of any
amendments made thereto in accordance with paragraphs 4 or 9 hereof, as soon as practicable
after such amendments are made.

11. The Monitor shall send by regular mail, facsimile, courier or email as soon as practicable
following a request therefore, a copy of the Information Package to each DIL Eligible Affected
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Creditor who, no later than two business days prior the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (or any
adjournment thereof), makes a writien request for it.

PUBLICATION OF NEWSPAPER NOTICE

12 As soon as practicable and no later than December 12, 2015, a newspaper notice of the
DIL Creditors’ Meeting, in substantially the form attached as Schedule “4” to this DIL Mesting
Order (the “Newspaper Notice”), shall be published once by the Monitor in the Globe and Mail
National Edition.

NOTICE SUFFICIENT

13.  The publication of the Newspaper Notice, the sending of the Information Package to DIL
Eligible Affected Creditors and the posting of the Information Package on the Monitor's website,
in the manner set out in paragraphs 6 through 12, as applicable, shall constitute good and
sufficient service of this DIL Meeting Order, the Amended DIL Plan and the DIL Notice of
Creditors’ Meeting on all persons who are entitled to receive notice thereof in these
proceedings, who wish to be present in person or by Proxy at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or in
these proceedings, or who wish to vote by way of the Election Letter and no other form of notice
or service need be made on such persons and no other document or material need be served
on such persons in respect of the DIl Creditors’ Meeting or these proceedings. Service shall be
effective, in the case of regular mailing, three Business Days after the date of mailing, in the
case of service by courier, on the day after the courier was sent, and in the case of service by
fax or email, on the day after the fax or email was transmitted, uniess such day is not a
Business Day, or the fax or email transmission was made after 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time), in
which case, service shall be deemed effective on the next Business Day.

CREDITORS’ MEETING

14. A representative of the Monitor shall preside as the chair of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting
(the “Chair”) and shall decide all matters relating to the rules and procedures at, and the
conduct of, the DIL Creditors’ Meeting in accordance with the terms of the Amended DIL Plan,
this DIL Creditors’ Meeting Order and further Orders of this Court. The Chair may adjourn the
DIL Creditors’ Meeting at his/her discretion.

15. DIL shafl call, hold and conduct the DIL Creditors’ Meeting on January 23, 2016 at
243209 Garden Road NE, Calgary, Alberta at 10:00 am (Calgary time) (the “Meeting Date”), or
as adjourned to such places and times as the Chair may determine, for the purposes of the DIL
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Eligible Affected Creditors considering and voting on the Amended DIL Plan and transacting
such other business as may be properly brought before the DIL Creditors’ Meeting.

ATTENDANCE AT CREDITORS’ MEETING

16.  The only persons entitled to notice of, attend or speak at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting are
the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors (or their representative proxyholders), DIL directors, the
Monitor, the Applicants’ legal counsel, the Monitor's legal counsel, members of the Creditors’
Committees, the legal counsel for the Creditors’ Committees, the Chair, Scrutineers and the
Secretary (as defined below). Any other person may be admitted to the DIL Creditors’ Meeting
only by invitation of the Chair.

17. A DIL Eligible Affected Creditor that is not an individual may only attend and vote at the
DIL Creditors’ Meeting if it has appointed a proxyholder to attend and act on its behalf at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting.

VOTING AT THE CREDITORS’ MEETING

18.  Any creditor holding a claim that has not been filed or asserted in accordance with the
Claims Process Order granted by this Court on February 20, 2015 (the “Claims Process Order™),
or that has filed a claim that has been disallowed and for which the appeal period has expired
with no appeal, will not be entitled to vote on the Amended DIL Plan at the DIL Creditors’
Meeting or by Election Letter in respect of its claim.

1. No person shall be entitled to vote on the Amended DIL Plan in respect of a claim that is
an Unaffected Claim, as that term is defined in the Amended DIL Plan.

20.  The only persons entitled to vote at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting in person or by Proxy, or
by Election Letter are the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors.

21. For the purposes of voting on the Amended DIL Plan, all DIL Eligible Affected Creditors
shall be entitled to vote on the proof of claim (as may have been amended) filed in respect of
their Affected Claim pursuant to the Claims Process Order, but for the purposes of receiving
distributions under the Amended DIL Plan, any claim that is not yet a Proven Claim shall remain
subject to further review and final acceptance by the Monitor, and may be determined, in whole
or in part, to be a Disputed Claim.

22.  The quorum required at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting shall be any two DIL Eligible Affected
Creditors present in person or by Proxy at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting.



23. If:
(a) the requisite quorum is not present at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting;

(b} the DIL Creditors’ Meeting is postponed by a vote of the majority in value of the
claims of the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors present in person or by Proxy; or

(€) the Chair otherwise decides to adjourn the DIL Creditors’ Meeting

then the DIL Creditors’ Meeting shall be adjourned to such date, time and place as may be
designated by the Chair. The announcement of the adjournment by the Chair, the posting of
notice of such adjournment on the Monitor's website and written notice thereof to the DIL
Eligible Affected Creditors shall constitute sufficient notice of the adjournment and DIL and the
Monitor shall have no obligation to give further notice to any person of the adjourned DIL
Creditors’ Meeting.

24, Every question submitted to the DIL Creditors’ Mesting, except to approve the Amended
DIL Plan resolution, any amendment to or in respect of the Amended DIL Plan or an
adjournment of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, will be decided by a majority of votes given on a
show of hands or, if by confidential written ballot at the discretion of the Chair, by a simple
majority in number of the DIL Eligible Affected Creditors.

25. At the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, the Chair shall direct a vote by the DIL Eligible Affected
Creditors on the resolution substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule “5” to
approve the Amended DIL Plan (the “Resolution”) by way of written ballot.

26. If the Resolution is approved in accordance with the terms of this DIL Meeting Order, the
Resolution shall be ratified and given full force and effect in accordance with the provisions of
this DIL Meeting Order, the CCAA, the Information Package and any further Order of this Court,
notwithstanding the provisions of any agreement or other instrument to the contrary.

27. The Monitor may appoint scrutineers (the “Scrutineers”) for the supervision and
tabulations of the attendance, quorum, and votes cast at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting. A person
or persons designated by the Monitor shall act as secretary (the “Secretary”) at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting and shali tabulate all votes made at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting and by way of
Election Letter.

28. The result of any vote conducted at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting and by way of Election
Letter shall be binding upon each and every Affected Creditor, whether or not such Affected
Creditor was present or voted at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or by Flection Letter, without
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prejudice to such Affected Creditor's ability to oppose the Amended DIL Plan at the Sanction
Hearing.

29. Following the vote at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, the Monitor shall tally the votes cast at
the DIL Creditors’ Meeting and by Election Letter, and determine whether the Amended DIL
Plan has achieved the Required Majority.

30.  The Monitor shall file its report to this Court by no [ater than 3 business days after the
day- the DIL Creditors’ Meeting occurs with respect to whether the Amended DIL Plan has
achieved the Required Majority. '

VOTING BY PROXY

31.  All Proxies submitted in respect of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (or any adjournment
thereof) shall be in substantially the form attached to this Order as Schedule “2” or in such
other form as is acceptable to the Monitor or the Chair.

32. A DIL Eligible Atfected Creditor wishing to appoint a Proxy to represent such DIL Eligible
Affected Creditor at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (or any adjournment thereof) may do so by
inserting such person’s name in the blank space provided on the form of Proxy and sending the
completed form to the Monitor by email to vanallen @deloitte.ca, or if the completed form cannot

be sent by email, it shall be sent by regular mail, facsimile or courier to;

Deloitte Restructuring inc.
700 Bankers Court
850-2" Street S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0R8
Attention: Vanessa Allen
Fax: 403-718-3681

33. A Proxy must be received by the Monitor by 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the last
Business Day preceding the date set for the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof,
or delivered by hand to the Chair prior to the commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (or
commencement of an adjourned DIL Creditors’ Meeting in case of adjournment). After
commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting {or commencement of an adjourned DIL
Creditors’ Meeting in case of adjournment), no Proxies shall be accepted by the Monitor.
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34.  The following shall govern the submission of Proxies and any deficiencies in respect of
the form or substance of Proxies filed with the Monitor;

(@)

(b)

()

()

(9)

a DIL Eligible Affected Creditor who has given a Proxy may revoke it as to any
matter on which a vote has not already been cast pursuant to its authority, by an
instrument in writing executed by such DIL Eligible Affected Creditor or by its
attorney, duly authorized in writing, or if a DIL Eligible Affected Creditor is not an
individual, by an officer or legal counsel thereof duly authorized, and deposited
with the Monitor as provided in paragraph 33;

if the Proxy is not dated in the space provided, it shall be deemed to be dated on
the date it is received by the Monitor;

a Proxy submitted by a DIL Eligible Affected Creditor that bears or is deemed to
bear a later date than an earlier Proxy submitted by such DIl Eligible Affected
Creditor shall be deemed to revoke the earlier Proxy;

if more than one valid Proxy for the same DIL Eligible Affected Creditor and
bearing or deemed to bear the same date are received by the Monitor with
conflicting instructions, such Proxies shall not be counted for the purposes of the
vote;

the person named in the Proxy shall vote the DIL Eligible Affected Creditor's
Claim in accordance with the direction of the DIL Eligible Affected Creditor
appointing such person on any ballot or show of hands that may be called for;

a Proxy confers a discretionary authotity upon the person named therein with
respect to amendments or variations to the matters identified in the notices of the
DIL Creditors’ Meeting and in the Amended DIL Plan, and with respect to other
matters that may properly come before the DIL Creditors’ Meeting;

the Monitor in consultation with DIL is hereby authorized to use reasonable
discretion as to the adequacy of compliance with respect to the manner in which
any Proxy is completed and executed, and may waive strict compliance with the
requirements in connection with the deadlines imposed in connection therewith:

if one or more valid Proxies and one or more valid Election Letters are both
received from a DIL Eligible Affected Creditor:
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a. the Proxy or Election Letter, as the case may be, that bears or is deemed to bear
the latest date shall be counted for purposes of the vote; and

'b. if all such valid Proxies and valid Election Letters bear or are deemed to bear the
same date, none of the Proxies or Election Letters shall be counted for purposes
of the vote.

VOTING BY ELECTION LETTER

35. A DIL Eligible Affected Creditor wishing to vote by Election Letter shall be entitied to
submit an Election Letter in the form attached to this Order as Schedule “3” or in such other
form as is acceptable to the Monitor. An Election Letter shall be voted in accordance with the
instructions stated in the Election Letter notwithstanding any modification of or amendment to
the Amended DIL Plan that may be made in accordance with the Amended DIL Plan.

36. A DIL Eligible Affected Creditor wishing to vote by Election Letter may do so by
completing the Election Letter and sending the completed form to the Monitor by email to
josithole @deloitte.ca, or if the completed form cannot be sent by email, it shall be sent by
regular mail, facsimile or courier to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc.
700 Bankers Court
850-2™ Street S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0R8
Attention: Joseph Sithole
Fax: 587-293-3203

37.  An Election Letter must be received by the Monitor by 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the
last Business Day preceding the date set for the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.  After commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting (or commencement of an
adjourned DIL Creditors’ Meeting in case of adjournment), no Election Letters shall be accepted
by the Monitor.

38.  The following shailt govern the submission of Election Letters and any deficiencies in
respect of the form or substance of Election Letters filed with the Monitor:

(a) if the Election Letter is not dated in the space provided, it shall be deemed to be
dated on the date it is received by the Monitor;
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(b) an Election Letter submitted by a DIL Eligible Affected Creditor that bears or is
deemed to bear an earlier date than a later Election Letter submitted by such DIL.
Eligible Affected Creditor shall be discarded;

(c) if more than one valid Election Letter for the same DIL Eligible Affected Creditor
and bearing or deemed to bear the same date are received by the Monitor with
conflicting instructions, such Election Letters shall not be.counted for the
purposes of the vote; and

(d) the Monitor in consultation with DIL is hereby authorized to use reasonable
discretion as to the adequacy of compliance with respect to the manner in which
any Election Letter is completed and executed, and may waive strict compliance
with the requirements in connection with the deadlines imposed in connection
therewith.

HEARING FOR SANCTION OF THE PLAN

38. If the Amended DIL Plan achieves the Required Majority, DIL shall seek Court approvai
of the Amended DIL Plan at a motion for the Sanction Order, which motion date shail be set
once the Meeting of creditors of all of the Applicants have been compieted (the “Sanction
Hearing”).

40. Any party who wishes to oppose the motion for final sanctioning of the Amended DIL
Plan shall serve upon the lawyers for both the Applicants and the Monitor, and upon all other
parties on the service list attached to this Order, by not later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) (Calgary
time) one week before the Sanction Hearing, a copy of the materials to be used to oppose the
motion for approval of the Amended DIL Plan, setting out the basis for such opposition.

GENERAL

41.  The Monitor in consultation with DIL may, in its discretion, generally or in individual
circumstances, waive in writing the time fimits imposed on any DIL Eligible Affected Creditor
under this DIL Meeting Order if the Monitor, in consultation with DIL deems it advisable to do so,
without prejudice to the requirement that all other DIL Eligible Affected Creditors must comply
with this DIL Meeting Order.

42, If any deadline set out in this DIL Meeting Order falls on a day other than a Business
Day, the deadline shall be extended to the next Business Day,
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43. Notwithstanding the terms of this DIL Meeting Order, DIL or the Monitor may apply to
this Court from time to time for such further orders as it considers necessary or desirable to
amend, supplement or replace this DIL Meeting Order.

EFFECT, RECOGNITION AND ASSISTANCE OF OTHER COURTS

44.  This DIL Meeting Order and any other Order in this proceeding shall have full force and -
effect in all provinces and territories in Canada and abroad and as against ail persons against
whom it may otherwise be enforceable.

45. The Court hereby requests the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal, regulatory or
administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States, to give effect to this
DIL Meeting Order and to assist the Applicants, the Monitor and their respective agents in
carrying out the terms of this DIL Meeting Order. All courts, tribunals, regulatory and
administrative bodies are hereby respectfully requested to make such orders and to provide
such assistance to the Applicants and to the Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be
necessary or desirable to give effect to this DIL Meeting Qrder, or to assist the Applicants and
the Monitor and their respective agents in carrying oyt th¥ terms of this DIL Meeting Order.

Justic# of the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta

)43 |
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SCHEDULE “1” — NOTICE OF DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955
GOURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
OF ALBERTA

IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’
CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE
o ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT,
ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOUSING AND
SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND
SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN
CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

DOCUMENT NOTICE OF DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Notice are as defined in the DIL

Meeting Order dated November 30, 2015 and the Amended DIL Plan dated
2015.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. The Plan of Compromise and Arrangement of DIL, dated , 2015 (as may
be amended from time to time, the “Amended DIL Plan”) was filed pursuant to the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (the “CCAA™ with the Alberta Court of Queen’s
Bench (the “Court”) on December ___, 2015, The Amended DIL Plan contemplates the
compromise of the rights and claims of DIL’s Affected Creditors (as defined in the
Amended DIL Plan).

2. Important documents which you should review in consideration of the Amended DIL Plan
are enclosed with this Notice and include the Amended DIL Plan, the DIL Meeting Order,
the Monitor's Repori, the form of Proxy, the Election Letter, the Representative Action

Z
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Letter, and the Notice of Opting Out (the “Information Package”) and are also available
from the website of the Monitor, Deloitte Restructuring Inc (the “Monitor”)
(www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca). If you are unable to access this website, you may obtain
a copy of the Information Package by contacting the Monitor by email at
vanallen @deloitte.ca or by telephone at 403-298-5955. Details of the Amended DIL
Plan and the distributions to be made thereunder to creditors are more fully described in
the Monitor's Report enclosed in the Information Package. You should review the
Information Package carefully.

DIL may vary, modify, amend, or supplement the Amended DIL Plan in accordance with
the provisions described in the Amended DIL Plan and the DIL Meeting Order.

The Order of the Court dated November 30, 2015 (the “DIL Meeting Order”) established
the procedures for DIL to call, hold and conduct a meeting of its creditors (the “DIL
Creditors’ Meeting) to consider and vote on the Amended DIL Plan. For the purpose of
considering and voting on the Amended DIL Plan, and receiving distributions thereunder,
the Affected Claims of the DIL Affected Creditors shall be grouped into a single class
under the Amended DIL Plan.

The DIL Creditors’ Meeting will be held at the following date, time and locations:

Date: January 23, 2016
Time: 10:00 am
Location: 243209 Garden Road NE, Calgary, Alberta

Only those creditors with an Eligible Affected Claim, as defined under the Amended DIL
Plan (or their respective proxyholders), DIL directors, the Monitor, the Appicants’ legal
counsel, the Monitor’s legal counsel, members of the Creditors’ Commitees, and the
legal counsel for the Creditors’ Committees will be eligible to attend the DIL Creditors’
Meeting and vote on the Amended DIL Plan. Holders of an Unaffected Claim (as
defined in the Amended DIL Plan) will not be entitled to attend and vote at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting.

Any Eligible Affected Creditor who is unable to attend the DIL Creditors’ Meeting may
vote by Proxy. Further, any Eligible Affected Creditor who is not an individual may only
attend and vote at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting if a proxyholder has been appointed to act
on its behalf at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting.

14
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Proxies, once duly completed, dated and signed, must be sent by email to the Monitor,
or if cannot be sent by email, delivered to the Monitor at the address of the Monitor as
set out on the Proxy form. Proxies must be received by the Monitor by no later than 5:00
p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business Day preceding the date set for the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Proxies may also be delivered by hand
to the Chair prior to the commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting. After
commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, no Proxies can be accepted by the
Monitor.

Any Eligible Affected Creditor who is unable to attend the DIL Creditors’ Meeting may
also vote by Election Letter.

Election Letters, once duly completed, dated and signed, must be sent by email to the
Monitor, or if cannot be sent by email, delivered to the Monitor at the address of the
Monitor as set out on the Election Letter form. Election Letters must be received by the
Monitor by no later than 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business Day preceding the
date set for the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

If the Amended DIL Plan achieves the Required Majority (as defined below) at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting, DIL shall seek approval of the Amended DIL Plan by the Court at an
application for the Sanction Order, which application shall be set after the creditors’
- meeting of ail the Applicants have been completed (the “Sanction Hearing”). Any person
wishing to oppose the application for the Sanction Order must serve upon the lawyers
for both DIL and the Monitor as well as those parties listed on the service list, which was
attached to the DIL Meeting Order, as posted on the Monitor's website, by not later than
12:00 p.m. (noon) (Calgary time) one week before the Sanction Hearing, a copy of the
materials to be used to oppose the motion for approval of the Amended DIL Plan, setting
out the basis for such opposition.

In order for the Amended DIL Plan to become effective:

(a) the Amended DIL Plan must be approved at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting by the
affirmative vote of a majority in number, representing not less than two-thirds in
value of the voting claims of Eligible Affected Creditors, in person, by Proxy, or
by Election Letter (this constituting the “Required Majority”);

(b) the Amended DIL Plan must be sanctioned by the Court; and

146
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the conditions to the implementation of the Amended DIL Plan as set out in the
Amended DIL Plan must be satisfied or waived.



17

SCHEDULE “2” — FORM OF PROXY

COURT FILE NUMBER’ 1501-00955
COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
DOCUMENT PROXY
APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS
COMMUNITY HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND
LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
{, , a creditor in the above matter, hereby
appoint , {person you want to appoint} to

be my proxyholder in the above matter, except as to the receipt of any distributions pursuant to

the Amended DIL Plan {(with or without) power to appoint another proxyholder in his or her

place.

The above named proxyholder shall attend on behalf of and act for me at the DIL Creditors’
Meeting to be held in connection with the Amended DIL Plan and at any and alf adjournments,
postponements or other rescheduling of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, and vote the amount of my

Claim(s) as follows:

1. (mark one only):

|___-| Vote FOR approval of the resolution to accept the Amended DIL Plan; or

D Vote AGAINST approval of the resolution to accept the Amended DIL Plan.

IF A BOX IS NOT MARKED AS A VOTE FOR OR AGAINST APPROVAL OF THE
PLAN, THEN THE PROXYHOLDER SHALL VOTE AT HIS/HER DISCRETION.

and

2. Vote at histher discretion and otherwise act for and on behalf of me with respect
to any amendments or variations to the matters identified in the notice of the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting and in the Amended DIL Plan, and with respect to other matters that
may propetly come before the DIL Creditors’ Meeting.

e



18

THIS PROXY, ONCE DULY COMPLETED, DATED AND SIGNED, MUST BE SENT TO THE
MONITOR BY EMAIL, MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR COURIER, AND RECEIVED
BY THE MONITOR BY NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. (CALGARY TIME) ON JANUARY 22,
2016 OR SUCH LATER DATE AS MAY BE THE LAST BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE
DATE THE DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING HAS BEEN ADJOURNED TO, OR DELIVERED BY
HAND TO THE CHAIR OF THE DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING PRIOR THE COMMENCEMENT
OF THE DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING. AFTER COMMENCEMENT OF THE DIL CREDITORS'
MEETING (OR ANY ADJOURNMENT THEREOF), NO PROXIES CAN BE ACCEPTED BY
THE MONITOR.

Dated at this day of

20___,

Withess Individual Creditor

Witness Name of Corporate Creditor

Name and Title of Signing Officer
Return to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor
700 Bankers Court, 850 — 2" Street SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0R8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681
Email: CalgaryRestructuring@deloitte.ca

/49



19

Schedule “3” — Election Letter

COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955

COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

DOCUMENT | ELECTION LETTER

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA -

BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS
COMMUNITY HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND
LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA -
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
THIS ELECTION LETTER SHALL BE VOTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS
STATED BELOW EVEN THOUGH THE PLAN PRESENTED BY DIL MAY BE MODIFIED OR
AMENDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE AMENDED DIL PLAN BEFORE
OR AT THE DIL CREDITORS’ MEETING, OR AFTER THE DIL CREDITORS' MEETING WITH

THE APPROVAL OF THE COURT.

Voting
-, a creditor {or | , representative of
a creditor), in the above matter for the sum of
$ hereby request the Monitor to record my vote respecting the
Amended DIL Plan as made on the , 2015 as follows:

(mark one only):
I—_—l Vote FOR approval of the resolution to accept the Amended DIL Plan; or
D Vote AGAINST approval of the resolution to accept the Amended DIL Plan.

IF ABOX IS NOT MARKED AS A VOTE FOR OR AGAINST APPROVAL OF THE
AMENDED DIl PLAN, YOUR VOTE SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE A VOTE FOR
APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED DIL PLAN.

/50



Dated at this’

20 .

day of

, 201

Withess

Witness

Return to:

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., Monitor

700 Bankers Court, 850 ~ 2" Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 0R8

Phone: (403) 267-1777 Fax: (403) 718-3681
Email: CalgaryRestructuring @deloitte.ca

Individual Creditor

Name of Corporate Creditor

Name and Title of Signing Officer

/5]
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SCHEDULE “4” - FORM OF NEWSPAPER NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.

The Plan of Compromise and Arrangement of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta —
British Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL*), dated » 2015 (as may be
amended from time to time, the “Amended DIL Plan”) was filed pursuant to the
Companies’ Credjtors Arrangement Act (the “CCAA”) with the Alberta Court of Queen’s
Bench (the “Court’) on December ___, 2015. The Amended DIL Plan contemplates the
compromise of the rights and claims of DIL’s Affected Creditors (as defined in the
Amended DIL Plan).

Important documents which you should review in consideration of the Amended DiL Plan
include the Amended DIL Plan, the DIL Meeting Order, the Monitor's Report, the form of
Proxy, the Election Letter, the Representative Action Letter, and the Notice of Opting Out
(the “Information Package”). The Information Package is available on the website of the
Monitor, Deloitte Restructuring Inc. (the “Monitor”) at www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca. If
you are unable to access this website, you may obtain a copy of the Information
Package by contacting the Monitor by email at vanallen @deloitte.ca or by telephone at
403-298-5955. .

DIL may vary, modify, amend, or supplement the Amended DIL Plan in accordance with
the provisions described in the Amended DIL Plan and the DIL Meeting Order.

The Order of the Court dated November 30, 2015 (the “DIL Meeting Order”) established
the procedures for DIL to call, hold and conduct a meeting of its creditors (the "DIL
Creditors’ Meeting) to consider and vote on the Amended DIL Plan. For the purpose of
considering and voting on the Amended DIL Plan, and receiving distributions thereunder,
the Affected Claims of the DIL Affected Creditors shall be grouped into a single class
under the Amended DIL Plan.

The DIL Creditors’ Meeting will be held at the following date, time and location:

Date: January 23, 2016
Time: 10:00 am
Location: 243209 Garden Road, Calgary, Alberta

Only those creditors with an Eligible Affected Claim, as defined under the Amended DIL
Plan (or their respective proxyholders), DIL directors, the Monitor, the Applicants’ legal
counsel, the Monitor's legal counsel, members of the Creditors’ Committees, and the
legal counsel for the Creditors” Committees will be eligible to attend the DIL Creditors’
Meeting and vote on the Amended DIL Plan. Holders of an Unaffected Claim (as
defined in the Amended DIL Plan) will not be entitied to attend and vote at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting.

Any Eligible Affected Creditor who is unable to attend the DIL Creditors’ Meeting may
vote by Proxy. Further, any Eligible Affected Creditor who is not an individual may only
attend and vote at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting if a proxyholder has been appointed to act
on its behalf at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting.

/5 A
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Proxies, once duly completed, dated and signed, must be sent by email to the Monitor,
or if cannot be sent by email, delivered to the Monitor at the address of the Monitor as
set out on the Proxy form. Proxies must be received by the Monitor by no later than 5:00
p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business Day preceding the date set for the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Proxies may also be delivered by hand
to the Chair prior to the commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting. After
commencement of the DIL Creditors’ Meeting, no Proxies can be accepted by the
Monitor. :

Any Eligible Affected Creditor who is unable to attend the DIL Creditors’ Mesting may
also vote by Election Letter.

Election Letters, once duly completed, dated and signed, must be sent by email to the
Monitor, or if cannot be sent by email, delivered to the Monitor at the address of the
Monitor as set out on the Election Letter form. Election Letters must be received by the
Monitor by no later than 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on the last Business Day preceding the
date set for the DIL Creditors’ Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

If the Amended DIL Plan achieves the Required Majority (as defined below) at the DIL
Creditors’ Meeting, DIL shall seek approval of the Amended DIL Plan by the Court at an
application for the Sanction Order, which application shall be heard on a date to be
scheduled (the “Sanction Hearing”). Any person wishing to oppose the application for
the Sanction Order must serve upon the lawyers for both DIL and the Monitor as well as
those parties listed on the service list, which was attached to DIL Meeting Order, as
posted on the Monitor's website, by not later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) (Calgary time) one
week before the Sanction Hearing, a copy of the materials to be used to oppose the
motion for approval of the Amended DIL Plan, setting out the basis for such opposition.

In order for the Amended DIL Plan to become effective:

(a) the Amended DIL Plan must be approved at the DIL Creditors’ Meeting by the
affirmative vote of a majority in number, representing not less than two-thirds in
value of the voting claims of Eligible Affected Creditors, in person, by Proxy, or
by Election Letter (this constituting the “Required Majority™);

(b) the Amended DIL Plan must be sanctioned by the Court; and

© the conditions to the implementation of the Amended DIL Plan as set out in the
Amended DIL Plan must be satisfied or waived.

Dated at Calgary, Alberta on November ___. 2015.

/53
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SCHEDULE “5” — FORM OF RESOLUTION

WHEREAS Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Ltd,
("DIL”) has made an application pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
{(“CCAA") to reorganize its affairs for the benefit of its creditors;

AND WHEREAS DIL filed a plan of arrangement under the CCAA with respect to its creditors on
December , 2015 (the “Amended DIL Plan”);

AND WHEREAS the creditors of DIL (the “DIL Creditors”) have considered the Amended DIL
Plan and such other material and information as they, in their individual discretion, feel is
necessary and appropriate to consider;

AND WHEREAS the DIL Creditors understand that should the Amended DIL Plan be
sanctioned by the Court of Queen’s Bench, it will be binding upon ail of the DIL Creditors,
subject to the conditions precedent and other terms and conditions set out more fully in the
Amended DIL Plan;

AND WHEREAS the DIL Creditors wish to agree to the proposed compromises and
arrangements set out in the Amended DIL Plan;

THE DIL CREDITORS RESOLVE THAT:

1. The Amended DIL Plan be and hereby is agreed to and accepted by the DIL
Creditors in accordance with its terms.

2. The Court of Queen'’s Bench of Alberta be requested to sanction the Amended
DiL Plan.

=24
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COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955
COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
OF ALBERTA
IN BANKRUPTCY AND
INSOLVENCY
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
IN THE MATTER OF THE
COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C.
1985, c¢. C-36, as amended
APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS
COMMUNITY HOUSING AND
SERVICES, ENCHARIS
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT
SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN
CHURCH - CANADA, THE
ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
DOCUMENT SERVICE LIST FOR DIL MEETING
ORDER
SERVICE RECIPIENT EMAIL ADDRESS PHONE/FAX RECIPIENT STATUS
Deloitte Restructuring Inc. | jkeeble@deloitte.ca .| PH: 403-267-1777 Monitor
FX: 403-718-3681
Attn: Jeff Keeble
700-850-2" Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 3K4
Gowling LaFleur Jeffrey.oliver@gowlings.com PH: 403-298-1000 Counsel to Monitor
Henderson LLP FX: 403-263-9193
Atin: Jeffrey Oliver
1600-421-7" Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K9
LCC Worker Benefits LCCBenefits@ellement.ca PH: 1-800-588-4226 Creditor
{pension pian)
NOTE - NOT
Janice Otto SERVED AS PER
503, 1780 Wellington Ave REQUEST RECEIVED
Winnipeg, MB R3H 1B3 FROM LCC WORKER
BENEFITS JULY 9,
2015
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McMillan Binch

Attn: Adam Maerov
1700-421-7 Ave SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K9

adam.maerov@mcmillan.ca

PH: 403-215-2752
FX: 403-531-4720

Counsel for
Lutheran Church -
Canada

Concentra Trust

Attn: Dean Hutchison
1600-520-3" Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR3

dhutchison@milt.com

PH: 403-693-4305
FX: 403-508-4349

Counsei for
Concentra Trust
which is a secured
creditor

Alberta Health Services

fill.curtis@albertaheaithservices.ca;

Counsel for Alberta
Health Services who

Attn: Jill Curtis is a contingent

10301 Southport Road SW creditor

Calgary, AB T2W 157

CEF Depositors Creditors of the
District

Notice of Monitor's
website address mailed by
regular mail to last known
address January 26, 2015
per Affidavit of Mailing
filed February 4, 2015

CEF Creditors Committee

simardc@bennettijones.com

PH: 403-298-4485

Counsel for CEF

FX: 403-265-7219 Creditors’

Attn: Christopher Simard Committee
Bennett Jones
4500-855-2 Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K7
Office of the Public Janice.elmquist@gov.ab.ca PH: 403-297-6541 Representative of
Trustee FX: 403-297-2823 Minor CEF

depositors

Attn: Janice Eimquist
Suite 900

444-7 Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P OX8

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP

Attn: Robyn Gurofsky
1900-520-3" Ave SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR3

reurofsky@blg.com

PH: 403-232-9774
FX: 403-266-1395

Counsel for Vic
Fisher and Elfie
Fisher

)




DIL Depositors

Notice of Monitor's
website address mailed by
regular mail to last known
address January 26, 2015
per Affidavit of Mailing
filed February 4, 2015

Account holders in
DIL

DIL Creditors Committee

Attn: Doug Nishimura
Field LLP

400-604-1 Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 1M7

dnishimura@fieldlaw.com

PH: 403-260-8500
FX: 403-264-7084

Counsel for DIL
Creditors’
Committee

Mcleod Law LLP

Attn: Brett Turnquist
300-14505 Bannister Road
SE,

Calgary, ABT2X 3J3

bturnquist@mcleod-law.com

PH: 403-873-3728
FX: 403-271-1769

Counsel for the
Estate of Eileen
Burton (former
Village resident)

Alberta Securities
Commission

Attn: Vi Pickering/Edward
Asare-Quansah
600-250-5" Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P OR4

Edward.Asare-Quansah@asc.ca:

Vi.Pickering@asc.ca

PH: 403-355-3889
FX: 403-297-2210

Attn: Terry Czechowskyj
Miles Davison LLP
1600-205-5™ Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 2V7

fczech@milesdavison.com

PH: 403-298-0326
FX: 403-263-6840

Counsel for
appreximately 60
depositors

Attn: Errin Poyner
Sugden, McFee & Roos LLP
700-375 Water Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 5C6
and

Attn: Kibben Jackson
Fasken Martineau
2900-550 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BCV6C DA3

epoyner@smrlaw.ca

kjackson@fasken.com

Ms. Poyner:
PH: 604-687-7700
FX: 604-687-5596

Mr. Jackson;
PH: 804-631-4786
FX: 604-632-4786

Counsel for group of
Depositors

Encon Group Inc.

¢/0 Marsh Canada Limited
Attn: Michael Johnson
10180-101 Street NW,

Michael.johnsgon@marsh.com

PH: 780-517-4852
FX: 780-429-1422

D&O Insurer for the
District and DIL

Suite 680

> Xeu




Edmonton, AB T5J 354

Northbridge General
insurance Corporation

¢/o Westland Insurance
Brokers Ltd.

Attn: Ross Bucsis
24-8180 Macleod Trail SE
Calgary, AB T2H 2B8

rbucsis@westlandinsurance.ca

PH: 403-640-0264
{x107)
FX: 1-866-422-7990

D&O Insurer for
ECHS and £MSS

/S8
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COURT FILE NUMBER

COURT
JUDICIAL CENTRE

1501-00955

COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CALGARY

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, RS.C. 1985, ¢ C-36, AS

. AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE
OR. ARRANGEMENT OF LUTHERAN CHURCH -
CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOUSING AND
SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT
SERVICES, AND , LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

DOCUMENT: CONSENT ORDIR

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE BENNETT JONES LLP

AND CONTACT Barristers and Solicitors

INFORMATION OF 4500, 855 - 2™ Street S.W.

PARTY FILING THIS Calgary, Alberta T2P 4K7

DOCUMENT: Attention: Chris Simard
Telephone No.: (403) 298-4485
Facsimile No.: (403) 265-7219
Our File: 744141

DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS January 4, 2016

PRONOUNCED:

LOCATION OF HEARING OR TRIAL:

NAME OF MASTER/JUDGE
WHO MADE THIS ORDER:

Calgary
Madam Justice K. M. Homer

UPON the Application of the District Creditors’ Committee and the DIL Creditors'
Committee (the "Applicants™); AND UPON considering the Tenth Report of Deloitte
Restructuring Inc., the Court-appointed Monitor of the Applicants (fhe "Monitor"), and the

WSLEGALM074414\00001112899631v1
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pleadings and proceedings filed in this action; AND UPON noting the consent of counsel for the
parties set out herein; 1T IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECLARED THAT:

1.

Service of notice of this application and supporting materials is hereby declared to be
good and sufficient, and no other person is required to have been served with notice of

this application, and time for service of this application is abridged to that actually given,

The Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet (the "Settlement”) attached
hereto as Schedule "A" is hereby approved and District and DIL are hereby authorized to
take such additional steps and execute such additional documents as may be necessary or

desirable for the completion of the Settlement,

The Seitlement is valid and binding on Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta — British
Columbia District ("District") and Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta — British
Columbia District Investments Ltd. ("DIL") and all parties claiming by, through or under
District or DIL, for all purposes and regardless of whether or not Plans of Compromise
and Arrangement respecting District and DIL are sanctioned by this Honcurable Court in

these proceedings, or not.

Notwithstanding:
The pendency of these proceedings;

Any applications for a bankruptey order now or hereafter issued pursuant to the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) in respect of the Applicants and any
bankruptcy order issued pursuant to any such applications; and

Any assignment in bankruptey made in respect of the Applicants

the Settlement shall be binding on any trustee in bankruptcy that may be appointed in
respect of the Debtor and shall not be void or voidable by creditors of District or DIL, nor
shall it constitute nor be deemed to be a settlement, fraudulent preference, assignment,
fraudulent conveyance, transfer at undervalue, or other reviewable transaction under the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act

(Canada) or any other applicable federal or provincial legislation, nor shall it constitute
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oppressive or unfairly prejudicial conduct pursvant to any applicable federal or provinicial
legislation.

5 Distriet, DIL, the Monitor and any other interested party, shall be at liberty to apply for
further advice, assistance and directions as may be necessary In order to give full force
and effect fo the terms of this Order and to assist and aid the parties in closing the
Settlement,

G. This Order must be served only upon those intetested parties attending or yepresented at
the within application and service may be effected by facsimile, electrpnic matl, persorial
delivery or courier, Service is deemed to be-effected the next business day following the

transinission ov delivery of such documents.
7 Service of this Order on any party not attending this-application is hereby dispensed with.

8 There shall be no costs of this application,

YC.QB.A:
BENNETT JONES LLP FIELD LAW LLY
AL T
Per: Pér
Chris Simard v Doug Nishimura

Salicitors for the District Creditors' Sollcitors for the DIL Creditors' Commitice
Comimittee .

NZIE LY.P

GOWLING LAYLEUR HENDERSON LLP BISHOP

Par: Per;

Jeff Oliver Frans Tamau%wﬁ"_
Solicitors for Deloftte Restructuring liic., Sollcitors for the Debtor Contpanies

the Court-appointed Monltor
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oppressive or unfairly prejudicial conduct pursuant to any applicable federal or provineial
legislation,

5. Distriet, DIL, the Monitor and any other interested party, shall be at liberty to apply for
further advice, assistance and ditections as may be tiecessary in order 1o give full force
and effect fo the tetms of this Order and fo assist and aid the parties in closing the
Settiement, ‘

6. This Order must be.served only upon those interested parties attending or represented at
the within application and seivice may be effected by facsimile, electronic-mail, personal
delivery or courier. Service is deemed to be effected the next business day following the

transmission or delivery of such documents.
7. Service of this Order on any party not attending this application is hereby dispensed with,

8. Thete shall be no costs of this application.

J -C_- Q -B aAa
BENNETT JONES LLY FIELD LAWLLP
Per; Per:
Chris Simard - Doug Nishimura ‘
Solicitors forthe Distiict Creditors' Solicitors for the DIL Creditors' Committee
Cotmmiitee

GOWLING LAFLEUR HENDERSON LLP BISHOP? & MCKENZIE LLP

Per: / /, /] Per

Jeff Olidelt” /o Prancis Taman
Solicitors for Deloille Restructuring Ine., Solicitors for the Debtor Companies.
the Court-appointed Monitor
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SCHEDULE "A"

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE TERM SHEET

BETWEEN:

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA —
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

(hereinafter referred to as "District")
-and -

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA —
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

(hereinafter referred to as "DIL")

(District and DIL are collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Parties")

RECITALS:

1. Encharis Community Housing and Services Inc, ("ECHS"} is the registered owner of the

lands legally described as:

Plan 9712096, Block 1 excepting thereout Plan 0311251

Pian 9712096, Block 2

Condominium Plan 9812469, Units 3, 5, 7, 9, 11, 12, 1721, 23,28 — 30, 33 and
35 :

Condominium Plan 0011410, Units 41, 43, 47 — 52, 54 — 56 and 58
Condominium Plan 0013287, Units 64, 68 — 70, 74, 77 — 80

Condominium Plan 0111629, Units 88, 89, 92, 99, 100, 102 and 103
Condominium Plan 01113520, Units 109, 121, 122, 126, 127, 135 and 143
Condominium Plan 0310076, Units 163 and 183

in each case excepting thereout all mines and minerals
AND
Plan 0311251
Block 4
Lot1l
Excepting thereout all mines and minerals
(collectively, the "PoP Property™).
2, Encharis Comamunity Housing and Services Inc. ("ECHS") was, until sometime after

May 19, 2015, the registered owner of the lands legally described as:
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9.

Meridian 4, Range 28, Township 24, Section 2

Portion of South West Quarter Lying South of Right of Way RY331
Containing 40.9 Hectares (101 Acres) More or Less

Excepting thereout all mines and minerals

(the "Chestermere Property").

3. District is the registered owner of the land legally described as:

Plan 8010862

Block 10

Excepting thereout all mines and minerals
Area: 1.96 hectares (4.85 acres) more or less

(the "Strathmore Property").

4, The "PoP Property" and the "Chestermere Property" are hereinafter referred to
collectively as the "PoP and Chestermere Property".

5. The following encumbrances, among others, were or are registered against some or all of

the POP and Chestermere Property:

(8)  $45,000,000 mortgage in favour of District registered on January 10, 2006 as
Instrument No. 061 231 890;

(b)  Caveat regarding assignment of rents and leases in favour of District registered on
June 10, 2006 as Instrument No. 061 231 891;

(collectively, the encumbrances in subparagraphs (a) and (b) shall be referred fo as the
"District ECHS Encumbrances");

()  $4,000,000 mortgage in favour of Concentra Trust (as Trustee for DIL) registered
on December 7, 2011 at Instrument No. 111 319 853;

(d  Caveat regarding assignment of rents and leases in favour of Concentra Trust (as
Trustee for DIL) registered on December 7, 2011 as Instrument No. 111 319 854;

(e $3,950,000 mortgage in favour of Concentra Trust (as Trustee for DIL) registered
on December 7, 2011 at Instrument No. 111 319 855; and
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(£ Caveat regarding assignment of rents and leases in favour of Concenfra Trust (as
Trustee for DIL) registered on December 7, 2011 as Instrument No. 111 319 856;

(collectively, the encumbrances in subparagraphs (c) through (f) shall be referred to as
the "DIL ECHS Encumbrances" and collectively, the encumbrances in subparagraphs (a)
through (f) shall be referred to as the "ECHS Encumbrances").

6. The following encumbrances, among others, are registered against the Strathmore
Property:
(@)  Caveat regarding assignment of rents and leases in favour of District registered on
September 15, 2007 as Instrument No. 071 463 804; and
(b)  $5,891,322 mortgage in favour of Concentra Trust (as Trustee for DIL) registered
on September 13, 2015 at Instrument No. 151 009 358;
{collectively, the "DIL Strathmore Encumbrances”).
7. There exist disputes or potential disputes as between District and DIL with respect to:
(a) the relative priority of the District ECHS Encumbrances and the DIL ECHS
Encumbrances;
(b)  the validity of the DIL Strathmore Encumbrances; and
(c)  the relative priority of the District v. DIL Claims, as against the claims of
individual investors in DIL
(collectively, the "Disputes™).
8. On January 23, 2015, the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta (the "Court"} granted an

Initial Order pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, RSC 1985, ¢. C-36 (the
. "CCAA") with respect to District, DIL, ECHS and Encharis Management and Support Services
("EMSS"), as applicants (the "CCAA Proceedings").

9.

On February 20, 2015, the Court in the CCAA proceedings granted an Order establishing

a Claims Procedure Order for the identification and determination of all claims against the
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4.

applicants in the CCAA Proceedings, including District, DIL and ECHS {the "Claims
Procedure").

10.

On May 19, 2015, the Court in the CCAA proceedings granted an Order authorizing the

sale of the Chestermere Propeity (the "Chestermere Vesting Order"). Thereafter, the

Chestermere Property was sold. Pursuant to the Chestermere Vesting Order, among other things:

11

(a)  the net proceeds of the sale of the Chestermere Property (the "Net Proceéds“) are
being held in trust by legal counsel to ECHS; and

(b) all claims againsf ECHS, including the ECHS Encumbrances, attach to the Net

Proceeds in place of the Chestermere Lands.

Pursuant to the Claims Procedure, District and DIL filed the following proofs of claim:

District Claim Against DIT,

(a)  an unsecured claim in the amount of $863,022.24 with respect to management
fees (the "Distriet v, DIL Claim™)

District Claim Against ECHS

(@  secured and unsecured claims of District in the amount of §82,095,702.57 related
to various loans, a portion of which were secured by the District ECHS
Encumbrances {the "District v. ECHS Claim");

DIL Claim Against Disfrict

(8  secured and unsecured claims by DIL related to various loans to District, which
were claimed to be secured by the DIL Strathmore Encumbrance (along with any

corresponding deficiency) (the "DIL v. District Claim");

DIL Claim Against ECHS

two claims in the amounts of $3,981,265.70 and $3,740,739.29 related to various loans
to District, which were secured by the DIL ECHS Encumbrances (the "DIL v. ECHS
Claim™); '
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-5.
(collectively, the District v, DIL Claim, District v. ECHS Claim, DIL v. District Claim
and the DIL v. ECHS Claim shall be referred to hereinafter as the "Proofs of Claim"),

12.  Deloitte Restructuring Inc., the Court-appointed Monitor in the CCAA proceedings (the

"Monitor") made the following determinations with respect to the Proofs of Claim:

District v. DIL Claim

(a)  the District v. DIL Claim was disallowed but the dispute period was extended
until further notice;

District v. ECHS Claim

(8  $26,440,798.13 of the District v. ECHS claim was allowed as an unsecured claim
and $55,654,904.44 of the District v. ECHS claim was allowed as secured claim,
secured by the District ECHS Encumbrances;

DIL v. District Claim

(@)  the DIL v. District Claim was disallowed as a secured claim but allowed as an

unsecured claim, and the dispute period was extended until further notice;
DIL v. ECHS Claims

(a) the DIL v. ECHS Claim was allowed as a secured claim, secured by the DIL
ECHS Encumbrances;

(collectively, the "Allowed Claims, Revisions and Disallowances™).

13.  OnFebruary 20, 2015, the Court in the CCAA proceedings granted an Order establishing
a creditors’ committee representing the interests of investors of District (the "District Creditors'
Committee™) and a creditors' committee representing the interests of investors of DIL (the "DIL
Creditors’ Committee™). Among other things, the District Creditors' Committee and the DIL
Creditors' Committee have been charged with responsibility to attempt to negotiate a settlement
of the Disputes. The District Creditors' Committee and the DIL Creditors' Committee have
negotiated the terms of settlement set out herein. Among other things, they considered various

appraisals of the PoP and Chestermere Property and the Strathmore Property in the course of the
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negotiations, and they acknowledge that no adjustments will be made to the settlement terms set

out herein, based on any changes in value to the PoP and Chestermere Property and the

Strathmore Property.

14, The parties to this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet wish fo settle

the Disputes on the terms and conditions set out herein.
AGREEMENT:

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

L. The recitals set out above are accurate and form part of this Settlement Agreement and
Mutual Release Term Sheet.

2. In relation to the Disputes regarding the ECHS Encumbrances, District shall pay to DIL
the all-inclusive sum of $4,114,006 (the "PoP Chesiermere Settlement Amount") as soon

as reasonably practicable after the earlier of:

(a)  the Plan fmplementation Date of the Plans filed or to be filed in the CCAA
Proceedings with respect to ECHS, District and DIL (or, if the Plan
Implementation Dates for those Plans are not the same date, the latest of the three

Plan Implementation Dates); or

(b)  the date on which District receives, directly or indirectly, a transfer of title to the

PoP Property; or
(¢)  the date on which District receives the proceeds of sale of the PoP Property.

3. In relation to the Disputes regarding the Strathmore Encumbrances, District shall pay to
DIL 50% of the net proceeds of sale of the Strathmore Property (the "Strathmore
Settlement Amount") as soon as reasonably practicable after the date on which District
receives the net proceeds of sale of the Strathmore Property. The parties agree and
acknowledge that the sale of the Strathmore Property is squect-to the approval of the
District Creditors' Committee, the DIL Creditors’ Committee and the Court.
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4. In consideration of the payment of the PoP Chestermere Settlement Amount and the
Strathmore Setflement Amount, and the other covenants set out herein, the receipt and
sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto forever
discharge each other from any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands,
damages, costs and expenses whatsoever at law or in equity, that they had, now have, or
may have in the future, by reason of or arising out of any cause, matter or thing
whatsoever done or omitted to be done, occurring or existing up to and inclusive of the

date of these presents, with respect to the Disputes.

5. Nothwithstanding paragraph 4 hereof, the following claims between the Parties are not
hereby released:

(a)  with respect to the District v. ECHS Claim, any and all claims by District against
ECHS that are not paid by ECHS, through & direct or indirect transfer of title of
the PoP Property, or the proceeds thereof, or otherwise (the "District v. ECHS

Deficiency Claim"); and

(b)  with respect to the DIL v. ECHS Claims, any and all claims by DIL against ECHS
that are not paid by District pursuant to the settlement herein (the "DIL v, ECHS

Deficiency Claim"}; and

for clarity, the Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the District v. ECHS Deficiency
Claim and the DIL v, ECHS Deficiency Claim are not being released hereby so that those
claims can be pursued (including as against any third parties and joint obligors who may
be fully or partially liable for such claims): (x) in the Representative Action(s) (as defined
in the Plans of Compromise and Arrangement with respect to District and DIL in the
CCAA Proceedings, hereinafter the "District and DIL Plans"); or (y) in the event that
such CCAA plans are not approved, outside of the Representative Action(s).

6. For clarity, the following claims are fully and finally released hereby:
(@)  the District v. DIL Claim (as against DIL); and

(b)  all that portion of the DIL v. District Claim (as against District), including all of
DIL's claims against District relating to the Strathmore Property, the DIL
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Strathmore Encumbrances and any and all loans secured thereby, that is not paid

by District pursuant to the settlement herein (the "DIL v. District Strathmore

Deficiency Claim");

for clarity, the Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the District v. DIL Claim and
the DIL v. District Strathmore Deficiency Claim are being released hereby only as
against DIL and District, respectively, so that those claims can be pursued as against any
third parties and joint obligors who may be fully or partiaily liable for such claims: (x) in
the Representative Action(s) (as defined in the Plans of Compromise and Arrangement
with respect to District and DIL in the CCAA Proceedings, hereinafter the "District and
DIL Plans"); or (¥) in the event that such CCAA plans are not approved, outside of the

Representative Action(s).

The Proofs of Claim and the Allowed Claims, Revisions and Disallowances shall be
deemed to be fully and finally determined pursuant to the Claims Procedure, as set out

herein,

Each Party agrees thét the terms of this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term
Sheet are accepted voluntarily and not influenced by any representations of any kind
made by any of the parties, except such representations as are outlined in this Settlement
Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet. This Settlement Agreement and Mutual
Release Term Sheet is being entered to terminate confroversy and no admissions of

liability are made by any party.
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11.

12.

-9.
This Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet is without prejudice to all of
the claims, defences, issues, arguments and positions, past, present or future, of the
parties. For greater clarity, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, this
Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet is entirely independent of the
District and DIL Plans and, notwithstanding any approval of this Settlement Agreement
and Mutual Release Term Sheet by the Court, this Settlement Agreement and Mutual
Release Term Sheet shall not and shall not be interpreted or deemed to modify or limit
the terms of the District and DIL Plans should the District and DIL Plans, individually or
collectively, be sanctioned by the Court, including, inter alia, any releases contained

therein.

This Seitlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet is governed by and shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada
applicable therein, and both parties héreby irrevocably attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts of the Province of Ajbeﬂa.

The parties shall from time to time do such further acts and execute such further
decuments as shall be reasonably required to fully perform and carry out the terms, spirit

and intent of this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet.

The parties to this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet shall each bear
their own costs with respect to this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term
Sheet.

The patties agree that this Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Term Sheet may be

executed in any numbet of counterparts and by facsimile.
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Dated this day of December, 2015.

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA — BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT

Per:
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LUTHERAN CHURCH ~ CANADA,

THE ALBERTA - BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

Per:
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1501-00955

COURT FILE NO.: |
COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF
‘ ALBERTA IN BANKRUPTCY AND
INSOLVENCY
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES® CREDITORS |
_ ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended
APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH -~ CANADA, THE ALBERTA —
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH—
CANADA, THE ALBERTA — BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
DOCUMENT ORDER
” i i d } hereby certify G%s fo be a #tie copy of
ADDRESS FOR Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP
SERVICE AND 1600, 421 ~7th Avenue S.W. the crigihal lefod .
CONTACT Calgary, AB T2P 4K9 Dated sl dey of Se2frn OIS
INFORMATION tghons (403) 298.10 QU
OF PARTY Telephone (403) 208-1000 —— -
FILING THIS Facsimile (403) 263-9193 for Clerk of the Cotirt
DOCUMENT |
: File No. A135752
Attention: Jeffrey L. Oliver
DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS  February 20, 2015
PRONOUNCED:
LOCATION AT WHICH ORDER  Calgary, Alberta
WAS MADE:

NAME OF JUSTICE WHO MADE  The Honourable Justice C.M. Jones

THIS ORDER:
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Rev. 20.(15H4H0)




UPON THE APPLICATION of counsel for the Monitor, Deloitte Restructuring Inc., fo seek
the appointment of two Creditors’ Committees; AND UPON HEARING counsel for the
Monitor; AND UPON HAVING READ the Pre-Filing Report of the Monitor, filed January
23m 2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the First Report of the Monitor, filed February 17,
2015; :

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. All parties entitled to notice of this application have been served with notice of this
application and that the time for service is hereby abridged such that service effected on
the parties served with notice of this application shall be good and sufficient notice of this
application.

2. Two creditors’ committees, the “District Creditors’ Committee” and the “DIL
Creditors’ Committee” (collectively the “Creditors’ Committees”) are hereby
appointed in these proceedings to represent the interests of the investors in the Church
Extension Fund of the District (the “District Creditors™) and depositors in DIL (the
“DIL Creditors”), respectively. :

3. The District Creditors” Committee and the DIL Creditors® Committee shall act in the best
interests of the District Creditors and DIL Creditors, respectively and shall take such
necessary and appropriate actions as the Creditors’ Committees deem fit from time fo
time.

4. As soon as practicable after the pronouncement of this Order, the Monitor shall post on
: its website instructions with respect o how District Creditors and DII Creditors may
participate in the appointment of the Creditors’ Committees.

District Creditors’ Committee

5. The District Creditors’ Committee shall be compoéed as follows:

(a)  the Monitor shall appeint a maximum of five (5) District Creditors to the District
Creditors® Committee pursuant to the process set out herein:

6] three (3) of the five (5) positions (the “District Reserve Positions™) on the
District Creditors’ Committee shall, by no later than March 16, 2015, be
appointed by the Monitor from the pool of District Creditors with three (3)
of the ten largest known claims against the Applicants who are willing to
serve on the District Credifors’ Committee; :

(1)  in appointing District Creditors to the District Reserve Positions,
the Monitor shall use reasonable efforts to ensure geographic
representation by appointing District Creditors from both Alberta
and Brifish Columbia;
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(i  the remaining two (2) of the five (5) positions (the “District Vacant
Positions”) on the District Creditors’ Committee shall be appointed by the
Monitor from the remaining pool of District Creditors pursuant to the
following process:

(1)

@

&)

)

to be eligible for appointment to the District Vacant Positions (the
“District Potential Representatives”), District Creditors must
submit to the Monitor an application substantially in the form of
the application form attached hereto as Schedule A (the “District
Application Form™) accompanied by a minimum of two
supporting nominations from other District Creditors substantially
in the form of the nomination form attached hereto as Schedule B
(the “Distriet Nomination Form™) by no later than March 16,
2015;

a list of the District Potential Representatives will be posted on the .

website maintained by the Monitor at www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca
under the link entitled “Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta —
British Columbia District et. al.” and sent to all District Creditors
by regular mail or e-mail (if such method of communication is
indicated as a preferred communication method by a District
Creditor) by no later than March 31, 2015, with an invitation for all
District Creditors to submit a voting letter substantially in the form
attached here 1o as Schedule C (the “District Voting Letter”)
indicating their top two choices for which District Potential
Representatives should fill the District Vacant Positions;

the Distriet Voting Letter must be received by the Monitor by no |

later than 4:00 p.m. (MT) on April 14, 2015 in order for it to be
considered; and

the District Vacant Positions shall be appointed by the Monitor to
the District Potential Representatives who receive the most District
Voting Letters in support of their application for the District
Vacant Positions by other District Creditors. The Monitor shall

‘disclose the names of the parties appointed to the District Vacant

positions in the manner prescribed by paragraph 19 of this Order.

6. The mandate of the District Creditors® Committee shall include:

(a)  maximizing the amount that is ultimately available for distribution to the District

Creditors pursuant fo the Applicants’ plan of arrangement (the “Plan™);

(b)  consulting with, and providing advice to, the Applicants and the Monitor in a
timely manner respecting the interests of the District Creditors; and

(¢}  serving ina fiduciary capacity to all District Creditors.
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DIL Creditors’ Committee |

7. The DIL Creditors’ Committee shall be composéd as follows:

(@  the Monitor shall appoint a maximum of five (5) DII. Creditors to the DIL
Creditors’ Committee pursuant 1o the process set out herein;

® three (3) of the five (5) positions (the “DIL Reserve Positions”) on the
DIL Creditors’ Committee shall, by no later than March 16, 2015, be
appointed by the Monitor from the peol of District Creditors with three 3)
of the ten largest known claims against the Applicants who are willing to
serve on on the DIL Creditors’ Committee;

(1)

when appointing DIL Creditors to the DIL Reserve Positions, the
Monitor " shall use. reasonable efforts to "ensure geographic
representation by appointing DIL Creditors from both Alberta and
British Columbia;

(i)  the remaining two (2) of the five (5) positions (the “DIL Vacant
Positions”) on the DIL Creditors’ Committee will be appointed by the
Monitor from the remaining pool of DIL Creditors pursuant to the
following process: :

(1)

@)

()
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'to be eligible for appointment to the DIL Vacant Positions (the

“DIL Potential Representatives™), DIL Creditors must submit to
the Monitor an application substantially in the form of the
application form attached hereto as Schedule D (the “DIL
Application Form”) accompanied by a minimum of two
supporting nominations from other DIL Creditors substantially in
the form of the nomination form attached hereto as Schedule E
(the “DIL Nomination Form”) by no later than March 16, 2015;

a list of the DIL Potential Representatives will be posted on the
website maintained by the Monitor at www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca
under the link entitled “Lutheran Church ~ Canada, The Alberta —
British Columbia District et. al.” and sent to all DIL Creditors by
regular mail or e-mail (if such method of communication is
indicated as a preferred communication method by a DIL Creditor)
by no later than March 31, 2015, with an invitation for all DIL
Creditors fo submit a voting letter substantially in the form
attached here to as Schedule ¥ (the “DIL Voting Letter”)
indicating their top two choices for which. DIL Potential
Representatives should fill the DIL Vacant Positions;

the DIL Voting letter must be received by the Monitor by no later
than 4:00 pm. (MT) on April 14, 2015 in order for it to be
considered; and.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(4)  the DIL Vacant Positions will be appointed to the DIL Potential
Representatives who receive the most DIL Voting Letters in
suppart of their application for the DIL Vacant Positions by other
DIL Creditors, The Monitor shall disclose the names of the parties
appointed to the DIL Vacant Positions in the manner prescribed by
paragraph 19 of this Order.

The mandate of the DIL Creditors’ Committee shall include:

(a)  maximizing the amount that is ultimately available for distribution to the DIL
Creditors pursuant to the Plan;

(b)  consuiting with, and providing advice to, the Applicants and the Monitor in a
timely meanner respecting the interests of the DIL Credltors and

(c) serving in a fiduciary capacity to afl DIL Creditors.

Representative Professionals

The Creditors’ Committees are each entitled to appoint represenmtative counsel and,
subject to Court approval . financial advisors (collectively, “Representative
Professionals”) in these proceedings to represent the interests of each of the Creditors’
Committees.

The remuneration of the Representative Professionals, including the manner in which
such remuneration is secured and approved by this Honourable Court, shall be
determined in a subsequent hearing.

Miscellaneons

The Creditor’s Committees shall have ne obligation to consult with individual District
Creditors or DIL Creditors in connection with the discharge of its duties under this Order.
This exception, as specifically provided for herein, shall not in any way otherw1se reduce
or limit the fidnciary obligations of the Creditors’ Committees,

If appointed, Representative Professionals shall have no obligation to consult with
individual District Creditors or DIL Creditors in connection with the discharge of their
duties under this Order.

Subject to any further Order of the Court, and without limitation to any other right or

- protection in favour of the Creditors’ Committees, the Creditors’ Committees may apply

to be dlscharged from their role at any time if the Creditors’ Com:mttees no longer wish
fo continue in such role.

Any member of the Creditors’ Committees may resign or be replaced by the Monitor at
any time, provided the Monitor acts reasonably in making such replacements. In the
event of resignation or replacement, the Monitor shall adhere to the Creditors’
Committees appointment process set out in this Order. This paragraph is without

A135752\CAL,_LAW\2239346\4



15.

16,

17,

18.

-6-

prejudice to the Monitor’s ability, acting reasonably, to determine that a vacancy on the
Creditors’ Committee created as a result of a resignation need to be filled.

The Creditors’ Commiftees and/or Representative Professionals shall be permitted to
communicate with the District Creditors and/or DIL Creditors by having their
communications posted on the Monitors’ website, provided that copies of such
communications are also sent to such creditors by regular mail or by email in the event
that a particular District Creditor or DIL Creditor indjcated a preference for email
commumnication. ' :

The Creditors” Committees and/or Representative Professionals shall be at liberty and are
hereby authorized, at any time, to apply to this Court for advice and directions in respect
of its appointment, carrying out its duties as Creditors’ Committees and/or Representative
Professionals or varying the powers and duties of the Creditors’ Committees and/or
Representative Professionals, which shall be brought on notice to the Applicants, the
Monitor and other interested parties, unless otherwise ordered by the Court,

The Creditors’ Commitfees shall incur no liability or obﬁgaﬁons in respect of the’

performance of their duties or in carrying out the provisions of this Order; and the
Representative Professionals shall incur no liability or obligations in respect of the
perforraance of ifs duties or in carrying out the provisions of this Order, save and except
for liability arising out of breach of fiduciary duty, gross negligence or wilful
misconduct. For greater clarity and without otherwise limiting the generality of the
foregoing, this limit of liability in no way limits or lessens the fiduciary duties of the
Creditors’ Committees to the District Creditors or the DIL Creditors, as the case may be.

No action or other proceeding may be commenced against the Creditors’ Committees
and/or Representative Professionals in respect of the performance of their duties under
this Order without prior leave of the Court on at least seven. (7) days notice to the
Creditors’ Committees and/or Representative Professiomals, the Applicants and the
Monitor.

AI35752\CAL LAW\ 2239346\
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19.

-7-

Notice of this Order, lists of District Potential Representatives, the District Voting Letter,
lists of DIL Potential Representatives, the DIL Voting Letter and a subsequent notice of

the appointment of the Creditors” Committees and Representative Professionals (if any)
shall be: '

(a)  posted on the website maintained by the Monitor;
(b)  sent by ordinary mail to all District Creditors and DIL Creditors;

which mailing shall constitute good and sufficient notice of this Order, the lists, the
District Voting Letter, the DIL Voting Letter and the appointment of Creditors’
Committees and/or Representative Professionals. o

Justice of the Court of Queen’s
Bench of Alberta

AI3STSNCAL LAWN2239346W
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SCHEDULE A

APPLICATION FOR VACANT POSITIONS ON THE DISTRICT CREDITORS’
COMMITTEE

-

Personal and Contact Information

Name:

Current Address:

City: Province:

Postal Code:

Phone numbers: Day Evening

Cell

E-mail address:

QOiber

Please describe any additional information you would like the Creditors of District te consider
while voting on the composition of the District Creditors’ Commiitee as described in the Order
dated February 20; 2015 in Court of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00955:

Al3FTINCAL LAWY 224123003



Tam:

I

an individual who is a CEF Depositor;

a pastor or elected representative of a congregation who is a CEF Depositor and who has
béen specifically authorized by that congregation fo represent the congregation on the
District Creditors Committee

Congregation Name: | ;

an officer or director of a corporation which is a CEF Depositor and and who has been
specifically authorized by that corporation to represent the corporation on the District
Creditors Commitiee

Corporation Name: ;

ather authorized representatwc (please

specify):

hereby acknowledge that neither I nor the congregation, corporation

or other CEF Depositor who I am applying as representative of are a party to any contested
action involving any of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District,
Encharis Community Housing and Services, Encharis Management and Support Services, and
Lutheran Church - Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Litd.

Printed Name of Applicant Signature of Applicant

Al3STS2CAL LAW\ 2241230\3
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SCHEDULE B
DISTRICT CREDITORS’ COMMITTEE NOMINATION FORM

Nominee’s name:

Home Address:

City: Province:

Postal Code;

Phone numbers:  Day Evening

Cell

E-mail address;

I hereby nominate the above mentioned nominee to be considered for an
appointment to the District Creditors’ Committee as described in the Order dated February 20,
2015 in Court of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00955. '

Printed Name Signature

- AL3STSNCAL_LAWN 224123003



SCHEDULE C
DISTRICT CREDITORS’ COMMITTEE VOTING LETTER

Voter’s name;

Home Address:

City: : Province:

Postal Code:

Phone numbers: Day Evening

Cell

E-mail address:

- Tam:
O an individual who is a CEF Depositor;

O a pastor or elected representative of a congregation who is a CEF Depositor and who has
been specifically authorized by that congregation to vote on behalf of the congregation
with respect to the District Creditors Committee
Congregation Name:

]
-3

O an officer or director of a corporation which is a CEF Depositor and who has been
specifically authorized by that corporation to vote on behalf of the corporation with
respect to the District Creditors Committee

Corporation Name:

a0 other authorized representative (please
specify):

Al35750CAL LAW\ 224123003
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I hereby vote in favour of the following District Creditors (as my first and
second choices, respectively) to sit as members of the District Creditors Committee as described
in the Order dated February 20, 2015 in Court of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00955:

Printed Name Signature

Al35T52CAL_LAW2241230\3
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SCHEDULE D
APPLICATION FOR VACANT POSITIONS ON THE DIL CREPITORS’ COMMYTTEE

Personal and Contact Information

Name:

Current Address:

City: Province:

Postal Code:

Phone numbers: Day Evening

Cell

E-mail address:

QOther

Please describe any additz‘aﬁal information you would like the Creditors of DIL to consider while
voling on the composition of the DIL Creditors’ Committee as described in the Order dated
February 20, 2015 in Cowrt of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00953:

Al3STESNCAT, LAW\ 22412308
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I am;

I

an individnal who is a DIL Depositor;

a pastor or elected representative of a congregation who is a DIL Depositor and who has
been specifically authorized by that congregation to represent the congregation on the
DIL Creditors Commitiee ‘ '

Congregation Name: :

an officer or director of a corporation which is a DIL Depositor and who has been
specifically authorized by that corporation to represent the corporation on the DIL
Creditors Committee

Corporation Name: :

other authorized representative (please
specify);

hereby acknowledge that I am not a party to any contested action

involving any of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District, Encharis
Commnmity Housing and Services, Encharis Management and Support Services, and Lutheran
Church - Canada, the Alberta — Brit_ish Columbia District Investments Ltd.

Printed Name of Applicant Signature of Applicant

AL35752\CAL_LAW\ 22412303



SCHEDULE E
DIL CREDITORS’ COMMITTEE NOMINATION FORM

Nominee’s name:

Home Address:
City: | ' Province:
Postal Code:
Phone mimbers: Day = Evening
Cell
E-mail address:
[ ' hereby nominate the above mentioned nominee to be considered for an

.appointment to the DIL Creditors’ Committee as described in the Order dated February 20, 2015
in Court of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00935. '

Printed Name Signature

AIISTSACAL _LAWN2241230\3



SCHEDULE F
DIL CREDITORS’ COMMITTEE VOTING LETTER

Voter’'s name:

Home Address:

City: Province:

Postal Code:

Phone numbers:  Day Evening

Cell

E-mail address:

T am:
O an individual who is a DIL Depositor;

i a pastor or elected representative of a congregation who is a DIL Depositor and who has
been specifically anthorized by that congregation to vote on behalf of the congregation
with respect to the DIL Creditors Commiftee

Congregation Name:

>

O an officer or ditector of a corporation which is a DIL Depositor and who has been
specifically authorized by that corporation to vote on behalf of the corporation with
respect to the DIL Creditors Committee '

Corporation Name:

a0 other authorized representative (please
specify):

AI3STS2CAL LAW\ 224123003



I hereby vote in favour of the following DIL Creditors (as my first and
second choices, respectively) to sit as members of the DIL Creditors Committee as described in
the Order dated February 20, 2015 in Court of Queen’s Bench Action No. 1501-00955:

Printed Name Signature

AIS5TSNCAL,_LAWN 2239346\
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COURT FILE NO.: - 1501-00955
' COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF

COURT ALBERTA

JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA. —
BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN CHURCH —
CANADA, THE ALBERTA — BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

DOCUMENT- ORDER

ADDRESS FOR Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP

SERVICE AND 1600, 421 — 7th Avenue S.W.
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DOCUMENT o Ao e

File No. A135752 the original __
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for Clork of the Count
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- WAS MADE:

NAME OF JUDGE WHO MADE The Honourable Justice P.R. Jeffrey
THIS ORDER:
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.-

UPON THE APPLICATION of counsél for the Monitor, Deloitte Restructuring Inc.; AND
. UPON HEARING counsel for the Monitor; AND UPON HAVING READ the Initial Order,
granted January 23, 2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the Comumittee Order, granted
February 20, 2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the First Report of the Monitor, filed
February 17, 2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the Second Report-of the Monitor, filed
March 23, 2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the Third Report of the Monitor, filed June 16,
2015; AND UPON HAVING READ the Fourth Report of the Monitor, filed;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

Revised Composition of District Committee

1. Paragraph 5(a) of the Order of the Honourable Justice C.M. Jones granted on Febroary
20, 2015 {the “Committee Order”) in the within proceedings shall be amended yurc pro
tunc to replace all reference to “five (5) District Creditors” and “five (5) positions” with
“six (6) District Creditors” and “six (6} positions”, respectively.

2. Paragraph 5(a)(ii} of the Committee Order shall be amended munc pro tunc to replace
“the remaining two (2)” with “the remaining three (3)”.

Remuneratjon of Representative Professionals

3. The Initial Order of the Honourable Justice K.DD. Yamauchi granted on January 23, 2015
(the “Imitial Order”) in the within proceedings shall be amended as follows:

(@) the “Representative Professionals”, as defined in the Committee Order, shall be
entitled to the protection of the “Admiinistration Charge” (as defined in
paragraph 36 of the Initjal Order) in relation to their fees and disbursements; and

(b}  the rights.and obligations prescribed by paragraphs 34 to 36 of the Initial Order

shall also apply to the Representative Professionals.

O

U / O " Judge of the Court of Queen’s
Bench of Alberta

Al3575NCAL LAWA 23044712
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COURT FILE NUMBER
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1501-00955

COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CALGARY

NINTH REPORT OF THE MONITOR

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES CREDITORS’
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985 ¢. C-36 AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR
ARRANGEMENT OF LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE
ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT, LUTHERAN
CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD., ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES AND ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT SERVICES

DATED NOVEMBER 26, 2015

Counsel

Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP
1600, 421 7th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P 4K9
Attention: Jeffrey Oliver

Telephone/ Facsimile: 403-298-1000/ 403-263-9193
Email: Jeffrey.Oliver@gowlings.com
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Deloitte Restructuring Inc.
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Calgary, AB T2P ORS8

Attention: Jeff Keeble & Vanessa Allen

Telephone/Facsimile: 403-298-5955/ 403-718-3681
Email: jkeeble@deloitte.ca & vanallen@deloitte.ca



27.

28.

29,

26.3. The duties and responsibilities of the Subcommittee will include the following:

26.3.1. Reviewing the qualifications of at least three lawyers and selecting one lawyer to act
as legal counsel for the Representative Class (the “Representative Counsel");

26.3.2. With the assistance of Representative Counsel, identifying a parly willing to act as the
Representative Plaintiff;

26.3.3. Remaining in place throughout the Representative Action with their mandate to include
the following:

26.3.3.1. Assisting in maximizing the amount available for distribution to the
Representative Class;

26.3.3.2. Replacing Representative Counsel;
26.3.3.3. Serving in a fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Representative Class;

26.3.3.4, Establishing the amount of the Representative Action Holdback and
directing that payments be made to the Representative Counsel from the
Representative Action Holdback; and

26.3.3.5. Bringing any matter before the Court by way of an application for advice and
direction.

Those DIL Depesitors who elect to participate in the Representative Action will have a portion of their
Plan Distributions withheld to fund the Representative Action Holdback. It will only be possible to
estimate the value of the Representative Action Holdback once the Representative Counsel has been
retained. As such, upon the Representative Counsel being retained, the Monitor will send further
correspondence io the Representative Class, providing them with an estimate of the Representative
Action Holdback as well as instructions on how to opi-out of the Representative Action should they
choose to do so. Aftached as “Schedule 5" to the DIL Plan is a Notice of Opting Out that DIL

Depositors may use to opt-out of the Representative Action following the sanction of the DIL Plan.

The Representative Action will represent the sole recourse available to DIL Depositors with respect to
the Representative Action Claims. The Monitor is aware that at least one other group intended to
commence a class action proceeding in respect of the Representative Action Claims. Should they
desire, interested parties may submit name(s) of individuals, who may wish to act on the
Subcommittee or, where they have consulted with legal counsel, have their legal counsel put forward
as one of the legal counsel to be considered by the Subcommittee to act as Representative Counsel.

The Monitor is of the view that the inclusion of the Representative Action Process in the DIL Plan is
beneficial to DIL Depositors for the following reasons:

29.1. It provides a streamlined process for the establishment of the Representative Class and the
funding of the Representative Action;

Ninth Report of the Monitor Page 9
November 26, 2015



29.2. [t allows for ongeing involvement of members of the DIL Committee who have information and

insight into the CCAA Proceedings that may prove useful to the Subcommittee; and

29.3. Selected Depositors have indicated that they view any involvement in litigation as inconsistent
with their personal religious beliefs. The Representative Action Process allows DIL Depositors
to opt-out of the Representative Action before litigation is ever commenced, should that be their

preference,

Treatment of Unaffecied Creditors
30. Those creditors with claims that would be unaffected by the DIL Plan include Crown claims, post-filing

3.

claims, claims with respect {0 reasonable fees and disbursements of the Monitor, the Monitor's legal
counsel, the Applicants’ legal counsel and legal counsel for the DIL Committee, limited claims of
current employees, directors and officers, critical suppliers (as set cut in the Initial Order), claims
against directors that are not released by the CCAA, claims regarding agreements that have not been
disclaimed or resiliated, the Representative Action Claims, and a proven claim by the District in the

amount of $863,022 for outstanding management fees (the "District Claim").

It is anticipated that the treatment of the District Claim will be addressed in a Seftlement. The Monitor's
legal counsel has advised that they are of the view that the DIL Assets are effectively held in trust by
DIL for the benefit of DIL Depositors. As such, no funds would be available to satisfy the District Claim.

Key Elements of the DIL. Plan

32, The key elements of the DIL Plan are as follows:

32.1. The DIL Plan would only become effective at such time as a Sanction Order has been granted
in respect of the DIL Plan;

32.2. The DIL Depositors will be paid as set out above;

32.3. DIL will continue its efforts to realize on the DIL Assets by encouraging borrowers to refinance

or through the sale, demand, enforcement or non-renewal of loans and registered morigages;

32.4. Upon the DIL Assets having been fully realized and upon distributions having been made to
GWL, DIL will cease to operate; and

32.5. DIL does not have any employees and pays a monthly management fee to the District for
assistance in administering DIL's investment fund (the "Management Fee”). The Management
fee will continue under the DIL Pian, however, as it is based on the value of the DIL Assets, it
will be reduced as the Plan Distributions are made.

Ninth Report of the Monitor Page 10
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COURT FiLE NUMBER

COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE
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VSl - 0aass
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ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c.
C-36, as amended

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA ~ BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT, ENCHARIS COMMUNITY
HOUSING AND SERVICES,
ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND
SUPPORT SERVICES, AND
LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA,
THE ALBERTA — BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
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403-237-5550 (phone)
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DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS PRONGCUNCED: FRIDAY, JANUARY 23, 2015
NAME OF JUDGE WHO MADE THIS ORDER: K.D, YAMAUCHI

LOCATION OF HEARING:

CALGARY
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UPON the application of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia
District (the “District”), Encharis Community Housing and Services (“ECHS"), Encharis
Management and Support Services (“EMSS”), and Lutheran Church — Canada, The Alberta —
British Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL") (collectively the "Applicants"); AND UPON
having read the Affidavit of Kurtis Robinson; AND UPON reading the consent of Deloitte
Restructuring Inc. to act as Monitor; AND UPON noting that this Application is brought on a
without notice basis; AND UPON hearing counsel for the Applicants; IT IS HEREBY ORDERED
AND DECLARED THAT:

SERVICE

1. Service of notice of the application for this order is hereby dispensed with.

APPLICATION

2. The Applicants are companies to which the CCAA applies.

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT

3. The Applicants shall have the authority to file and may, subject to further order of this
Court, file with this Court a plan of compromise or arrangement (hereinafter referred to
as the "Plan").

POSSESSION OF PROPERTY AND OPERATIONS

4. The Applicants shall:

(a) remain in possession and control of their current and future assets, undertakings
and properties of every nature and kind whatsoever, and wherever situate
including all proceeds thereof (the "Property");

(b) subject to further order of this Court, continue to carry on business in a manner
consistent with the preservation of its business {the "Business") and Property;
and

(c) be authorized and empowered to continue to retain and employ the employees,
consultants, agents, experts, accountants, counsel and such other persons
{collectively "Assistanis”) currently retained 6r employed by it, with liberty to
retain such further Assistants’ as it deems reasonably necessary or desirable in

the ordinary course of business or for the carrying out of the terms of this Order.
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To the extent permitied by law, the Applicants shall be entitled but not required to pay
the following expenses, incurred prior to or after this Order:

()

(b)

all outstanding and future wages, salaries, employee and pension benefits,
vacation pay and expenses payable on or after the date of this Order, in each
case incurred in the ordinary course of business and consistent with existing
compensation policies and arrangements; and

the fees and disbursements of any Assistants retained or employed by the

Applicants in respect of these proceedings, at their standard rates and charges.

Except as otherwise provided to the contrary herein, the Applicants shall be entitled but
not required to pay all reasonable expenses incurred by the Applicants in carrying on the
Business in the ordinary course after this Order, and in carrying out the provisions of this
Order, which expenses shall include, without limitation:

(@)

(b)

all expenses and capital expenditures reasonably necessary for the preservation
of the Property or the Business including, without limitation, payments on account
of insurance (inciuding directors and officers insurance), maintenance and
security services; and

payment for goods or services actually supplied to the Applicants following the
date of this Order.

The Applicant shail remit, in accordance with legal requirements, or pay:

(a)

any statutory deemed trust amounts in favour of the Crown in Right of Canada or
of any Province thereof or any other taxation authority which are required to be
deducted 'from employees' wages, including, without limitation, amounts in
respect of:

(i) employment insurance,
(i) Canada Pension Plan, and
iii) income taxes,

but only where such statutory deemed trust amounts arise after the date of this
Order, or are not required to be remitted until after the date of this Order, unless
otherwise ordered by the Court;
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10.

(c)

all goods and services or other applicable sales taxes {collectively, “"Sales
Taxes") required to be remitted by the Applicants in connection with the sale of
goods and services by the Applicants, but only where such Sales Taxes are
accrued or collected after the date of this Order, or where such Sales Taxes were
accrued or collected prior to the date of this Order but not required to be remitted
until on or after the date of this Order; and

any amount payable to the Crown in Right of Canada or of any Province thereof
or any political subdivision thereof or any other taxation authority in respect of
municipal realty, municipal business or other taxes, assessments or levies of any
nature or kind which are entitled at law to be paid in priority to claims of secured
creditors and which are attributable to or in respect of the carrying on of the
Business by the Applicants.

Until a real property lease is disclaimed or resiliated in accordance with the CCAA, the

Applicants may pay all amounts constituting rent or payable as rent under real property

leases (including, for greater certainty, common area mainienance charges, utilities and

realty taxes and any other amounts payable as rent to the landlord under the lease)

based on the terms of existing lease arrangements or as otherwise may be negotiated

by the Applicants from time to time for the period commencing from and including the
date of this Order ("Rent"), but shall not pay any rent in arrears.

Except as specifically permitted in-this Order, the Applicants are hereby directed, until
further order of this Court:

(a)

(c)

to make no payments of principal, interest thereon or otherwise on account of
amounts owing by the Applicants to any of their creditors, which includes any

account holders in the Church Extension Fund of the District, as of the date of
this Order;

to grant no security interests, trust, liens, charges or encumbrances upon or in
respect of any of their Property; and

not to grant credit or incur liabilities except in the ordinary course of the Business.

Except as specifically permitted in this Order, DIL shall make no payments of principal,

interest thereon or otherwise on account of amounts owing under any Registered
Retirement Retirement Savings Plans ("RRSPs"), Registered Retirement Income Funds
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("RRIFs”) or Tax Free Savings Accounts (“TFSAs”) that are under its managément as of
the date of this Order except for statutory minimum payments to RRIF account holders.
For greater clarity, but without otherwise limiting the generality of the forgoing, unless
otherwise ordered by this Court, DIL shall not transfer any RRSP, RRIF, or TFSA
account to another institution,

EMERGENCY FUND

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

The Applicants are hereby authorized and directed to establish an Emergency Fund up
to a maximum of $75,000.00 per month as described in the Affidavit in support of this
Application and the Monitor's Pre-filing Report.

Distributions from the Emergency Fund may be made to Depositors as that term is
defined in the Affidavit in support of this Application, or to congregations:

(a) in amounts set by the District and approved by the Monitor; and

(b) the maximum payable to any individual Depositor shall not be more than 75% of
his or her pro-rata share of the low estimated amount that would be payable to
him or her in a liquidation scenario as determined by the Applicants and
approved by the Monitor.

Any payments under the Emergency Fund shall be considered as an interim distribution
under any Plan of Arrangement that may be approved in these proceedings, or as a '
return on investment to the DIL Depositors, and payments made thereunder will be
reflected in any final distribution under any such Plan of Arrangement, or final return on
investment 1o the DIL Depositors.

Any payments made by the Applicants under the Emergency Fund that was established
prior to this Application shall not be deemed to be preferential, voidable or subject to
being set aside under any federal or provincial legislation or rule of law, notwithstanding
the circumstances itemized in paragraphs 43 (a) to (d) of this Order.

The Applicants shall provide regular reports to the Monitor as to the distributions made
pursuant to the Emergency Fund,



RESTRUCTURING

16.

The Applicants shall subject to such requirements as are imposed by the CCAA have
the right to:

(a) permanently or temporarily cease, downsize or shut down any of its business or
operations and to dispose of redundant or non-material assets not exceeding
$100,000.00 in any one transaction or $300,000.00 in the aggregate, provided
that any sale that is either (i) in excess of the above thresholds, or (i) in favour of
a person related to the Applicants (within the meaning of section 36(5) of the
CCAA), shall require authorization by this Court in accordance with section 36 of
the CCAA;

(b} terminate the employment of such of their employees or temporarily lay off such
of their employees as they deem appropriate on such terms as may be agreed
upon between the Applicants and such employee, or failing such agreement, to
deal with the consequences thereof in the Plan; and

(c) pursue all avenues of refinancing of their Business or Property, in whole or part,
subject to prior approval of this Court being obtained before any material
refinancing,

all of the foregoing to permit the Applicants to proceed with an orderly restructuring of the
Business (the "Restructuring").

17.

The Applicants shall provide each of the relevant landlords with notice of the Applicants’

~ intention to remove any fixtures from any leased premises at least seven (7) days prior

to the date of the intended removal. The relevant landiord shall be entitied to have a
representaﬁve present in the leased premises to observe such removal. [f the landlord
disputes the Applicants’ entittement to remove any such fixture under the provisions of
the lease, such fixture shall remain on the premises and shall be dealt with as agreed
between any applicable secured creditors, such landlord and the Applicants, or by
further order of this Court upon application by the Applicants on at least two (2) days'
notice to such landlord and any such secured creditors. If the Applicants disclaim or
resiliate the Jease governing such leased premises in accordance with section 32 of the
CCAA, it shall not be required to pay Rent under such lease pending resolution of any
such dispute (other than Rent payable for the notice period provided for in section 32(5)

2.00
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of the CCAA, and the disclaimer or resiliation of the lease shall be without prejudice to
the Applicants’ claim to the fixtures in dispute.

If a notice of disclaimer or resiliation is delivered pursuant to section 32 of the CCAA,
then:

(a) during the notice period prior to the effective time of the disclaimer or resiliation,
the landlord may show the affected leased premises to prospective tenants
during normal business hours, on giving the Applicants and the Monitor 24 hours'
prior written notice; and

(b) at the effective time of the disclaimer or resiliation, the relevant landlord shall be
entitled to take possession of any such leased premises without waiver of or
prejudice to any claims or rights such landlord may have against the Applicant in
respect of such lease or leased premises and such landlord shall be entitled to
notify the Applicants of the basis on which it is taking possession and to gain
possession of and re-lease such leased premises to any third party or parties on
such terms as such landlord considers advisable, provided that nothing herein
shall relieve such landlord of its obligation to mitigate any damages claimed in
connection therewith.

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE APPLICANT OR THE PROPERTY

19,

Until and including February 20, 2015, or such later date as this Court may order (the
"Stay Period"), no proceeding or enforcement process in any court (each, a
"Proceeding") shall be commenced or continued against or in respect of the Applicants
or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property, except with leave of this Court,
and any and ail Proceedings currently under way against or in respect of the Applicants
or affecting the Business or the Property are hereby stayed and suspended pending
further order of this Court.

NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES

20.

During the Stay Period, all rights and remedies of any individual, firm, corporation,
governmental body or agency, or any other entities (all of the foregoing, collectively
being "Persons" and each being a "Person”), whether judicial or extra-judicial, statutory
or non-statutory againjst or in respect of the Applicants or the Monitor, or affecting the

Business or the Property, are hereby stayed and suspended and shall not be
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commenced, proceeded with or continued except with leave of this Court, provided that

nothing in this Order shall:

(a) empower the Applicants to carry on any business which the Applicants are not
lawfully entitled to carry on;

(b) affect such investigations, actions, suits or proceedings by a regulatory body as
are permitted by section 11.1 of the CCAA;

(c) prevent the filing of any registration to preserve or perfect a security interest; or

(d) prevent the registration of a claim for lien.

Nothing in this Order shall prevent any party from taking an action against the Applicants
where such an action must be taken in order to comply with statutory time limitations in
order to preserve their rights at law, provided that no further steps shall be taken by such
party except in accordance with the other provisions of this Order, and notice in writing
of such action be given to the Monitor at the first available opportunity.

NO INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS

22. During the Stay Period, no person shall accelerate, suspend, disconﬁnue, fail to honour,
alter, interfere with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right,
contract, agreement, licence or permit in favour of or held by the Applicants, except with
the written consent of the Applicants and the Monitor, or leave of this Court.

CONTINUATION OF SERVICES

23. During the Stay Period, all persons having:

(a) statutory or regulatory mandates for the supply of goods and/or services; or

(b) oral or written agreements or arrangements with the Applicants, including without

* limitation all computer software, communication and other data services,

centralized banking services, payroll services, insurance, transportation,
services, utility or other services to the Business or the Applicants

are hereby restrained until further Order of this Court from discontinuing, altering,
interfering with, suspending or terminating the supply of such goods or services as may
be required by the Applicants or exercising any other remedy provided under such
agreements or arrangements. The Applicants shéll be entitled to the continued use of its
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current premises, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, internet addresses and
domainh names, provided in each case that the usual prices or charges for all such goods
or services received after the date of this Order are paid by the Applicants in accordance
with the payment practices of the Applicants, or such other practices as may be agreed
upon by the supplier or service provider and each of the Applicants and the Monitor, or
as may be ordered by this Court.- Nothing in this Order has the effect of prohibiting a
person from requiring immediate payment for goods, services, use of leased or licensed
property or other valuable consideration provided on or after the date of this Order.

NO OBLIGATION TO ADVANCE MONEY OR EXTEND CREDIT

24.

Subject to paragraphs 37 to 39 of this Order, but notwithstanding anything else
contained in this Order, no creditor of the Applicants shall be under any obligation on or
after the date of this Order to advance or re-advance any monies or otherwise extend
any credit to the Applicahts.

PROCEEDINGS AGAINST DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

25,

During the Stay Period, and except as permitted by subsection 11.03(2) of the CCAA
and paragraph 2-1 of this Order, no Proceeding may be commenced or continued against
any of the former, currént or future directors or officers of the Applicants with respect to
any claim against the directors or officers that arose before the date hereof and that
relates to any obligations of the Applicants whereby the directors or officers are alleged
under any law to be liable in their capacity as directors or officers for the payment or
performance of such obligations, until a compromise or arrangement in respect of the
Applicants, if one is filed, is sanctioned by this Court or is refused by the creditors of the
Applicants or this Court.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE

26.

27.

The Applicants shalt indemnify its directors and officers against obligations and liabilities
that they may incur as directors and or officers of the Applicants after the
commencement of the within proceedings except to the extent that, with respect to any
officer or director, the obligation was incurred as a result of the director's or officer's
gross negligence or witful misconduct.

The directors and officers of the Applicants shail be entitled to the benefit of and are
hereby granted a charge (the "Directors' Charge") on the Property, which charge shall
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not exceed an aggregate amount of $5,000,000.00, as security for the indemnity
provided in paragraph 26 of this Order. The Directors' Charge shall have the priority set
out in paragraphs 40 and 42 herein.

Notwithstanding any language in any applicable insurance policy to the contrary:

(a) no insurer shall be entitled to be subrogated to or claim the benefit of the
Directors' Charge; and

(b) the Applicants’ directors and officers shall only be entitled to the benefit of the
Directors' Charge to the extent that they do not have coverage under any
directors’ and officers’ insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage is
insufficient to pay amounts indemnified in accordance with paragraph 26 of this
Order.

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR

29,

30.

Deloitte Restructuring Inc. is hereby appointed pursuant to the CCAA as the Monitor, an
officer of this Court, to monitor the Property, Business and financial affairs and the
Applicants with the powers and obligations set out in the CCAA or set forth herein and
that the Applicants and its shareholders, officers, directors, and Assistants shall advise
the Monitor of alt material steps taken by the Applicants pursuant to this Order, and shall
co-operate fully with the Monitor in the exercise of its powers and discharge of its
obligations and provide the Monitor with the assistance that is necessary to enable the
Monitor to adequately carry out the Monitor’s functions.

The Monitor, in addition to its prescribed rights and obligations under the CCAA, is
hereby directed and empowered to:

(a) monitor the Applicants’ receipts and disbursements, Business and dealings with
the Property;

(b) report to this Court at such times and intervals as the Monitor may deem
appropriate with respect to matters relating to the Property, the Business, and
such other matters as may be relevant to the proceedings herein and
immediately report to the Court if in the opinion of the Monitor there is a material

adverse change in the financial circumstances of the Applicants;
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(c) advise the Applicants in its preparation of the Applicants’ cash flow statements
and reporting;

(d) advise the Applicants in its development of the Plan and any amendments to the
Plan;

{e) advise the Applicants, o the extent required by the Applicants, with the holding
and administering of creditors' or shareholders' meetings for voting on the Plan;

(f) have full and complete access to the Property, including the premises, books,
records, data, including data in electronic form and other financial documents of
the Applicants to the extent that is necessary to adequately assess the
Applicants’ Property, Business and financial affairs or to perform its duties arising
under this Order;

(o) be at liberty to engage independent legal counsel or such other persons as the
Monitor deems necessary or advisable respecting the exercise of its powers and
performance of its obligations under this Order; '

(h) hold funds in trust or in escrow, to the extent required, to facilitate setttements
between the Applicants and any other Person; and

(i) perform such other duties as are required by this Order or by this Court from time
to time.

The Monitor shall not take possession of the Property and shall take no part whatsoever
in the management or supervision of the management of the Business and shall not, by
fulfilling its obligations hereunder, or by inadvertence in relation to the due exercise of
powers or performance of duties under this Order, be deemed to have taken or maintain
possession or control of the Business or Property, or any part thereof. Nothing in this
Order shall require the Monitor to occupy or to take control, care, charge, possession or
management of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated, or
might cause or contribute to a spill, discharge, release or deposit of a substance contrary
to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the protection, conservation,
enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or relating to the disposal
or waste or other contamination, provided however that this Order does not exempt the
Monitor from any duty to report or make disclosure imposed by applicable environmental
legislation. |
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The Monitor shall provide any creditor of the Applicants with information provided by the

Applicant in response to reasonable requests for information made in writing by such

creditor addressed to the Monitor. The Monitor shall not have any responsibility or
liability with respect to the information disseminated by it pursuant to this paragraph. In
the case of information that the Monitor has been advised by the Applicants is

confidential, the Monitor shall not provide such information to creditors unless otherwise

“directed by this Court or on such terms as the Monitor and the Applicants may agree.

The Monitor shall incur no liability or obligation as a result of its appointment or the
carrying out of the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross negligence or
wilful misconduct on its part. Nothing in this Order shall derogate from the protections
afforded the Monitor by the CCAA or any applicable legislation.

The Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and counsel to the Applicants shall be paid their
reasonable fees and disbursements, in each case at their standard rates and charges,
by the Applicants as part of the costs of these proceedings. The Applicants are hereby
authorized and directed to pay the accounts of the Monitor, counsel for the Monitor and
counsel for the Applicant on at least a monthly basis.

The Monitor and its legal counsel shall pass their accounts from time to time.

The Monitor, counsel to the Monitor, if any, the Applicants' counsel, as security for the
professional fees and disbursements incurred both before and after the granting of this
Order, shall be entitied to the benefits of and are hereby granted a charge (the
"Administration Charge”) on the Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate
amount of $300,000.00, as security for their professional fees and disbursements
incurred at the normal rates and charges of the Monitor and such counsel, both before
and after the making of this order in respect of these proceedings. The Administration
Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 40 and 42 hereof.

The following companies are declared to be critical suppliers to the Applicants under s.
11.4 of the CCAA:

Hill + Knowlton Strategies, a division of WPP Group Canada Communications Limited:;
Diversicare Canada Management Services Co., Inc.;

Alsco
ATCO GAS
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Canada Bread Company Limited
County of RockyView

Direct Energy

ENMAX

Norica Nursing Agency

PC eSolutions Corporation

Pratts Food Service

Shannon'S Services Management
Corp.

Sysco Foods Calgary

Shaw phone and Internet services

(collectively, the “Critical Suppliers™).

The Critical Suppliers shall continue to supply goods or services to the Applicants in
accordance with any contracts previously entered into with the Applicants, and shall
extend credit to the Applicants for such goods or services with payment being net 30
days from the Applicants being invoiced for the same.

The Critical Suppliers, as security for their goods, services, professional fees and
disbursements incurred both before and after the granting of this Order, shall be entitled
to the benefits of and are hereby granted a charge (the "Critical Suppliers Charge") on
the Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $100,000.00, as
security for their goods, services, professional fees and disbursements incurred at the
normal rates and charges of such service providers, both before and after the making of
this order in respect of these proceedings. The Critical Suppliers Charge shall have the
priority set out in paragraphs 40 and 42 hereof.

VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES

40,

The priorities of the Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge, and the Critical
Suppliers’ Charge, as among them, shall be as follows:

First — Administration Charge (to the maximum amount of $300,000.00);
Second - Critical Suppliers’ Charge (to the maximum amount of $100,000.00); and

Third — Directors' Charge (to the maximum amount of $5,000,000.00).
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The filing, registration or perfection of the Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge
or the Critical Suppliers’ Charge (collectively, the "Charges") shall not be required, and
the Charges shall be valid and enforceable for all purposes, including as against any
right, title or interest filed, registered, recorded or perfected subsequent to the Charges
coming into existence, notwithstanding any such failure to file, register, record or perfect.

Each of the Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge and the Critical Suppliers’
Charge (all as constituted and defined herein) shall constitute a charge on the Property
and subject always to section 34(11) of the CCAA such Charges shall rank in priority to
all other security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, claims of secured

creditors, statutory or otherwise (collectively, "Encumbrances") in favour of any Person.

Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, or as may be approved by this Court,
the Applicants shall not grant any Encumbrances over any Property that rank in priority
to, or pari passu with, any of the Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge or the
Critical Suppliers’ Charge, unless the Applicants also obtain the prior written consent of
the Monitor, and the beneficiaries of the Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge,
and the Critical Suppliers’ Charge, or further order of this Court.

The Directors' Charge, the Administration Charge, and the Critical Suppliers’
Chargeshall not be rendered invalid or unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the
chargees entitled to the benefit of the Charges (collectively, the "Chargees") thereunder

shall not otherwise be limited or impaired in any way by:

(a) the pendency of these proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made in
this Order;

(b} any application(s} for bankruptcy order(s) issued pursuant to BIA, or any
bankruptey order made pursuant to such applications;

(c) the filing of any assignments for the general benefit of creditors made pursuant to
the BiA;

(d) the provisions of any federal or provincial statutes; or

(e) any negative covenants, prohibitions or other similar provisions with respect to
borrowings, incurring debt or the creation of Encumbrances, contained in any

existing loan documents, lease, sublease, offer to lease or other agreement

Z0%
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(collectively, an "Agreement") which binds the Applicants, and notwithstanding
any provision to the contrary in any Agreement:

(i) neither the creation of the Charges nor the execution, delivery, perfection,
registration or performance of any documents in respect thereof shall
create or be deemed to constitute a new breach by the Applicanté of any
Agreement to which it is a party;

(i) none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever
as a result of any breach of any Agreement caused by or resulting from
the creation of the Charges,; and

(i) the payments made by the Applicants pursuant to this order, and the
granting of the Charges, do not and will not constitute preferences,
fraudulent conveyances, transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct or

other challengeable or voidable transactions under any applicable law.

ALLOCATION

45.  Any interested Person may apply to this Court on notice to any other party likely to be
affected, for an order to allocate the Administration Charge, the Critical Suppliers’

Charge, and the Directors’ Charge amongst the various assets comprising the Property.

SERVICE AND NOTICE

46.  The Monitor shall (i) without delay, publish in the Globe & Mail a notice containing the
information prescribed under the CCAA; (i) within five (5) days after the date of this
Order (A) make this Order publicly available in the manner prescribed under the CCAA,
(B) send, in the prescribed manner, a notice to every known creditor who has a claim.
against the Applicants of more than $1,000 and (C) prepare a list shownng the names
, &m YavegFad iy wam -
2 and.addresses of those creditors and the ated amounts , and make/{
it publicly available in the prescribed manner, all in accordance with section 23(1)(a) of

the CCAA and the regulations made thereunder.

47.  The Applicants and the Monitor shall be at liberty to serve this Order, any other materials
and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other correspondence, by forwarding
true copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery, facsimile
transmission or e-mail to the Applicants’ creditors or other interested Persons at their

respective addresses as last shown on the records of the Applicants, or by posting such
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documents on the website address established by the Monitor provided that the
Applicants’ creditors or other interested Persons have been provided with the website
address by way of one of the alternative service methods, and that any such service or
notice by courier, personal delivery, facsimile transmission, e-mail, or website posting
shall be deemed to be received on the next business day following the date of
forwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary mail, on the third business day after mailing.
The Applicants and the Monitor shall serve any minors who are creditors of any of the
Applicants by sending such aforementioned documents by courier to the Office of the
Public Trustee by courier with a copy to the minor either by ordinary mail or by posting to
the website address established by the Monitor provided that such minors have been
provided with the website address by way of one of the alternative service methods.
The Monitor shall establish and maintain a website in respect of these proceedings at

www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca and shall post there as soon as practicable:

(a) all materials prescribed by statute or regulation to be made publically available;
and

{(b) all applications, reports, affidavits, ordérs or other materials filed in these
proceedings by or behalf of the Monitor, or served upon it, except such materials
as are confidential and the subject of a sealing order or pending application for a
sealing order.

GENERAL

48.

49,

50.

51.

The Applicants or the Monitor may from time to time apply to this Court for advice and
directions in the discharge of their powers and duties hereunder.

Notwithstanding Rule 6.11 of the Alberta Rules of Court, unless otherwise ordered by
this Court, the Monitor will report to the Court from time to time, which reporting is not

required to be in affidavit form and shall be considered by this Court as evidence.

Nothing in this Order shall prevent the Monitor from acting as an interim receiver, a
receiver, a receiver and manager, or a trustee in bankruptcy of the Applicants, the
Business or the Property.

This Court hereby requests the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal, regulatory or
administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States, to give effect to
this Order and to assist the Applicants, the Monitor and their respective agents in
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carrying out the terms of this Order. Al courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative
bodies are hereby respectfully requested to make such orders and to provide such
assistance to the Applicants and to the Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be
necessary or desirable to give effect to this Order, to grant representative status to the
Monitor in any foreign proceeding, or to assist the Applicants and the Monitor and their
respective agents in carrying out the terms of this Order.

Each of the Applicants and the Monitor be at liberty and is hereby authorized and
empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative body, wherever
located, for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the terms of
this Order and that the Monitor is authorized and empdwered to act as a representative
in respect of the within proceeding for the purpose of having these proceedings
recognized in a jurisdiction outside Canada.

Any interested party (including the Applicant and the Monitor) may apply to this Court to
vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days' notice to any other party or

parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other notice, if any, as this
Court may order.

This Order and all of its provisions are effective as of 12:01 a.m. Mountain Standard
Time on the date of this Order.

=

Justice of the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta

AR
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1501-00955 "CLERK OF THF.
COURT FILE NUMBER FILED
COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH AUG 31 2015

OF ALBERTA

JUDI

IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY OF OAL SaNTRE
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’

CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,

R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended
APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH — CANADA, THE

ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT,

ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOUSING AND

SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND

SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN

CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH

COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.
DOCUMENT ORDER

(Extend Stay, Approve Payments)
ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND  Bishop & McKenzie LLP
CONTACT INFORMATION OF  Barristers & Solicitors
PARTY FILING THIS 1700, 530 - 8" Avenue SW
DOCUMENT Calgary, Alberta T2P 358

Attention: Francis N. J. Taman / Ksena J. Court

Telephone; 403-237-5550

Fax: 403-243-3623

File No,: 103,007-003
DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: FRIDAY, AUGUST 28, 2015
LOCATION WHERE ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: CALGARY, ALBERTA
NAME OF JUSTICE WHO MADE THIS ORDER: JUSTICE B.E.C. ROMAINE




UPON THE APPLICATION of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British
Columbia District (the “District”), Encharis Community Housing and Services ("*ECHS”),
EnCharis Management and Support Services (“EMSS”), and Lutheran Church — Canada, the
Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL") (collectively the "Applicants"); AND
UPON HAVING READ the Application, the Affidavits of Kurtis Robinson; AND UPON READING
the Reports of the Monitor; AND UPON HEARING counsel for the Applicants, counsel for the
Monitor, counsel for the CEF Creditors’ Commitiee, counsel for the DIl Creditors’ Committee,
and other interested parties;

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED AND DECLARED THAT:

SERVICE

1. Service of notice of the application for this Order, and all supporting materials, as set out
in the Affidavit of Charlene Everett respecting the Application filed August 17, 2015 is good and
sufficient, and the time for notice hereof is shortened to the time actually given.

2. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Order shall have the meaning ascribed
to them in the Initial Order granted by the Honourable Justice K.D. Yamauchi in this Action
dated January 23, 2015 (the “[nitial Order”).

EXTENSION OF STAY

cE The Stay Period as defined in the Initial Order is hereby extended up to and including
October 30, 2015.

RECORDS

4. The Applicants’ application respecting the records in the possession or control of ARS
Collection Agency of Canada Inc. operating as Fiserv and Fiserv Solutions, and any of its
related corporations (collectively “Fiserv”) is adjourned sine die.

PAYMENT TO REALTOR

5. The payment of the commissions to the realtors respecting the sale of the Faith School
Lands, which sale was approved by the Order of Justice K.D. Yamauchi on March 27, 2015, are
hereby confirmed and approved.

213



TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO DIL DEPOSITORS

6. DIL is heregy authorized to transfer to Great-West Life Assurance Company (“GWL”) up
tothe sumof $_{5.0 il 1o, (the “DIL Transfer Funds®).

7. DIL is hereby authorize% to disclose to GWL and its agent, Yellow Raincoat Benefit
Consultants Inc. (“Yellow Raincoat”) personal information respecting the DIL Depositors as set
out in the Monitor’s Fifth Report.

8. Upon receipt of the personal information respecting the DIL Depositors, GWL and/or
Yellow Raincoat shall assist the DIL Depositors in establishing new registered accounts, which
shall be the same type of registered account that was managed by DIL, for each DIL Depositor.

9. Upon the said new registered account being established for an individual DIL Depositor
whose claim has been admitted in the claims process set out in the Order granted on February
20, 2015, the Monitor shall calculate an amount for the said individual DIL Depositor (the
“Individual’'s Pro-rata Share”) and shall advise GWL of the Individual's Pro-rata Share, GWL
shall transfer the Individual’s Pro-rata Share from the DIL Transfer Funds to the new registered
account for the individual DIL Depositor.

10. The Individual’s Pro-rata Share shall be calculated as:

DIL Transfer Funds x (DIL Depositor's proven.claim — any amount the DIL Depositor has
received from the Emergency Fund — any amount the DIL Depaositor has
received as a RRIF Minimum Payment)

(total proven claims of all DIL Depositors — total amount received by all
DIL Depositors from the Emergency Fund — total amount received by all
DiL Depositors as a RRIF Minimum Payment)

11. As of the date of the iransfer of the DIL Transfer Funds (the "Transfer Date"), all
obligations of Concentra Trust as the trustee of the DIL Transfer Funds shall terminate. For
greater clarification, this Order shall not act as a release of any obligations that Concentra Trust
had as trustee of the DIL Transfer Funds prior to the Transfer Date.

i2.  The distribution of t
Superintendent of Ba

g

Justice of the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta

L Transfer Funds shall be subject to #1e Office of é@
ptey's levy. ]
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COURT FILE NUMBER 1501-00955 ORI JHE GOUR
FILED
COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
OF ALBERTA NOV 0:6 2015
IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY JUDICIAL CENTRE
OF CALGARY
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY -

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’
CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended

APPLICANTS LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE
' ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT,
ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOUSING AND
SERVICES, ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND
SUPPORT SERVICES, AND LUTHERAN
CHURCH — CANADA, THE ALBERTA — BRITISH
COLUMBIA DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD.

DOCUMENT ORDER (Authorize Payments, Amend Order)

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND Bishop & McKenzie LLP
CONTACT INFORMATION OF  Barristers & Solicitors
PARTY FILING THIS 1700, 530 - 8" Avenue SW
DOCUMENT Calgary, Alberta T2P 358

Attention: Francis N. J. Taman / Ksena J. Court

Telephone: 403-237-5550
Fax; 403-243-3623

File No.: 103,007-003

DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2015
LOCATION WHERE ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: CALGARY, ALBERTA
NAME OF JUSTICE WHO MADE THIS ORDER: JUSTICE G. A. CAMPBELL

UPON THE APPLICATION of Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta ~ British
Columbia District (the “District”), EnCharis Community Housing and Services, EnCharis
Management and Support Services, and Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta ~ British
Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“DIL") (collectively the "Applicants”); AND UPON HAVING
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READ the Application, the Affidavits of Cameron Sherban; AND UPON.READING the Reports
of the Monitor; AND UPON HEARING counsel for the Applicants, counsel for the Monitor, and
other interested parties;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECLARED THAT:

SERVICE

1. Service of notice of the application for this Order, and all supporting materials, as set out
in the Affidavit of Charlene Everett respecting the Application filed October 26, 2015 is good and
sufficient, and the time for notice hereof is shortened to the time actually given. ‘

2. Ali capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Order shall have the meaning ascribed
to them in the initial Order granted by the Honourable Justice K.D. Yamauchi in this Action
dated January 23, 2015 (the “Initial Order”).

PAYMENTS TO EFT AFFECTED DEPOSITORS

3. The District is hereby permitted to, as soon as is practicable, make payment to those
District Depositors who had a withdrawal from their accounts by way of electronic funds transfer
(“EFT"} between March 1, 2014 and the date of the Initial Order, the amount of those
withdrawals being net of any amounts paid to those District Depositors during the same period.

AMENDMENT TO ORDER

4. The Order (Extend Stay, Approve Payments) granted by the Honourable Justice B.E.C.
Romaine on August 28, 2015 is hereby amended to add the following paragraph:

“12.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any DIL Depositor who has a
Registered Retirement Income Fund (“RRIF”) or Locked in Income Fund (“LIF”) account,
DIL is hereby authorized to transfer such DIL Depositor's Individual Pro-rata Share to
another RRIF or LIF account (as the case may be) chosen by the DIL Depositor upon
being provided with appropriate transfer documentation from the DIL Depositor before
December 31, 2015."
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5. The Order (Extend Stay, Approve Payments) granted by the Honourable Justice B.E.C.
Romaine on August 28, 2015 is hereby amended to delete paragraph 10 and replace it with:

“10. The [hdividual’s Pro-rata Share shall be calculated as:

((DIL Depositor's claim / total Proven Claims) x (DIL Transfer Funds + total amount received by
all DIL Depositors from the Emergency Funds + total amount received by all DIL Depositors as
RRIF or LIF Minimum Payments)) — any amount the DIL Depositor has received from the
Emergency Fund — any amount the DIL Depositor has received as a RRIF or LIF Minimum

M A (o«

Payment”.

JD?tTc% bf the Clakirt of Queen’s Bench of Alberta
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